
1 you know, he was �g�~�i�n�g� to hold me responsible, and stuff li ke 

2 this. And I said �~ �- I blew it off basically, because I knew 

3 that Eric was in a -- I mean, I didn't - - I didn't interpret 

4 it as a serious threat. 

5 Q Did he threaten to sue you? 

6 A �E�s�s�e�n�t �i �a�~�l�y�.� 

7 Q Yeah. 

8 A Wel l, he -- he threatened to hold me accountable. 

9 Now, what is that?: I don't know whether he was going to shoot 

10 me or sue me. I don't know. 

11 Q Those are familiar. We're going to hear some of 

12 those in the days to come. 

13 (WHEREUPON, MR. DICKERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS.) 

14 Q 'AI I �r �i�g�h�~�.� I want to t alk a bit about the 

15 management f ee that is owed t o - - the deferred management f ee 

16 that is 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q -- owed to Eric. I'm going to show you what's been 

19 has what's been marked for i dentificati on purposes as 

20 Defendant's Exhibit CCCC. 

21 (WHEREUPON, MR . DICKERSON HANDS THE WITNESS A DOCUMENT. ) 

22 A Yes. 

23 (WHEREUPON, MR. DICKERSON HANDS MR. J I MMERSON AND THE 

24 COURT A DOCUMENT. ) 
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1 Q You provided this document to me in the past, is 

2 that correct? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q And do you recall providing that to me on the day of 

5 your deposition? Do you recall it being then or was it some 

6 time after that? 

7 A I believe it was in response to a request by you at 

8 the deposition, �i�~� -- I thought. 

9 Q Okay. And what is Exhibit eCCe? What is this? 

10 A �B�a�s�i�c�a�l�~�Y�I� a complete listing of the management fees 

11 that have been, at that point paid from the beginning, and an 

12 alloe -- and how they were allocated. 

13 (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT ecce IS IDENTIFIED.) 

14 Q Okay. And 50 does this show fqr every entity that 

15 that share in the management fee, or just Dynasty? 

16 A It share -- it shows the two entities that share in 

17 that fee. Basically, the Silver Slipper Gaming and -- well, 

18 maybe that's not true. Let's see. well, you could assume 

19 from -- from this,' the balance is Silver Slipper Gaming. I 

20 don't know if it actually shows it. 

21 MR. �J�I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� We just took - - it's on the first coluIlU1, 

22 I think you'll see it, sir. 

23 

24 

MR . DICKERSON: What is the --

MR. JIMMERSON: You've got month and then you've got 
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THE WITNESS: Wel l, that'S t he - -

2 MR. JIMMERSON': - - SSCG. 

3 THE WITNESS: -- total management 

4 MR. JIMMERSON;: I see. 

5 THE WITNESS, fee, I believe. And as I explained to 

6 you, the r eason -- at at the beginning we had a ninety- ten 

7 arrangement, and at some poi nt it changed to eighty- twenty. 

8 So you'll see in the early period the total fee was seventy 

9 and Eric's entity recei ved seven t housand. And then at some 

10 point, like in July of '07, you' ll see it's twenty percent. 

11 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

12 Q And why did i t go up? 

I3 A I t was a " -- it was an overall negotiation, maybe 

14 about t he time when we had to put add·itional money in or 

15 whatever. I honestl y don't recall the exact context. But it , 

16 was i n the context of more than just that. 

17 Q Okay. N9w, who actually manages the -- thi s 

18 property, the project, Silver -- the Silver Slipper Casino? 

19 A When you say who actually 

20 Q Well , who -- who actually manages the 

21 A John Faruj i (phonetic) is our Gener al Manger on 

22 si te. 

23 Q All right. And what role, if any, do you play in 

24 the management of the busi ness? 

, 
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A Every day, ongoi ng every day. 

2 Q Okay. And how about your business partner? 

3 A Same. 

4 Q How about Eric Nelson , what r ol e does he play in the 

5 management? 

6 A I n �m�a�n�a�g�~�m�e�n�t�,� more as a shareholder. 

7 Q Okay. S9 these monies, why i s he receiving a share 

8 of the management fee? 

9 A Because that's what we negotiated. 

10 Q Okay. So this is gener ally , would you agree, 

I I passive income coming to him? 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Objection to the characterization, 

13 suggesting that my . c li ent does nothing is not true. 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Well, t hat's -- I ' m ask ing the question. 

15 It's cross examination. 

16 THE WITNESS: : I believe that it was part i n parcel of the 

17 overal l nego t iati ons. And I've a lways felt it was what 

18 what was part of the overall deal, not that Eric was getting 

19 this because he was going to do twenty percent o f t he work; 

20 never expected Eric t o do ten or twenty percent of t he work . 

21 It was what we agreed t o for better or fo r worse. 

22 BY MR. DI CKERSON: 

23 Q Now, �t�a�k�~ �n�g� a l ook at Exhibit CC (sic), was t his 

24 prepared by you? 
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1 A It was �p�~�e�p�a�r�e�d� by our accountant, Andrew, whom 

2 I ' ve 

3 Q And - -

4 A menti oned before. 

5 Q do you believe this t o be accurate? 

6 A well, as· of the date. 

7 Q Yes. As of June of 2010? 

8 A Yes. 

9 MR. DICKERSON: Your Honor, move f or the admi ssion of 

10 Exhibit eccc. 

11 MR.. J IMMERSON: No objection. 

12 THE COURT: It's hereby admitted as eccc. 

13 (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT ecce I S ADM I TTED.) 

14 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

15 Q Now, does ecce show the months i n which monies were 

16 distributed to Eri c Nelson? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q And the bottom line reflects here that at least as 

19 of June of 2010 the -- he had an accumul ated deferred amount 

20 owed t o him of a hundred and t hi rty-two t housand two hundred 

21 and sixty- nine dol lars and ni neteen cents? 

22 A Correct. 

23 Q Okay. And is that an accurate amount as of June? 

24 A I assume so. Yes. 

NELSON 11/1'7/10 PARTtAL TRANSCRIPT 
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DiVISION - '1'J{AN SCKIP'r VIDEO SERVICES 

601 N . pecos Road, Las vegas, Nevllda 89101 (702) �~�5�S�-�4�9�7�7� 138 

AAPP 1393



Q Do you know what, if any, payments have been made 

2 since June o f 2010? 

3 A I -- I don't know specifically, but I've instructed 

4 my partner, Loren Ostrow, t hat we should make payments to 

5 assure that the amount of deferral does not exceed the amount 

6 that we would be entitled to offset under that separate 

7 agreement I've told you we have with Eric. 

8 Q All right. Now, are you taking a management fee and 

9 not paying Eric, or are you applying this proportionally? , 
10 A Well, to the extent that it's def -- Eric's is 

II deferred, that has been monies t hat we've received and have 

12 not been paid to Eric. 

13 Q Okay. Do you have any deferred amount owed to you? 

14 A We did, but the property's been making an effort to 

15 clear those up. So my belief today is that it may very well 

16 -- I think it should've been cleared up by now. 

17 Q Okay. And so why are there no deferred amounts owed 

18 to you yet there are deferred amounts owed to Eric? 

19 A Because of that side agreement, what I mentioned 

20 before. Because the calcu -- we have calculated the 

21 management f ees as they would be spl it based upon t hat 

22 agreement. And if . you take an increased management fee and 

23 you now give us eighty percent of it, that -- although Eric 

24 gets credit for tw.enty percent of it, that means that Eric's 
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1 getting overpai d -- he's been getting overpaid because he' s 

2 getting twenty per¢ent of -- of this amount that's actual ly 

3 getting paid. Do you understand what I'm saying? 

4 Q Yes, I do . 

5 A And so we calculated what would be the proper 

6 allocation based upon that agreement, and taken a position 

7 that that's the way we should allocate the fees, and we should 

8 continue to do �t�h�a�~� along the basis o f what is the total 

9 agreement between us. 

10 Now, is this an agreement that you entered into with 

II 

12 Yes. 

13 How i s t hat agreement evidenced, is it in writing? 

15 So there's some written document that Eric Nelson 

16 has signed? 

17 A Yes. 

18 (BRIEF PAUSE. I 

19 Q Let's taik a bit about your investing in this debt. 

20 If I if I understand it correctly, there were -- when y ou 

21 went t o DDJ t o obtain the loan, t he fund that they had, t here 

22 was three million dol l ars t hat they needed to repay to some 

23 other lender? 

24 A This was several years after we did the deal with 
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them. 

2 Q Oh, so some other lender wanted out of the 

3 transaction? 

4 A One of their -- I don ' t purport to know what DDJ 

5 funds have this forty-three million dollar -- or t hei r por tion 

6 of the forty-three million dollar investment; which I believe 

7 day.one was maybe sixty percent, with Canyon Capital having 

8 maybe twenty- five to thirty percent and John Hancock having 

9 ten percent of the debt. so there were three part·icipants in 

10 this. 

11 At one point DDJ came to us, a couple years after we 

12 owned - - wi thin a year or a year-ancl-a-half after we opened 

13 the property, and said, one of our funds that holds three 

14 mi lli on dollars o f t hi s debt needs to sell and liquidate this 

15 debt, we're going .to go out and sel l it to whomever will buy 

16 it. And, i n fact, they were going to hire Jess Ravich to --

17 to sell it for them. And they asked us if we wanted to buy 

18 it. And so we said. thirteen percent, I'd rather ,be paying 

19 myself than payi ng them. And it -- we felt that the -- you 

20 know, at that point the property was performing very well and 

21 that, you know, the property was worth well in excess of the 

22 debt. So we of fered it to everybody and and we bought it 

23 -- various people bought it, but some -- but Eri c did not; he 

24 chose not to. 
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, 
Q And -- and it was offered to Eri c at the same time 

2 it was offered to you, is t hat correct? 

3 A Absoluteiy. 

4 Q Now, l et' s look at a bit -- you had indicated that 

5 -- I think your words were t hat the business has been signi 

6 your profi ts have significantly increased, business has 

7 s i gnificantly i ncreased for the Silver Sl i pper over the last 

8 year; is that correct? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q How do you see the future going? Let's say, how do 

11 you see the f uture. goi ng without a hotel being built? 

12 A Well , I think that we can continue to perform well 

13 into 2011. And we.'ve just submitted to all of t he member --

14 the -- the managers, our budget for 2011; which - - which Jess 

15 Ravich has· approved, and which Loren and I have approved, and 

16 we're awaiting Eric's approval, which he indicated he would 

17 give us about a week ago, but we haven't gotten it. That 

18 budget called for a -- for a budget EBI TOA of about eleven 

19 seven, eleven million six and fif t y or thereabouts. An 

20 improvement of two to three hundred thousand dollars over 

21 where we thi nk we wi l l end this year. 

22 There are obviousl y uncertainties about the -- you 

23 know, whether this; economic recovery can continue. But we 

24 certai nly feel we �~ �a�n� continue t o do better. But we don' t 
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think that we can make major i ncreases in our cash f low 

2 without capital investment like a hotel. 

3 Q Okay. 

4 A I think we're going to be just grinding along as we 

5 have. And if you look at '08 as opposed t o '09, it was in the 

6 eleven you know, it was in that kind " of range. 

7 Q Can you give us an idea if if you build. a hotel 

8 on the site, can you give us an idea any projections made 

9 as to what the EBITDA would be in that situation? 

10 A Our ansite management personnel have -- have done a 

11 pro pro formas, and obviously we needed those to be able to 

12 demonstrate to whomever that this project would make sense, 

13 and we've projected in the neighborhood of four to five 

14 million doll ar s of incremental EBITDA. 

15 And the beauty of it is that if we do - - if we can 

16 do the bond financing, where you have current interest rates 

17 at less than a half of percent and maybe a letter of credit 

18 fee of a point-and-a-quarter is today's market, so you're 

19 paying less than two percent' on, say for the sake of argument 

20 thirteen-and-a-half million dollars. You know, you're paying 

21 less than four hundred thousand 'dollars in interest, and even 

22 if you -- and it's a twenty- five year instrument generally. 

23 So even if you amortize it another half a million, it's --

24 it's additive o f , you know, three to f our million doll ars of 
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1 -- of cash flow whi ch coul d be used to pay down debt and which 

2 could obviously enhance the value of the property by ten 

3 million dollars or more. 

4 Q As you sit here today do you foresee a hotel being 

5 constructed on the property? 

6 A NO. 

7 Q Not at -- not at all at any time in the future? 

8 A Oh, I fo.resee somebody's going to do it. I can't 

9 foresee that we're going to do it. But anybody -- but it's 

10 it's -- it would make no sense for someone who were to 

11 purchase the property from us to buy it without the notion 

12 that this is one of the the assets that they see i n a way 

13 that they would enhance their yield by immediately taking our 

14 plan and �i�m�p�l�e�m�e�n�~�i�n�g� it, and, you know, I think that they 

15 would achieve that that increase in value. 

16 Q Okay. 

17 A So, yes, I see a hotel being built, but I can't be 

18 assured that it wil l be built by us. 

19 Q Are you are you giving up any effort to build the 

20 hotel, or are you .still pursuing that? 

21 A I think as I've testified, I'm stil l pursuing it. I 

22 met yesterday with a major bank and talked to them about 

23 refinancing and talked to them about a fund -- an entity that 

24 they have that actually could avoid the bank regulations and 
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--------------------------------------_._----_ ... _-_.,.-

I is more of an equity investor that could possibly, you know 

2 and theY're studying it. And I don't -- I'm not optimistic 

3 because I t hink it's a stretch in today's lending environment. 

4 I think it'S getting better, but it's still tough. But we're 

5 trying . And I'll pursue every possibility and opportunity 

6 that's out there. 

7 As I leave here I'm going to meet with other 

8 investment bankers to talk to them about what they think the 

9 value of the property is and whether they think that there are 

10 other options to �r�~�f�i�n�a�n�c�e�.� I'm -- I'm having these kinds of 

II conversations on a daily basis. This i s at the top of my 

12 priority l i st. 

I3 Q Wel l, I think we'r e going to let you get on the top 

14 of your priority list and -- and trouble you no longer here 

15 and let you get out and make some money. 

16 MR. DICKERSON: So I have no further questions. 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: One thing I will tell you is that he 

18 speaks for himself. I do have some more questions. 

19 THE WITNESS: No problem. 

20 PAUL ALANIS 

21 testified as follows on: 

22 REDIRECT EXAMIWATIQN 

23 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

24 Q This will be brief however. 
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1 MR. DICKERSON: Another hour. 

2 Q would it be a fair statement that the insinuation 

3 that opposing counsel tried to put in your mouth, that Eric 

4 said to you i n August that he was trying to beat Lynita Qut of 

5 her interest in Silver Slipper, was not how you interpreted 

6 Mr . Nelson's words; correc t? 

7 A That's correct. 

8 Q Okay. Next, the thirteen-and-a- hal f million, I'm 

9 asking if your -- maybe need to be corrected o r not . Isn't 

10 the thirteen-paint-five milli on dollar l etter of credit that 

11 Dennis, who you've identified as Dennis Troesh , and/or jointly 

12 with Mr. Nelson, Eric Nelson, was to acquire the land lease? 

13 A No. That was separate. 

14 Q Okay. woul dn't it be -- Okay. I ' m asking you, 

J5 weren' t you talki ng about two instruments? Weren' t you 

16 talking about a thirteen-point- five million dollar exercise o f 

17 land lease and then a fifteen million dollar letter of credit 

18 posted on behalf of Silver Sli pper? 

19 A These are two separat e but coul d be related types o f 

20 transactions . And t hen they --

21 Q So t hen my r evisiting the prior questiOn. 

22 A Okay. 

23 Q Maybe it's just because I -- I see the similarity in 

24 the numbers . Wasn' t the thirteen-point-five millio n rel ating 
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to the land lease acquisition, as opposed to a letter of 

2 credit for a hundred and fifty room hotel? 

3 A It -- it , might well have been that we were talking 

4 about fifteen mililon as being the top number. But·I wil l 

5 tell you that we've thought we could potentially, when we 

6 actually bid the project out, bring it in for something closer 

7 to the thirteen- and- a- half million dollar number. But there 

8 is some confusion between those numbers. 

9 Q Okay. 

10 A I believe we were talking about potentially a letter 

II of credit as much as fifteen million dollars. 

12 Q I use �t�h�~� phrase common sense when I speak to the 

13 j udges or jur i es. It makes common sense that nobody's posting 

14 a l etter of credit· until they solve the land lease issue, 

15 because you're not; going to build a hotel for a hundred and 

16 fifty rooms for twenty-two years. 

17 A Well, that -- that wasn't necessarily the case. 

18 Because there is a: provision in the land lease where four 

19 acres of property. Can be released from it for a paydown. of two 

20 million dollars, which would be credited to the exercise 

21 price 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

Never --. never heard of that. 

-- the tpirteen- and-a-half. 

Never heard of that. 
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A And so there was discussion about the fact that we 

2 could go one of two ways. We could add two mi l lion dollars to 

3 the bond financing and pay down Mike Cure two mi l lion dollars 

4 and release the four acres so that the hotel could be built on 

5 a fee - -

6 Q Now that you received 

7 A piece of property; or alternatively what I had 

8 suggested to Eric was that -- and it seemed to make the most 

9 sense - - was buy the land -- he'd expressed interest in buying 

JO the land. I said, fine, I thi nk t hat I would support the 

11 Silver Slipper assigning its rights to you to buy the land. 

12 And then use the land as security for the letter of credi t. 

!3 Q So it's a twenty-eight million dollar issue t hen? 

14 A Not really. It 's a thirteen-and- a- half millio n 

15 dol lar issue. Because if we could get it built for thirteen-

16 and-a-half million dollars, and you put ,thirteen-and- a- half 

17 million dollars up for the l and -- so you pay cash -- assuming 

18 you paid cash for the land of thirteen-and-a-half million 

19 dol lars, t hen you use that land that is now owned by Eric 

20 Nelson i n fee, as the col l ateral for getting a letter of 

21 credit issued. And the thirteen-and-a-half million dollars 

22 would come from the State Revenue Bonds secured by a bank 

23 letter of credit, which i'n turn was secured by the land. 

24 Q So you increase t he debt t hrough t he letter of 
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credit secured by the underlying thi rteen million dollars of 

2 real estate? 

3 A Yes . Well, the total investment in the proper ty was 

4 going to go up thirteen- and- a - hal f million dollars, if that's 

5 what you're asking, for the cost of the construction project 

6 to get the hotel. So our -- our ultimate basis if you will or 

7 investment in the property would go up thirteen- and-a-half 

8 million dollars. We would owe those bonds to -- we'd borrow 

9 the bonds. 

10 Q Right. 

I I A we'd owe now an additional thirteen- and-a-half 

12 million dollars to the State of Mississippi. But we felt that 

13 by building the hotel we could add twenty to thirty million 

14 dollars of val ue to the property. 

15 MR. NELSON: But nobody did i t. 

16 Q But nobody's done it, right? 

17 A Nobody's done it. 

18 Q And you've been trying to refinance for the last 

19 f i ve years? 

20 A No . We've been trying to re --

21 Q You've been trying to refinance since before you 

22 opened up for business in 2006, isn't that true? 

23 A No. Not really. I wish we could have. But I don' t 

24 think that we ever -- we never seriously tried to refinance 
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it, because we didn't have a track record or any kind of , you 

2 know, period of revenue. And then 

3 Q well, �t �h�~ �n� when did you start attempting to 

4 r ef inance i n earnest? 

5 A Over the: last couple of years. I mean, and frankly, 

6 we've never felt �-�~� last year because of the -- the economic 

7 performance of the property, refinancing wasn't really 

8 realistic. That's-why we went to sell, because we -- we 

9 figured maybe we could l ook, we should try, and the and 

10 . the lender was putting pressure on us to do it. So we said, 

11 fine, we'll go out there. But we al l agr eed. among oursel ves 

12 t hat we weren't going to give this away. 

13 Q Understood. 

14 MR. J I MMERSON: Wou ld you mark this as Exhibit 216 A-2, 

15 please? 

16 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON HANDS A DOCUMENT TO THE CLERK. ) 

17 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

18 Q Did -- Beware I listen to t he questi ons and answers. 

19 Mr. Dickerson wanted to know if ecce was provided to you 

20 during the �d�e�p�o�s�i�t�~�o�n�,� and you indicated no. I think --

21 A Well --

22 Q -- it was said t o you, pursuant to a request that 

23 you made of me in the deposition . Do you recall your 

24 testimony? 
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A I thought that -- I mean, my recollection was - -

2 Q Well, you happen to be right, so don't worry about 

3 it . Okay. That' s exactly how it carne about. 

4 (LAUGHTER. ) 

5 A Okay. 

6 Q All �r�i�g�h�~ �.� I want to show you t he cover letter, the 

7 emai l that you sent Mr. Alanis, Exhibit 216 A- 2, and ask do 

8 you recall sending to Mr. Dickerson an email that is 

.9 ref erenced in that document? 

10 (WHEREUPON, MR . JIMMERSON RECEIVES A DOCUMENT FROM THE 

11 CLERK AND HANDS IT .TO THE WITNESS.) 

12 MR. J I MMERSON: Do we have copi es for the Judge? 

13 MS. POLSELLI: Yes. 

14 MR. DICKERSON; Do you have a copy for me? 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: Where did I place copies f or Mr. 

16 Dickerson? Where? Guys, help me out . 

17 MS. POLSELLI : Righ t here. Ri ght here, 

18 THE WITNESS: Yes, I recall this. 

19 (PLAI NTIFF 'S EXHI BIT 216 A- 2 IS IDENTI FIED.) 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. DICKERSON: Thank you, 

(WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON HANDS A DOCUMENT TO THE COURT.) 

MR. JIMMERSON: 216, Your Honor. 

Move for ' submission, Your Honor, Exhi bit 216 A-2.-

MR. DI CKERSON: No objection, Your Honor. 
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THE COURT: Ie's hereby admitted as 216 A-2. 

2 (PLAINTI FF'S EXHIBIT 216 A- 2 IS ADMITTED. I 

3 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

4 Q Now. am I correct, Mr. Alanis, to ask, was Exhibit 

5 ecce the document that you're referring to when you wrote t hi s 

6 email, Exhibit 216 A-2? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Okay. Thank you. 

9 (Reading) Dear Mr. Di ckerson, attached is a schedule 

10 of the total management fees paid to Eric Nelson or Dynasty as 

II he's directed us, since the i nception of �o�~ �e �r�a�t�i �o �n�s� at the 

12 Silver Slipper. The total fee is not exactly twenty percent 

13 of the total because for a period of time several years ago 

14 Eric ' s share was a fee of t en percent and not twenty percent. 

15 The deferred unpaid portion of such fees is approx i mately a 

16 hundred and thirty-two thousand dol lars. But thi s shoul d not 

17 be considered an asset of Eric'S or Dynasty, as this amount is 

18 substantial ly offset by t he real location of management fees 

19 that occurs upon a sal e of t he property. To explain, the 

20 management fee was supposed to be cal culated, and i n fact 

21" initially was, on gaming revenues bef ore gaming taxes. But 

22 shortly after we opened our lenders disagreed with this to 

23 so t he fee was thereafter paid based upon gaming r evenues 

24 after taxes, but s till accrued based upon gami ng revenues 
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before taxes. Thus as between the partners the agreement 

2 remains i ntact t hat t he management fees accrue and are 

3 ul timately payable based on gaming revenue before gami ng 

4 taxes, as set forth i n t he attached letter which demonstrates 

5 such agreement. 

6 A Um-hrnm. 

7 Q On a sale - - So did you -- did you send him also, 

8 Mr. Dickerson, a C?py of that agreement? 

9 A I believe I did. 

10 Q Yeah, 1 ,-- he hasn't produced it , I haven't seen it, 

11 but I think I �h�a�v�~� it. 

12 MR. J IMMERSON : Can I j uSt show you t his? 

13 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON HANDS MR. DICKERSON A 

14 DCCUMENT . I 

15 MS. POLSELLI : I have copies. 216 A-3. 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Okay. 

17 MR . DICKERSON: Is this for me? 

18 MR . JIMMERSON: Can you mark this, Madam �~�l�e�r�k�,� as 216 A-

19 3, please? 

20 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON HANDS A DOCUMENT TO THE CLERK 

21 AND TO THE COURT, THEN HANDS THE DOCUMENT TO THE WI TNESS.) 

22 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

23 Q I'm showi ng you what's been marked as pr oposed 

24 Exhibit 216 A-3, is this the lett er agreement about which you 
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--------------------------------_.-_ .. " 

spoke, which speaks t o management fees based upon revenues 

2 before deduction of gaming taxes? 

3 A Yes. 

4 (PLAINTIFF 'S EXHIBIT 216 A-3 IS IDENTI FIED . ) 

5 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for its admi ssion, Your Honor, 216 

6 A- 3. 

7 MR. DI CKERSON: No objection. 

g THE COURT: All right. It's so admitted. 

9 (PLAINTIFF'S EXHI BI T 216 A-3 IS ADMITTED . ) 

\I Q Okay. Now, let's continue with your email if we 

12 could, because t hat' s the narrative. Okay. So now you say, 

13 (Reading) On a sale, t heref or e, Eric's sale of net 

14 proceeds would be charged f or his approxi mately forty-three 

15 percent of such �f�e�~�s�.� He would then get t wenty percent of the 

16 addi t ional f ees, but his share of fees is twenty-three percent 

17 l ess than his share of proceeds. So thi s would result as of 

18 July 2010 i n a debi t to Eric in favor of Silver Slipper Gaming 

19 of appr oximately a hundred and t wenty-three thousand dollars. 

20 We have provided calculations to show thi s reallocation of 

21 management fees an9 how this woul d i mpact Eric's ultimate 

22 share of proceeds.: If this is confusing, call and we will try 

23 to explain i t fu rther. Very trul y your s. 

24 Okay . . Did Mr. Dickerson call after you sent t hi s 
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email to him? 

2 A Not that I recall. 

3 Q All right. I find it confusing. 

4 MR. DICKERSON: I do too. 

5 Q Okay. Would you please help us again -- I mean, I 'm 

6 not saying you haven't here -- but --

7 A well 

8 Q educate the Judge , myself and opposing counsel as 

9 to how these parties have a debt to your gaming management 

10 company of a hundred and twenty- three thousand dollars. 

II A It's basically an overpayment for three or four 

12 years. If the -- i f the fees had been calculated and divided 

13 based upon t hi s agreement f rom the beginning, the amount of 

14 money t hat would've been received by Eric would've been that 

15 much money less during the three plus years that he was 

16 getting the fees. 

17 Q Okay. Now, assuming 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q -- that you are - - your earlier testimony i n the 

20 deposition was incorrect, and assuming that we now have an 

21 understanding t hat the company might owe management f ees of 

22 about a hundred and t hir t y-two thousand dollars, do I 

23 understand then that thi s potential asset, if and whenever 

24 paid, is a hundred and thirty- two minus a hundred and twenty-
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1 three, or nine thousand bucks? 

2 A Yes. And what I -- and after I discovered this I 

3 told Loren Ostrow that we should not by any means have an 

4 offset that was more than what was the calculati on, so that we 

5 should reconcile this. 

6 Q 

7 A 

8 basis. 

9 Q 

Okay. 

And we should keep it reconciled on an ongoing 

And you sent this information to Mr. Dickerson on , 
10 August 30th of 2019? 

II A Yes. 

12 Q All right. 

13 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS.) 

14 Q So does this help you -- does it help us to get 

15 does it help you in terms of your testimony, evidence the fact , 

16 that there's only been limited payments to Mr. Nelson or to 

17 
, 

Dynasty in the year of 20l0? 

18 A Yes . 

19 Q �S�p�e�c�i�f�i�c�~�l�l�y� only three payments? 

20 A At that time. 

21 Q And no payments since May through August 30th? 

22 A Through whatever the date of this is. 

23 Q Okay. Let's look at it together. Maybe I was 

24 wrong. 
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1 A Or let me put it this way, through the date of this 

2 letter. 

3 Q Through June 2010? 

4 A Right. 

5 Q Or through August 30th of two thousand --

6 A Well, no. Through whatever date this letter is. 

7 Q August 30th. 

8 A Okay. F.ine. Yes. 

9 Q Okay. And you don't have personal knowledge of 

10 �~�n�y�t�h�i�n�g� being paid for the months of September, October or 

11 November? 

12 A No. Other than I told Loren that we needed to do 

13 that. But it 's not something that I look at every day. So I 

14 do not have any personal knowledge. 

15 Q All right. 

16 (BRIEF PAUSE WHILE MR. JIMMERSON REVIEWS DOCUMENTS.) 

17 Q If and when you as the managing members choose to 

18 make a distribution for management fee to Mr. Nelson, is it 

19 your managers -- your majority interest intent, in accordance 

20 with the Exhibit 216 A-2, to calculat e the management fee 

21 based upon revenues prior to deducting gaming taxes and then 

22 applying eighty and twenty as a percentage? I n other words, 

23 are you goi ng to try to correct the overpayment? 

24 A Yes. 
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1 Q Okay. Do I -- I 'm asking this question, did you 

2 overpay yourselves in the last four years, by doing the same 

3 methodology that you did to Mr. Nelson or to Dynasty? In 

4 other words, you paid management fees based upon numbers after 

5 subtracting gaming taxes,. and therefore you overpaid Mr. 

6 Nelson, according to your testimony. I'm wondering if you 

7 also overpaid yourselves for the last four years, eighty 

8 percent of that money? 

9 A No. No . We -- we've done the calculations so that 

10 we would calculate the management fees fr om day one based upon 

II applying t hat agreement, looked at how much had been paid, and 

12 then adjusted accordingl y. 

13 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS.) 

14 Q I'm not certain I agree. 

15 A And so we've we've given Eric his twenty percent 

16 credit for -- You see, Eric gets twenty percent of the fees, 

17 but he pays forty- three percent of the fees, because he owns 

18 forty-three percent of the company. 

19 Q Right. 

20 A So forty-three percent of it is coming out of his 

21 share of profits if you will, and he's getting twenty percent· 

22 of that. 

23 Q 

24 A 

Right. 

So it's that twenty- three percent difference that 
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we've been giving him from the beginning that we were trying 

2 to reconcile through this process. 

3 Q well, look a t the dol l ars that y ou've paid 

4 yourselves. You reviewed -- shown that here. 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q For the years 2010, as an example. 

7 A Right. 

8 Q You �k�n�o�~�,� you had -- in August of 2008, sixty-f our 

9 thousand is the total fee --

10 A Uh-huh. 

I I Q -- twelve thousand paid to -- is the share amount 

12 based upon t wenty per cent 

13 A Right. 

14 Q -- nothing paid, ri ght? 

15 A well --

16 Q I mean, that'S what this exhibit that you sent Mr. 

17 Dickerson shows. 

18 (BRIEF PAUSE WHILE THE WITNESS REVIEWS A DOCUMENT. ) 

19 A And I don't know when -- there was a period of time 

20 when none of us were getting fees and they were accrued. So I 

21 don't know how we made t hose back up to Eric. 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

Okay, 

But 

And then let's look at 2010 where there was 
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something paid. 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q Let's use t he month of February. 

4 A Right. 

5 Q Sixty-two thousand in revenues --

6 A Um- hmm. 

7 Q -- i n management fee revenues --

8 A Um-hmm. 

9 Q -- based upon, I presume, two percent of the gross, 

10 y ou're having a good month, three million bucks or something; 

11 and twelve thousand to Eric, of which twelve thousand was 

12 paid. Do you see that? 

13 A Right. 

14 Q Now, her.e's my question . You ' ve testified -- I ' ve 

15 heard your testimony clearly --

16 A vm-hmm. 

17 Q -- that ' the ot her fifty t housand went to your 

18 company? 

19 A well -- well, that's an eighty-twenty split right 

20 there. 

21 Q I understand. That other -- that other fifty 

22 thousand went to your company? 

23 A 

24 Q 

Correct; 

My question to you is, you're saying to us that 
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1 twelve t housand i s an overpayment; why isn't the fifty 

2 thousand dollars to your company also an overpayment? 

3 A Oh, no, I'm not saying that the twelve thousand was 

4 an overpayment. I'm saying the payments we didn't make were 

5 the payments that �~�- the payments that we made to Eric are --

6 we made t hem and he is entitled to them. What we' re saying 

7 is, those payments that we missed, the payments that are --

8 never have been made to Eric, represent a reallocation of that 

9 fee based upon that agreement. 

10 Q Well , why didn't you tell Mr. Nelson that? 

II A We did. 

12 Q Where? I see no correspondence from you saying, 

13 Eric, you know, we are not paying you for an entire six-month 

14 time period . or we're not paying you since June of 2010. 

15 because we' re reallocating dollars. 

16 A Well, once again, this isn't something that I do on 

17 a daily basis. I'm dealing on other matters. But it was 

18 always my understanding that Eric knew what was happening. If 

19 he didn't. then I -- then we are at fault f or not having made 

20 it clear to him what was happening. 

21 Q Mr. Alanis, isn't it true that the agreement between 

22 the parties was as you said, but modified in one important 

23 distinction and that is. you weren't to take the excess until 

24 sale of the property? 
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A I under stand. And we were in t he process of tryi ng 

2 to sell the property. And I will be the first to acknowledge 

3 that we didn't want to get in the position of having t o chase 

4 Eric for the money- after we sold it. Okay? So we --

5 (WHEREUPON, MR . J I MMERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS.). 

6 Q You must be listening 

7 A there's 

8 Q t o �t�~�i�s� divorce to know how broke the man is. 

9 (LAUGHTER. I 

10 MS. NELSON: Dh, heavens. 

1 1 A So there was -- so there is some element of self 

12 help in this, though we felt that i t was certainly in 

13 accordance with the spirit of the agreement and the intent of 

14 the agreement, and we were i n t he process of t rying to sell 

15 the property. 

16 Q I just want to tell you, I don't possibly agree with 

17 that last answer. 

18 A All right. 

19 Q So The Court understands, the first sentence of the 

20 second paragraph 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q -- i n �E�~�h�i�b�i�t� 216 A- 3 says, The undersigned hereby 

23 confirms that t heir agreement that on or after the liquidity 

24 date the owners shal l be authorized to make a special payment 
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1 to the operator i n an amount equal to the accumulative amount 

2 of management fees that were not paid to the operator under 

3 the agreement as a result of, quote, applicable state gaming 

4 taxes, end of quote, having been deducted in calculating net 

5 gaming revenues during the period from February 1 , 2007 to the 

6 date of measurement. 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Okay. So you're right, ·you' r e self helping against 

9 t he Nelsons by taking money, coll ecting money t hat's not owed 

10 until the liquidity date, which is a defined term under the 

11 management agreement -- or the operating agreement, for sale 

12 o f the property, in advance of when it was due to you; 

13 correct? 

14 A I -- I acknowledge that. 

15 Q 00 what? 

16 A Yes. 

17 Q Okay. Would you say that that would be a legitimate 

18 difference of opinion in your procedur es versus that of Mr. 

19 Nelson? 

20 A When you say difference of a procedure --

21 Q I mean, would you agree that that would be a 

22 position that Mr. Nelson wouldn't agree with, to have you 

23 A 

24 Q 

Potentially, yes. 

-- self help yourself? Okay. 
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A Yes. 

2 Q All right . And the last area is, Mr . Nelson 

3 manages, as the managing member i f y ou will, Dynasty 

4 Development, LLC; correct? 

S A Yes. 

6 Q Al l righ,t . And 

7 A I assume so. 

8 Q -- and Dynasty as an entity owns about forty- t wo 

9 percent before dilution, is that right? 

10 A Correct. 

II Q Okay. And Okay. And he actively manages Dynasty 

12 Dev elopment, isn't t hat true? 

13 MR . DICKERSON: Object, must lay the foundation. 

14 A I --

IS Q Has anybody 

16 MR. DICKERSON: How would he know? 

17 Q -- does ,anybody else speak for Dynasty? 

18 A Not that I'm aware of. 

19 Q Okay. So all communicati ons have been with him on 

20 behalf of Dynasty, your forty - two percent member, righ t? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Okay. And you've indi.cated t hat it's passive in the 

23 sense he doesn't work at the hotel, he's not fielding phone 

24 calls regar d i ng sales; that's something that you reserve for 
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yourself and Loren Ostrow, correct? 

2 MR. DICKERSON: Objecti on, t hat's not what he said. He's 

3 not managing --

4 A Well --

5 MR. DICKERSON: -- Silver Slipper. We're talking --

6 Q He's not. managing 

7 MR. DICKERSON: -- two different enti ties. 
, 

8 Q -- Sil ver Sl i pper? 

9 A Well, it's much -- -

10 MR. DICKERSON: And they shouldn' t be confusing --

11 A -- much more i nvol ved t han that. I mean, we' r e not 

12 just managing sal es and that. We're invol ved in every --

13 every decision - -

14 Q All right . 

15 A -- at the property, marketing --

16 Q And --

17 A deci s i ons 

18 Q and Mr . Nelson's 

19 A employment --

20 Q en tity, Dynasty, is less involved, because 

21 they're not a party t o the management agreement, correct? 

22 A That' s correct. 

23 Q Okay. So they're not a manager of Silver Slipper 

24 Casino ventures, LLC? They are a shareholder of that company 
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through Dynasty, correct? 

2 A Correct. ' 

3 Q Al l right . And Mr. Nelson operates Dynast y, or 

4 speaks on its behalf, as far as you know? 

5 A As far as I know. 

6 Q And he directs two of the five board members of the 

7 board of managers t . correct? 

8 A Yes. 

9 Q Okay. So in a management meeting he's certainl y 

10 actively involved. isn't he? 

1 1 A Yes. 

12 Q He was active 

13 A In iIi a --

14 Q in his dissent on a three- to-two vote --

15 A Correct. 

16 Q -- forty-five days ago, right? 

17 A I think I've stated, and I wil l state again, t hat 

18 with respect to matters involving the board of managers, Eric 

19 is obviously involved and heavily i nvolved given his position 

20 and his ownership interest. 

21 Q All right. Now, do you know whether or not Dynasty 

22 compensates Mr . Nelson for any of his t i me? 

23 A I have no idea. 

24 Q Okay. Al l right. Then that's al l I have. Thank 

0-09 · 41153 7 -1) NELSON 11/17/10 PARTI AL TRANSCRIPT 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAM IL Y DIVISION 1'RANSCRIPT VI DEO SERVICES 

601 N . · Pecos Road, Las Vega ! , Nevada B9101 1702 ) 45 5 - 4977 166 



1 you, sir. 

2 PAUL ALANIS 

3 testified as follows on: 

4 RECROSS EXAMINATION 

5 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

6 Q Sir, do you receive 

7 THE COURT: Mr. Dickerson, do you want any follow up? 

8 MR . DICKERSON: Yeah. 

9 BY MR. DICKERSON, 

10 Q DO you receive any compensation for being on the 

II board of managers? 

12 A NO. 

13 Q Does anybody receive any compensation f or being on 

14 the board of managers? 

15 A No. 

16 Q NOw, wi th respec t to these management fees and the 

17 accrued amount, I'm trying to understand this because it is 

18 confusing. Did you overpay yourself, or did you -- did your 

19 entity, Silver Slipper -- What ' s it called, Silver Slipper - -

20 A Silver Slipper Gaming. 

21 MS. NELSON: Gaming. 

22 Q -- Silver Sli pper Gaming, were they overpaid at some 

23 point in time with respect t o the management fee? 

24 A No . 
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1 Q Okay. And - - and explain that. Why were they not 

2 ov erpaid, yet Eric Nelson was overpai d? 

3 A Because if you apply the agreement, 'it's not an 

4 eighty-twenty split, it's maybe an eighty-four-sixteen split. 

5 And yet for three years we've been paying Eri c twenty percent. 

6 Q Okay. 

7 A Is that a better way to understand it? 

8 Q All right . So I'm trying to understand the 

9 agreement that you reached with Eric. 

10 MR. DICKERSON: Which exhibit is this, the --
11 MR. JIMMERSON: Whi ch one? 

12 MR. DICKERSON: -- special management program? 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: A- 3 --
14 MS. POLSELLI: 216 -- 216 A-3. 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: 216 A-3. 

16 MR . DICKERSON: I'rn sorry? 

17 MR . JIMMERSON: 216 A- 3. 

18 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

19 Q Okay. 216 A-3 --

20 A So 

21 Q if I i nterpret this, at the t ime of the sale wil l 

22 Eri c Nelson get the arrear - - the the accrued amount back? 

23 A No. 

24 Q And why not? 
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A Okay. Let me try to explain it one more time. If 

2 Let me give you. an example --

3 MR . J IMMERSON: Because it says no. 

4 MR. DICKERSON: Hold on. 

5 A if there are -- if there are in a given month 

6 five hundred thousand dollars of gaming taxes, that the 

7 management fee under the side agreement would pay t en thousand 

8 dollars to t he managers for, two percent, but has not been 

9 paid because the l ,enders wouldn't let it get paid, then Eric 

10 would pay forty-three hundred dollars of that amount and get 

11 back two t housand dollars of that amount. So he would be 

12 negative twenty-three hundred, but we never did t hat. We 

13 basically gave him t he ful l f orty-three hundred dollars. So 

14 or we credited him wit h -- we never char ged him that twenty 

15 that twenty-three hundred dollar difference. And so that 

16 was how and if you go all the way back and reconcile it and 

17 " you can do the math, t hat's what the number comes up. 

18 Q Okay. So is it fair to state then, if you take a 

19 l ook at Exhibit eccc and - - and -- together with your your 

20 email to me, which is 216 A- 2, that t he actual amount of t he 

21 -- the deferred management f ee t hat ' s owed to Eric Nelson a t 

22 this point is n ine thousand dollars? 

23 A Yes. 

24 Q All right. And ther e is no chance that he can get 
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1 any more than nine? 

2 A Unless Well, let me say this, that's what the - -

3 t hat'S what that was at that period of t ime. If there if 

4 he hasn ' t received· any fees, it's more than nine i f we've 

5 gotten any fees, and we need to pay h i m that. 

6 Q Okay. And as you sit here today you don't know what 

7 the accrued amount is? 

8 A I don ' t. But I'm going to go back and find out . 

9 Q Okay. And then in the future he'S entitled to 

10 receive 

II A His ongoi ng percentage. 

12 Q Which is t wenty percent? 

13 A wel l, i f we go back to then -- if we follow what 

14 we've been doing dur ing the last year, it would be less t han 

15 twenty percent, it would be something around sixteen percent 

16 or something around that. Because that'S how the fees get --

17 when you take i nto account adding· back in the gaming tax 

18 the fee attributable to gaming taxes, it turns out to be a 

19 d i fferent percentage split between us. 

20 Q Okay. 

21 THE COURT: So r ight now he should be getting s i xteen 

22 per cent of - -

23 THE WITNESS: Rough --

24 THE COURT: -- any management fees that you're getting 
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appr oximately? That would be --

2 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

3 THE COURT: - - his portion of it --

4 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

5 THE COURT: -- adjusted for the gaming? 

6 THE WITNESS: Correct. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: Thank you. Nothing f urther. 

8 PAUL ALANIS 

9 testified as follows on: 

10 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

II BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

12 Q I have three questions. vou ar e at your lender's 

13 mercy right. now, fair, stat ement? 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q You are out of -- out of covenant in several aspects 

16 of your existing loan, correct? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q They could require and record or send you a noti ce 

19 of breach, correct? 

20 A Notice of def ault. Yes. 

21 Q Notice of default. And if they do so that 

22 terminates the management fees, isn't that true? 

23 A 

24 Q 

It def ers chern. 

Defers them. So it means that you can't pay them? 
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--------------_ .. _._-- .. 

And if you pay them you incur personal 

2 A If there's a payment 

3 Q financial 

4 A defau.lt --

5 Q obligation? 

6 A if there's a payment default, it's a hundred 

7 percent, If it's a covenant default, it's like fifty percent. 

8 Q So you would reduce or not pay management fees i n 

9 such an event taken by the lender? 

10 A That is correct. 

II Q Okay. And then last l y, does any of the other 

12 partners, like Mr. Ravich, pay their pr oporti onate share of 

13 t he gaming taxes bef ore taking consideration of their 

14 management fee? 

15 A He doesn't get part of the management fee. So he 

16 owes it to us though upon -- he owes i t to us. But he - -

17 but 

18 Q See, and you just gave me everything I needed, 

19 because he hasn't paid it along the way and you haven't 

20 deducted it from him like you have Mr. Nelson all along 

21 A No. No. 

22 Q -- the way. 

23 A There' s nothing to deduct. He' s not getting any 

24 payments. He's never received a penny. 
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Q You said he's been overpaid and he owes it to you . 

2 You said he owes it 

3 A No. No. 

4 Q -- to us. 

5 A Please let me corr ect my statement if you -- if you 

6 thought I said that. Mr. Ravich has never received a penny of 

7 compensati on of any form, other than maybe an investment 

8 banking fee at the beginning of doing this deal. But he 

9 doesn 't -- he doesn't participate -- Eric negotiated for a 

10 piece of the management f ee --

II Q Right. 

12 A -- not Mr. Ravich. 

13 Q Right. 

14 A So he has never received anything from Silver 

15 Slipper of any kind. 

16 Q And you look to Eric as wel l as yourself and your 

17 own resources and those of Mr. Ostrow and Mr. Ravich to try to 

18 aid the project, correct? 

19 A As best we can. 

20 Q Okay. I mean, you are one of the leaders, and Eric, 

21 to the extent that he represents forty-two percent, is a 

22 leader in terms of trying to benefit t his casino project; 

23 correct? 

24 A We all have a mutuality of interest in that regard. 
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1 Q Which is why you've asked Mr. Nelson to try to find 

2 Mr . Dennis Troesh to come forward, or somebody else to bail 

3 you out of this predicament; correct? 

4 A Well, I didn't ask -- Please, don't put words in my 

5 mouth. I didn't ask him to find Dennis. He carne forward to 

6 me and told me that he had a relationship with this fellow 

7 Dennis, and that they could provide this letter of credit; and 

8 I said fantasti c. 

9 Q Okay. Well, have you sought out to obtain a letter 

10 of credit on behal f of your company? 

11 A Yes . 

12 Q Okay. Have you not been successful? 

13 A I have not . 

14 Q Has Mr. Nelson made an effort to do so? 

15 A I assume so. 

16 Q Okay. 

17 A But I don't know i f he'S made an effort beyond 

18 Dennis and himself. I just don't know that. 

19 Q There may not that many people capable of doing that 

20 or wi l ling to do that (sic). Has Mr. Ravich made an effor t to 

21 try to obtain a lender, as the investment banker? 

22 I -- I can't -- I don't - - I don't know the answer 

23 to that question. 

24 Q Okay, Has your partner, Mr. Ostrow, made an effort? 
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A well . whatever we do, we're doing --

2 Q Okay. 

3 A -- in collaboration. 

4 Q All right. Thank you very much, sir. 

5 �~�.� JIMMERSON: Thank you . No further questions. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: I have nothing further, Your Honor . 

7 THE COURT: Thank you, sir. I appreciate you making 

8 yourself available, to The Court. 

9 THE WITNESS: Absolutely , 

IO THE COURT: And obviously you're -- you knew exactly 

II you'd be -- you knew three o'cl ock as attorneys' time, so you 

12 knew -- So I do appreciate you making yourself available for 

13 everybody. I do appreciate it. 

14 THE WITNESS: Thank , Your Honor. 

15 . THE COURT: Thank you , sir. 

16 THE WITNESS: Thank y ou. 

17 THE COURT: And have a nice safe trip. 

18 THE WITNESS: Thank you . 

19 MR. DICKERSON: He's an att orney himself. He knew --

20 THE COURT : That's right. 

21 THE WITNESS: Wel l 

22 THE COURT: And make sure you drop some money in our 

23 gaming facilities, ' al l right. We don't want that state i ncome 

24 tax, so make sure you drop a l i tt le bi t here before you leave. 
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1 All right? 

2 MR . JIMMERSON: Judge, I can assure --

3 THE WITNESS: That's right. Exactly. 

4 MR. J IMMERSON: -- Judge, I can assure you this 

5 afternoon's experience has convinced him conf i rmed wi th him 

6 the wisdom of leaving the l aw practice. 

7 (LAUGHTER. I 

8 THE WITNESS: well, is that on t he record? Amen. 

9 THE COURT: There you go. 

10 ( LAUGHTER. ) 

II THE COURT: Thank you, sir. 

12 MR. DICKERSON': Did you want to take a short break , or 

13 did you want to 

14 THE COURT: What do you want to do? It's about a quarter 

15 after four. It ' s been a long day. I don't know if you want 

16 to 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: I want t o 

18 THE COURT: go any --

19 MR. J I MMERSON: - - cal l it square, Judge. 

20 THE COURT : l onger. We've go t Monday. I' ve got al l 

21 day Monday open. Did you want to meet earlier Monday to tal k 

22 about any thi ngs? I 'll leave i t up to you guys. 

23 MR. DI CKERSON; I'm sorry? 

24 THE COURT: What would you li ke t o do Monday mor ning? Is 
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1 there -- do you want to meet a l ittl e bit early, see if 

2 there's any issues been resolved. Or who did you plan to call 

3 on Monday? I don' t know if we need t o get attorney Jeffrey 

4 Burr or anything. What do you guys want to do? I ' m trying to 

5 figure out what we'll do for Monday, then we'll figure out 

6 about some other days if we need it. But what do you guys 

7 want to do for Monday morning? 

8 MR. JIMMERSON: This is what I thought, okay. I'd like 

9 to spend two, three hours tomorrow or Friday to try to settl e 

10 the case independent of The Court, or even Saturday for that 

11 matter. 

12 THE COURT: Yeah. I didn't do a very good job 

I3 MR. JIMMERSON: No. No. You d i d a fine --

14 THE COURT: yesterday. 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: NO. No. You did a fine job. 

16 THE COURT: That's all right. 

17 MR. NELSON: Absolutely. 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: You scared me to death. 

19 I LAUGHTER. I 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: Man, I ' ll tell you, motivate me to try to 

21 settle this case. 

22 On a serious note, we would i ntend to call Mr. Burr 

23 at nine o'clock on Monday morning and the 

24 THE COURT: Is he available? Do y ou know if he's 
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J available? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: -- and then continue with Mrs. Nelson. 

3 THE COURT: poes that work for you? 

4 MR. DICKERSON: Yes. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. 

6 MR. DICKERSON: Absolutely. 

7 THE COURT: Yeah. I just wanted to kind of get 

8 (indiscernible). And if you want to meet earli er on Monday 

9 before, I' m normally in early. So just let me know. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: I was fifteen minutes late, Judge. I 

11 don't want to do that again. I -- let's keep i t at nine 

12 o'clock. I can make nine o'clock; eighty-thirty is a li ttle 

13 tough with my - -

14 MR. DICKERSON: It ' s--

15 MR. JIMMERSON: dropping my child off. 

16 THE COURT: Is it? 

17 MR. DICKERSON, well, the traffic is so di fferent 

18 at 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: We 

20 MR. DICKERSON: eighty- thirt y versus --

21 THE COURT: Yeah. well, it i s. Everybody's 

22 MR, DICKERSON: I mean, that just the 

23 THE COURT: getting there. Yeah. 

24 MR. DI CKERSON: - - different -- that hal f hour? 
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MR. NELSON: Are we all day Monday?' 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes. 

3 THE COURT: Yeah. 

4 MR. NELSON: Okay. Thank you. 

5 THE CLERK: (Indiscernible. ) 

6 THE COURT: Yeah. The only thing on Monday I 've got a 

7 certification - - a couple certifi cation hearings in Juvenile 

8 for Judge Voy. I don't know if those are going or not, but if 

9 it is we'll take a break for a half hour. So t hey shouldn't 

10 take t hat long, at least that'S what Judge voy t old me, unless 

11 -- but they're certifying juveniles to adults. I'm a little 

12 bi t hesitant to step in that. 

13 MR. DICKERSON: He's taking care of his new baby, huh? 

14 THE COURT: Yeah. As a matter of fact, they're 

15 i nducing 

16 MR. DICKERSON: In fact, they're hav ing h i m right now. 

17 THE COURT: they're inducing l abor at four o'clock, I 

18 think , five o'clock. So ... 

19 But we'l l work around that Monday. I think it's at 

20 ten- thirty or eleven. We'll push it back if we have --

21 MR. DICKERSON: I can tell you, Rachel's still 'sending 

22 text messages. So . .. 

23 (WHEREUPON, THE COURT I S TALKING TO THE CLERK AND ALL 

24 PARTIES ARE CONVERSING WITH ONE ANOTHER.) 
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, 
1 it. And Eric has :significant additional land in the area, 

2 And we ,came to an agreement, pursuant'to which Eric agreed to 

3 contribute seven �~�c�r�e�s� of his outlying property, where we paid 

4 the cost of modifying that property to create new wetlands. 

5 Q And to meet the Corp of Engineers conditions? 

6 A Correct ,I 

7 Q Did Mr. Nelson complain to you in May of 2009 that 

8 the work done to �~�e�e�t� the Corp of Engineers conditions harmed 

9 his remaining pro'perty? 

10 A That's what this letter is. 

II Q Okay. �~�d� he attached -- did you see pictures 

12 have you seen the land to know the harm to his property? 

13 A I may have seen a few pictures. What·I did was, I 

14 talked to our people on the property and told them to take 

15 care of whatever issues were there and to address them --

16 Q And what' has the people 

17 A and t'o rectify them. 

18 Q -- you told done since May 19th of 2009 --

19 A I'm advised 

20 Q if an'ything? 

21 A by my people, my people on the property, that 

22 there is no issue.; 

23 Q So they've done nothing because they determined, as 

24 reported to you, there is no issue? 
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1 A No. No. No. They fixed the issue. I meant -- let 

2 me restate it. That there is no issue today, that whatever 

3 issues Eri c had t hey made an effort to address them. Whether 

4 Eric agrees with that today, I don't know. But I am telling 

5 you that our people tell me that whatever issues Eric addre - -

6 r o -- brought up. they felt that they took significant efforts 

7 to address them. 

8 MR. JIMMERSON,: Where' 5 your hearsay objection? There'S 

9 only three times the hearsay (indiscernible). 

10 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

11 Q Who are the individuals who told you that it's been 

12 taken care of? 

13 A Our head of non-gaming operations, Nicky Setonovich 

14 (phonetic herein). 

IS Q Nicky Setonovich? 

16 A That is correct. 

17 Q Is that a man or woman? 

18 A It is a man. 

19 Q Man. Okay. Looking at proposed Exhibit 216 C-6, 

20 the "pictures not the letter, please glance at those please. 

21 Are you familiar enough with the land site to attest that 

22 t hese are accurat e pictures, that they depict accurately the 

23 sites owned by Mr. Nelson or Mrs. Nelson's respective trusts, 

24 adjoining the Silver Slipper Casino property? 
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MR. DICKERSON': Object, without the laying of foundation 

2 as to when, at what time. and laying a foundation for it, Your 

3 Honor. 

4 THE COURT: Yeah. Lay a lit tle bit more --

5 MR. JIMMERSON.: I was goi ng to ask him --

6 THE COURT: foundation. 

7 MR . JIMMERSON: if he can if he can lay the 

8 foundation. He can say yes or no . 
I 

9 THE WITNESS: The answer i s no. 

10 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

11 Q Okay. Tpe answer is no . You don't know if these 

12 fairly represent the condition of the propert y --

13 A That's correct. 

14 Q - - at any time? Okay. 

15 A I do not . 

16 Q Have yo4 taken any pictures or seen any pictures of 

17 the property in 2010, here i n the last three to six months, of 

18 the property? 

19 A NO. 

20 Q Did you write a �~�e �s�p�o�n�s �i�v�e� letter to Exhibit 216 c-

21 6, the letter Mr. ,Nelson wrote to you complaining about the 

22 wor k of May 13th of 2009? 

23 A I �d�O�~�'�t� recall. But if I did, I'm sure you have it . 

24 Q Well , nice guess, but I don't. 
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�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�~ �" �.�~ �,� .. -- .. -, ... , 

(LAUGHTER. ) 

2 A I do not recall. 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: Your Honor, with this foundation I'd move 

4 for the admi ssion again of 216 C-6. 

5 MR . DICKERSON: Objection, Your Honor, it's not innocent. 

6 THE COURT: All right . They could -- the issue on that 

7 Do you recall the issue being r aised about wetlands and 

8 some stuff he wanted done to his property? 

9 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

IO THE COURT: Al l right. And you recall gett ing this 

11 letter? 

12 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

13 THE COURT: But you can't testify to the truth contained 

14 in that letter? 

15 THE WITNESS: That i s correct. 

16 THE COURT: I think that's -- I think that's basically 

17 your objection, that 

18 

19 

20 may 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. DICKERSON: Right. Yeah. 

THE COURT, they don 't even know the truth con -- Eric 

have said that --

MR. DI CKERSON, Right. There's no 

THE COURT: but he doesn't know 

MR. DICKERSON: basi s for it . 

THE COURT, if it's true and what it is. $0 you might 
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1 want to have that follow up through Mr . Nelson. 

2 But you do remember the issue being raised, you had 

3 some �~�o�n�c�e�r�n�s�.� And your understanding i s it's been 

4 corrected--

5 THE WITNESS: That's correct. 

6 THE COURT: -- per your --

7 THE WITNESS: In both respects. Yes. 

8 THE COURT: I'm not going to admit it at this time. But 

9 we ' ll reserve it to see if we --

10 MR. JIMMERSON: All r i ght. 

II THE COURT: need to get it through Mr. Nelson or 

12 business records if it was developed during normal business. 

13 But you do remember that issue being raised? 

14 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

15 MR. JIMMERSON : Just note my respective ob jection to 

16 that. 

17 THE COURT: All right. (Indiscernible) . 

18 MR. JIMMERSON, Thank you, Judge. I appreci ate it. I ' ll 

19 continue , sir. Thank you, 

20 Pret t y well done I think. 

21 (BRIEF PAUSE.) 

22 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

23 Q What conversations have you had with Lynita Nelson 

24 directly? 
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1 A None. 

2 Q Okay. qn -- on people who have purported to 

3 represent Lynita Nel son, to whom have you spoken? 

4 A Just her counsel. 

5 Q Mr. Dickerson, this gentleman? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q When did you first personally meet Mr . Dickerson, at 

8 the 

9 A At my 

10 Q deposition? 

11 A deposition. 

12 Q July 2? ' Okay. And then you recognized h im, his 

13 �n�a�~�e� at least, in the communications that he followed up here 

14 in the last month.or two? 

15 A correct; 

16 Q All right. Now, did Mr. Dickerson tell you that it 

17 is possible -- I don' t know which way it 's going to go -- but 

18 it's possible The:Court could order Mississippi's interest in 

19 Dynasty to be divided in half? 

20 A He's never -- he's never shared with me what the 

21 possible outcomes' of this would be, other than it other 

, 
22 than it is an issue at stake in t hi s litigation. and thus 

23 obviously I assume it could go either way. 

24 Q Okay. And so he hasn't discussed with you the 
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1 possibility of the asset being divided in halfi at least for 

2 the Nelson side, the Dynasty asset being held -- is that your 

3 testimony? 

4 A I mean, :he may have mentioned it. But I don't 

5 recall specifically any conversation. We certainly didn't 

6 engage in any conyersation about speculating over what might 

7 occur in this. 

8 MR. DICKERSON: Are you talking other than at his 

9 deposition? 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: Yes, of course I am. 

I I MR. DICKERSON: Other than his deposition? 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: Made it very clear. 

J3 MR. DICKERSON: It was discussed at his deposition. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: ! understand. That's the recorded 

15 deposition. I 'm talking about in conversations other than the 

]6 recorded words, of which I can read as well as The Court can 

17 read. 

18 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q No conversations about what The Court might do? 

'(BRIEF PAUSE.) 

A I believe the only sort of even remotely related to 

that might be a statement that it 
I 

it could go either way, I 

23 mean , this is a -- this is a -- this 1S at issue, 

24 Q Okay. Was there any conversation in the -- And how 
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many conversations have you had wi th Mr . Dickerson since 

2 you've had no conversation with Lynita Nelson? 

3 A In total, probably a half a dozen. 

4 Q Okay. And when were the half a dozen? 

5 A Over t he last -- most of them over the last two 

6 weeks. 

7 Q Okay . And were they telephone calls ini tiat ed by 

8 Mr. Dickerson's office --

9 A Yes. 

10 Q -- calling you? 

I I A And we've had some email correspondence. 

12 Q Okay . And was there anyone else present during the 

13 conversations had with you, other than Mr. Dickerson, who you 

14 might recognize as representi ng Lynita Nelson? 

15 A I believe t here was one conversation in which Mr. 

16 Dickerson called me and Mrs . Nelson was present i n t he room 

17 and it was a speakerphone, and a woman who was either a 

18 consultant or an advisor or some kind of --

19 Q DO you recognize or remember her name, that woman? 

20 A I really do not. 

21 Q Okay. 

22 A I'm sorry. 

23 Q To the best of your underst anding was t hat the only 

24 conversation t hat the lady consultant was on t he phone with 
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1 you? 

2 A To the best of my knowledge. 

3 Q Okay. If I suggested the name Melissa Attanasio 

4 (phonetic) would that refresh y ou r r ecollection? 

5 A I --

6 Q You don' ,t know? 

7 A I really, don't know, But the --

8 Q Fair enough. 

9 A -- i t --

IO Q Fair enough . 

II A -- if that's the person who was in that capacity, 

12 that's likely who it was. 

13 (BRIEF PAUSE. I 

14 Q If Dynasty's interest in Sil ver Slipper Casino 

15 Ventures were �d �i �v�~�d�e�d� in half so that undiluted twenty-one 

16 percent or so or diluted seventeen percent or so interest was 

17 awar ded to each party, as you understand Mississippi Gaming 

18 law, l i censing would be required on the part of Mrs. Nelson, 

19 correc t ? 

20 A If she hel d voting interest. There are some 

21 exceptions if you :hold it as non-voting. 

22 Q Okay. 

23 A So it's possible she could own an interest non-

24 v o ting that would not require �l�i�c�e�n�~�i�n�g�.� 
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1 Q So one possible option for Judge Sullivan could be 

2 I' m just suggesting, brainstorming with y ou here -- that 

3 all voting rights remain with Eric Nelson. and she could be 

4 given half of the -i nterest non-voting; that may obvi ate the 

5 need -- may obviate the need, not with certainty, of 

6 Mi ssissippi �G�a�m�i�n�~� license approval. I s that --

7 A Yes. I --

8 Q right? 

9 A I want to say may . I believe, based on 

. 10 discussions I've had in the past with Mi ssissippi �c�o�u�n�s�e�~�,� in 

11 in s ituations , not this one, others, t hat i f it ' s noo-

12 voting there CQulq be an -- t here -- you can go to the 

13 Commission, advise them, and -- and you can avoid li censing. 

14 Q Ask -- &sk for an exception? 

15 A Ri ght. 

16 Q But voting at typically more than ten percent in 

17 Mississippi , and more than five percent in Nevada and 

18 elsewhere, requires active application for a gaming license; 

19 correct? 

20 A Correct. 

21 Q Okay. Next 

22 MR. NELSON: :Did anybody contact Loren? 

23 Q -- do you know whether or not Mr. Dickerson or 

24 Lyni ta or anyone that you recognize -- or r epresenting 
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1 representing t o you that they represent Lyni ta Nelson , have 

2 contacted Mr. Ostrow? 

3 A I do not believe they have. He certainly has never 

4 indicated to me that they have. 

5 Q Fair enough . Now, have you had Silver Slipper 

6 Casino Vent ures appraised at any t i me in the past? 

7 A Not a formal appraisal that we paid money for. But 

8 we've certainly talked -- I've talked to more " investment 

9 bankers than just Mr. Ravich about its value at various times. 

10 Q And do you -- do you have an opini on t oday as to t he 

11 value of Si lver Sl ipper Casino Ventures, LLC? And by value I 

12 mean fair mar ket value, what a willing buyer woul d be willing 

13 to pay and what a willing seller would be will i ng to sell . 

14 A I would hope and expect it would be a t l east sixty-

15 nine mi llio n dollars and potentially more. 

16 Q But you have no t done any type o f analysi s t o get 

17 beyond your hope and wishes? 

18 A Well, yes. The analysis that I've done is looki ng 

19 at comparable transactions that are currentl y pending, wit h 

20 other simil ar types o f s i ngle casino assets; and look i ng at 

21 the multipl es t hat current purchasers are paying for those; 

22 and looking at our EBITDA, which I expect we will end wi t h 

23 t his year; and saying that I think we can we can sell a t 

24 least a s i x mult i p l e on eleven-and-a-hal f mill i on doll ars of 
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1 EBITDA. 

2 Q Do t hose other properties that you look at as a 

3 possib l e comparison or indicia of value have a landlord's 

4 lease of only twenty-two years and a fif teen-paint- five 

5 milli on dollar lease option effective January 1, 2011? 

6 A probably not, 

7 Q I thank 'you for your time, sir, I appreciate it, 

8 sir, 

9 A You're welcome. 

10 MR, JIMMERSON': No fur t her questi ons, Your Honor, 

11 PAUL ALANYS 

12 testified as follows on: 

13 CROSS EXAMINATION 

14 BY MR. DICKERSON: ' 

15 Q Sir, you had indicated yesterday you have a very 

16 important meeting at --

17 A I postponed it till fiv e- thirty, anticipating --

18 Q Oh, five'-thirty. So--

19 A -- that this was going to happen, 

20 THE COURT: Apparently you've been to --

21 Q Then I thank you. 

22 THE COURT: Did you want a five minute br eak? Are you 

23 okay t o go right tpr ough? 

24 THE WITNESS: ' I've --
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THE COURT, I want to give Mr. --

2 THE WITNESS: -- I'm fine. I'd like to continue if we 

3 could, Your Honor. 

4 MR. �D�I �C �K�E�R�S�O�~�:� Okay. Then I --

5 THE COURT: Okay. I want to give Mr. Dickerson --

6 MR . DICKERSON, then I thank you . I was going to 

7 excuse you. 
, 

But we - - let's go through some questions then. 

8 BY MR. DICKERSON: ' 

9 Q Let ' s kind of start fr om the back, the 

10 communications with me. The first -- you i ndi cat ed the first 

11 time you met me was at your deposition, is that correct? 

12 A Yes. 

13 Q The - - do you recall me then requesting to speak to 

14 you again by way 6f email or telephone conference , and you 

15 declining t o do so unless you had the permission of Eric 

16 Nelson? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Okay. So the second t i me you ever spoke to me, was 

19 it after you received the approval from Mr. Nelson? 

20 A Yes. 

21 Q And was that the tel ephone conference call in which 

22 you indicated Lynita was in the room and some other woman was 

23 in the room? 

. 24 A Yes . 
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1 Q Okay. Now, since that telephone conversation that 

2 you referred to. you indicated that there have been other 

3 telephone conversations between you and I. I s i t true, sir, 

4 they all have been for the purpose of determining when you 

5 could be here in �L�~�s� Vegas, or 5e -- fir s t of al l . setting up 

6 a deposition, "and t hen seeing if you could be here in Las 

7 Vegas to testify? 

8 A I mean, yes. Most of them were through my 

9 secretary, quite frankly. 

10 Q Okay . And t he last coupl e days you and I have had 

II conversations as tq the time to be here and how t o get here 

12 and givi ng you directions, is that correct? 

13 A Correct. 

14 Q Okay. Ot her than that - - wel l. let'S - - let's go 

15 back t o the tel eph9ne conver sation in which you heard -- you 

16 know, Lynita was �i�~� the room and the other woman; wasn't i t 

17 true, sir, that �t�h �~�t� was simply can you update us as to what 

18 has occurred since your depositi on was taken? 

19 A I t was -- it was to ask me -- you asked me about the 

20 property, how it was doi ng. 

21 Q Okay. 

22 A It was to get an update in terms of the current 

23 performance - -

24 Q Right. 
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1 A - - of t he property. 

2 Q Now, let's move back a second. If t his property 

3 sold, whether i t's sixty-eight million, sixty- nine mil l ion, 

4 whatever 'it i s -- :you indicated at sixty-eight million Mr . 

5 Nelson --

6 HR. JIMMERSON: Fif ty-eight million . 

7 Q -- Mr. Nelson would receive one-point-f ive-five 

8 million, is that correct? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Is i t 

11 MR. JIMMERSON: Can I just - - can I just clarify . Above 

12 what would that be? I n other words, a t sixty million he's not 

13 getting one-point-five-five million . 

14 MR. DI CKERSON: Sixty- eight mi l li on . 

15 THE WITNESS: He is . 

16 MR. JIMMERSON: He is not. , 

17 What -- :what is the -- in other words. what is the 

18 amount in whi ch t he Nelsons would receive any money ? 

19 I don 't mean to interr upt . 

20 But what! is the 

21 THE WITNESS: That's 

22 MR. JIMMERSON: -- price t hat must be netted out - -

23 THE WITNESS: -- that's - -

24 MR. JIMMERSON: -- to have them receive t he money? 
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1 THE WITNESS: -- the first equity back is the class that 

2 Eric -- that Dynasty has, the mi lli on three capital account 

3 wi t h about two hundred and fifty thousand of accrued and 

4 unpaid pr eferred interest on it. So if there are any proceeds 

5 above the debt and the costs of the transaction, that money --

6 that was a three �~ �- that was the three million dol l ar trunch 

7 that I referred to previously. So if three million dollars in 

8 excess of debt and transac tion costs were der.ived out of the 

9 sale, Dynasty would receive one million five fifty. 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: And all I'm asking is, on these numbers 

11 is that roughly �- �~� roughly sixty-two million dollars as the 

12 minimum number to .generate the one-point-five-f ive million 

I3 dollars? 

14 THE WITNESS: Pretty close. 

15 MR. �J�I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� Thank you. 

16 Go ahead. I 'm sorry. 

17 MR. DICKERSON: All right. Thank you, Counsel. 

18 (LAUGHTER. ) 

19 BY MR. DICKERSON: 

20 Q All right. So if it'.s sold at -- any any amount 

21 then above sixty-two mi lli on , Eric Nelson would be receiving 
. 

22 at least one �m�i �l �l�~�o�n� five hundred and fifty thousand; is that 

23 correct? 

24 A Well, npt at least . It 's -- it's --
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I Q Okay. 

2 A - - very close to a million --

3 Q All right. 

4 A -- five hundred and --

5 Q Now, you had - -

6 A fifty thousand. 

7 Q indicated that at a time when your EBITDA was in 

8 the levels of nine you had received an offer of sixty-five 

9 million? 

10 A Sixty- two. 

II Q Sixty- two mil lion. Okay. So at that amount he 

12 would receive one-point-five-five million, true? 

13 A Yes. 

14 Q Now, your EBITDA has gone up i nto the elevens, is 

15 that correct, about eleven-and-a-half? 

16 A Yes. 

l7 Q And so you honest -- you - - you expect to make --

18 have an offer for more, is that correct? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q Now, is there any requirement that any portion of 

21 the monies that Eric Nelson would be enti tled to receive be 

22 placed i n escrow for any r eason whatsoever? 

23 A Well, i t's possible and likely that in any 

24 transaction that we di d that there may be a holdback by the 

i 
I EIGHTH JtJDICTAL DISTRICT COURT FAMILY DIVTS I ON - TRANSCRIPT V10EO SERVICES 

D-09- 411537- D 1: / 17110 FARTIAL TRANSCRIPT NF.LSON 

l 
601 N. Fecos Road, Las Ve<;las, Nevlldll 89101 (7021 4.55-4977 

_ .. _--- - ---

125 



1 purchaser. It's -- it's typical in these types of 

2 transactions that :you make various representations and , 

3 warranties and you have various covenants. And that when you 

4 have individuals such as ourselves rather than a public 

5 company, and so ie's difficult for a purchaser to go chasing 

6 after a bunch of different people, that they will require a 

7 holdback for a �p�e�~�i�o�d� of six months to a year of some 

8 negotiated amount of money. 

9 Q Okay_ And that --

10 A A --

11 Q would that be a holdback that would apply to all 

12 the owners? 

13 A Pro rata, whatever would --

14 Q So have there been any discussions about such a 

15 holdback? 

16 A well, there's never been any discussions about it 

17 because we've never gotten to the point of it being specific. 

18 But there's certainly been enough awareness that this is going 

19 to be an issue that will have to be a resolved in any sale and 

20 we're going to have to work through it . 

21 Q Okay. Now, can you explain to The Court this vote 

22 that you all had, that the property, the Silver Slipper -- the 

23 proj ect would not: be sold for anything l Oess than sixty-eight 

24 million? Can you explain to Judge Sullivan how you even got 
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1 to the point of having to make a vote? , 

2 A Well, we: were under increasing pressure from DDJ, 

3 our principal lender, to do somet hing when the when i t 

4 became apparent that we would be unable to get a letter of 

5 credit to build the hotel as planned earlier in the year. 

6 Because time was running out and Eric had ind i cated that he 

7 was unable to provide such a letter of credit at that point. 

8 The lender basical:!y said, well, if that's why we're giving 

9 you this extension, this was the whole premi se behind t his, so , 
10 if there I 5 no viab:le option to do something which will 

11 significantly enhance the value of the property, we want you 

12 to sell it , we want -- we want our money. And t ·he d i scussions 

13 have been revolving around, give us enough time at least to 

14 get the performance of the property to a level that we can 

15 achieve a reasonable price, so that everyone can come out of 

16 this reasonably well . 

17 Q Now, approximately at what t i me - - at what point in 

18 time was it that Eric Nelson told you that he was not going to 

19 be able. to provide you with the l etter of c redit t hat you were 

20 anticipating? 

21 A I woul d've thought it was in the August time frame, 

22 late summer. 

23 Q Okay. And is it true, sir, that he -- he told you 

24 at some point in time that the reason he wasn't going to get 
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1 that letter of credit that he had promised is because he did 

2 not want his wife, Lynita Nelson, to share in any profits? 

3 MR. JIMMERSON: Objection. That misstates this witness' 

4 testimony--

5 MR. DICKERSON: I'm asking him 

6 MR. JIMMERSON: on direct. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: I can ask a leading question if that's 

8 what he said. 

9 THE COURT: Overruled. You can answer. 

10 THE WITNESS: I -- I don't recall him stating it in 

II that 

12 BY MR. DICKERSON, 

13 Q Okay, So how do you 

14 THE WITNESS: -- fashion, 

15 Q -- recal l him stating it? 

16 A I think I testified before that my recollection is 

17 that he said that if Lynita ended up with a part of this 

18 Silver Slipper interest and she were unwilling or unable to 

19 provide the guarantee, that he would hav e to provide for a 

20 letter of credi t; he wasn't going to do it for her. 

21 Q Okay. Now, did he explain to you why he would have 

22 to provide a guarantee for any letter of credit? 

23 A No. I think we just implicitly understood that 

24 there would have to be either, you know, securities posted or 
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1 some kind of collateral t hat he would have to -- But -- but I 

2 l eft it -- t he way my conversation with -- with Eric· had been 

3 during the course of the year was, you know, that ' s your 

4 business, find -- whatever way you do i t , I don't care, you 

5 know, it's -- that's up to you, I j ust need the letter of 

6 credit. 

7 Q Okay. So when did Eric Nelson first tell you that 

8 he would take the initiative getting this letter of credit of 

9 roughly thirteen-paint-five million? Was that what it is, 

10 thirteen- paint-five million or --

II A Yes. Thirteen-and-a-half was what we anticipated. 

12 I 've indicated to 'you a fifteen million dollar number. But we 

13 were hopeful and �~�n�t�i�c�i�p�a�t�e�d� when we actually bid out the 

14 project that we could get it done for that that price. 

15 Q Okay. So when did he first tell you that he would 

16 take that initiative to attempt to obtain a letter of credit? 

17 A Several 'months before that, probably in the spring 

18 of this y ear. 

19 Q Okay. And d i d he specifically provide you with a 

20 name of an individual to whom he was going to be able to get 

21 this line of credit f or -- from? 

22 A Onl y t he first name. 

23 Q Okay. You -- and the first name of that individual 

24 was what? 

0- 09-411537- 0 NELSON 11/17/10 PARTIAL 'I'RANSCRIPT 

EICHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DIVI SION - TRANSCRIPT ViDEO SERVICES 
601 N. Pecos Road., Las vegas, Nevada 89101 1702) 455-4977 129 



1 A I believe it was Dennis (phonetic herein) . 

2 Q Okay. po you recall at some point in time meeting 

3 this i ndi vidual ? 

4 A I ' ve never met him. 

5 Q Okay. Do you recall at some point in time learning 

6 his last name? 

7 A , Yes, through our people at the property who did meet 

8 hi m. 

9 Q Okay. And do you recall his last name? 

10 A If you told it to me I would remember it. 

11 Q Does T-r-o-e-s-h, Treesh, sound - -

12 A Yes. That's correct. 

13 Q And is it your understandi ng that Dennis Treesh went 

14 with Eric Nelson to observe the property? 

15 A Yes . 

16 Q Okay. Did Mr . Nelson ever tell you why Mr . Troesh 

17 was not willing to put up the letter of credit? 

18 A He sai d ,to me that Dennis did not want to get in the 

19 middle of his divorce. He didn't want to do anything while 

20 this was stil l going on. 

21 Q Okay. Now, do you have any understanding that if 

22 this gentleman, Dennis Troesh, put up the required thirteen-

23 poi nt- f i ve mi l l ion dollar letter of credit, as to why Eric 

24 Nelson woul d have :to guarantee it? 
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------- ------------_ ... _-_ .. _. 

1 A Well , what Eric had led me t o believe was that they 

2 were going to do it j ointly; that Eric was going to probably 

3 do half . and he �w�a�~� goi ng to do half , or -- in some 

4 percentages. But they were going to do it jointly. 

5 Q Sir, wi th respect to these purported environmental 

6 issues, have you had any recent compl aints from Eric Nelson 

7 wi th respect t o any environmental issues? 

8 A Oh, I might have had a call in the last year, or 

9 there may have been i n the midst of other calls Er ic k i nd of 

10 off the cuff saying that he was still upset about t hi s, but 

II nothing speci fi c. It wasn't like, I want you t o do X, y and z 

12 because t his problem exist s. It was more of a general ki nd of 

13 a venting. 

14 Q Okay. And have you had any -- engaged in any 

15 negotiations wi th Lynita Nelson or any person representing her 

16 wit h respect to her acquiring an i nterest in the Silver 

17 Slipper and how you would handl e her interest? Hav e you had 

18 any negotiations at all? 

19 A No. Never. 

20 Q Can you explain to The Court this option to purchase 

21 t he property t hat you have with the -- Mr. Cure or Mr. Cure's 

22 business? Can you· explain that a l i ttle fu r ther as to how it 

23 works? 

24 A well, it's quite straightforward. I t's a provision 
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1 in the lease that gives the tenant, which is Silver Slipper 

2 Casino Venture, an option to acquire the property for a price 

3 of �t�h�i�r�t�e�e�n�-�a�n�d�-�a�~�h�a�l�f� million dollars through the end of this 

4 year, and then it bumps up to fifteen-and-a-half mil l ion 

5 dollars for an adqitional, as I've testified, four to five 

6 years, and thereafter the option lapses. And it's very 

7 straightforward. You give them notice and within, you know, 

8 thirty days thereafter you -- you pay the money and he conveys 

9 the Deed. 

10 Q Backing up just a bit. Can you -- if -- if I failed 

11 to ask this, I can't remember. How did you and your business 

12 partners arrive at that number of sixty-eight million as being 

13 the minimum amount that you would accept for the sale? 

14 MR. JI:MMERSON: It was, asked. Go ahead. 

15 A It was Jess Ravich's number. We -- we pushed for a 

16 higher number, and Jess said that he had already spent nine 

17 months working on this with -- to no avail and that he was 

18 confident we caul? get .at least sixty- eight million dol lars, 

19 but was unwilling to kind of pursue the effort and -- at -- at 

20 higher. Although please be clear that, as I've testified 

21 before, that we were not going to put a price on i t. We were 

22 going to ask f or bids and try to get the highest possible 

23 price. But he wapted to know that if he could get at least 

24 sixty-eight, we would do it . 

NELSON 11/17/10 PARTI AL TRANSCRIPT 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DI STRIC1' COURT - FAMILY DIVISION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES 

601 N.:pecos Road, Las Ve<;ras. �N�e�v�a�~ �a� S9101 17021455-4977 132 



Q Sir, are you aware of any adverse conflict or 

2 position that you're having with Eric Nelson? 

3 A Well, other than his vote against the management 

4 board -- board decision to place the property up for sale at a 

5· minimum price of sixty-eight million dollars. 

6 Q Any -- any other thing that you can think of? 

7 (BRIEF PAUSE.) 

8 A I think Eric at one point got upset about, you know, 

9 the notion that somehow we would get in the -- involved in his 

10 divorce proceedings. And, you know, I -- I remember he 

11 expressed -- I got. a voicemail message from him that was an 

12 angry one that caught me off guard and out of -the blue. And 

13 then later Eric said, oh, you know, I was just having a bad 

14 morning, and sorry and the like . 

15 Q Yeah. I ' think we've all gotten those. Can you tell 

16 us what -- what yours said? 

17 (LAUGHTER . ) 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: Don't (indiscernible). 

19 A I'm not even sure I played it all the way through. 

20 ( LAUGHTER . ) 

21 MS. NELSON: PFobably good you didn't. 

22 A But my �r�~�c�o�l�l�e�c�t�i�o�n� was that he was just venting 

23 about, you know, his -- he was frustrated about this whole 

24 the whole situation, and if we got in the middle of this that, 
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---_ . ... _._-_._-_ ... _-_._------------------------, 

pr operty? 

2 A No. I'm t otally unaware of that. , 

3 Q Okay. And why did you acquire three hundred 

4 thousand dollars plus o f DDJ debt in 2007? 

5 A It seemed like a good investment . 

6 Q Okay. �~�d� what interest do you receive on that, if 

7 any? 

8 A The �s�a�m�~� inter est they do. 

9 Q Which is thirteen percent? 

\0 A �T�h�i�r�t�e�e�~� percent as a coupon, seven percent pay 

11 r ate, five percent accrual. It 's -- it 's pari passu wi th 

12 t heir debt. 

13 Q Okay. And does Mr. Ravich or L i bra own any part of , 

14 the debt ? 

15 A Yes. 

16 Q How much does he own of --

17 A I honestly --

18 Q the DOJ? 

19 A don't know; more than I do. I don't know --

20 Q I s it --

21 A t here was three mi l li on dollars o f debt t hat was 

22 acquired. And I believe Mr. Ostrow and I acquired a half a 

23 mil l ion dollars of it. I don't know exactly who acquired the 

24 r est of it. I would 've thought that Mr. Ravich woul d've 
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1 acquired at least �~� million of it though. 

2 Q Okay. And the other million and a half would've 

3 been acquired by 

4 A Maybe people that Jess Ravich knew or -_. I think it 

5 was for the most part placed through Jess Ravich. 

6 Q Okay. Sb Jess Ravich, what, communicated with DDJ; 

7 DDJ agreed to sell three million of the ,debt; is that how it 

8 happened? 

9 A No. DDJ contacted us. And they had three million 

10 of this debt in a �~�u�n�d�,� that for, one reason or another had to 

11 liquidate this debt, and so they came to us first. They were 

12 -- they were going. to sell it: So we decided we were doing 

13 well, and we said we should, you know, buy the debt, it's a 

14 good -- it'S a �g�o�o�~� return. So it was offered to everyone. 

15 Eric declined to purchase any, and others purchased portions 

16 of it. 

17 Q How did you communicate to Mr. Nelson this alleged 

18 offer to purchase a portion of this three million dollars in 

19 DDJ debt? Did you: do it in writing? 

20 A possibly. I know it was verbally communicated. But 

21 
, 

I cannot tell you today that I that I have a written 

22 �c�o�m�m�u�n�i�c�a�t�i�o�~ �.� There may be, but I don't recall. 

23 Q When did,You have an oral communication with Mr. 

24 Nelson, if in fact ' you allege that occurred? 

, 
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1 A Well, at -- in the months prior to the closing of 

2 that transaction it was discussed on numerous occasions about 

3 who want - - did - - ' do people want to partici pate i n this, do 

4 we want t o do it, who wants to do it, Everyone had the right. 

5 we felt, to do it in their pro rata percentages. So it 

6 would've been offered to everyone based upon how much they 

7 wanted to buy, And if people didn't wanted to buy more, 

8 and others declined, they could pick up whatever they wanted. 

9 Q Do you bel ieve that you have or Mr. Ravich has a 

10 conflict of interest by owning debt as well as being a manager 

11 and owner ? 

12 A No. 

13 Q Why not? 

14 A Because we have absolutely no control over this. We 

15 we - - DDS is in complete control of this debt. We don't 

16 make decisions for t his property based upon the - - what it 

17 wil l do i n terms of that debt. And -- and frankly, our 

18 i nvestment i n that' debt i s a fraction of what our investment 

19 is i n the property. 

20 Q You've had conversations with Mr. Nelson with regard 

21 to asking him to fin d someone to either put up a letter of 

22 credi"t for t he fifteen mil l ion , or in conjunction with that or 

23 a l ternatively to buy the l ease and exercise the lease before 

24 the end of the year; is t hat right? 
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1 A Yes. 

2 Q Okay. And did you have any conversations with Mr . 

3 Nelson where he al legedly said to you, I'm not going to do it 

4 if my wife ' s going to enjoy a part of it; did you have a , 

5 conversation wi th him like that? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q What was' it -- when was that conversation? 

8 A A f ew months ago. 

9 Q Okay. And was it by telephone or in person? 

10 A It would've been by telephone. It might've been 

II reiterated i n person. But my - - my - - we don ' t - -

12 Q well - -

13 A - - see each other that often, so I would expect it 

14 would ' ve been by 

15 Q Only --

16 A telephone. 

17 Q only ,by telephone . And what was said and by whom 

18 during that tel ephone conversation, Mr. Alanis? 

19 A My r ecollection i s that we had been in discussions 

20 with Eri c f or several months , where Eric and an i nvestor 

21 friend of hi s were interested and -- and had indicated that 

22 they would put up the letter of credit to get - - fund the Go 

23 Zone bonds and get this hotel moving forward . It ' s one of the 

24 reasons why we moved forward with the plans and spent the 
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1 money with the architect to move the plans forward. 

2 Some months after that Eric called me up and And 

3 we were pressing to get this letter of credit. Time was 

4 running out and we were being pressed by our attorneys saying 

5 that if we don't demonstrate that we are going t o get this 

6 letter of credit by September, it's possible the Governor will 

7 pull these Go Zone funds from us and give them to a bigger 

8 company that could: use them before the end of the year. So 

9 toward the end of the summer there was increasing pressure 

)0 being placed by us; on Eric to say, if you're going to do this, 

11 we need to do it . And it was at that point that he said, I 

12 can't do it. And �~ �- and I said, why. And he said, because if 

13 I'm -- I'm in the divorce -- frankly, that was the first time 

14 I knew about that and it's - - it's a problem if my wife is 

15 going t o be involved in t his. and if I have to stand behind it 

16 and she's not going to stand behind it, I'm not going to do 

17 that. 

18 Q And, when stand behind it, to be fair to Mr. 

19 Nelson, meant he w6uld have to personally guarantee, or 

20 someone else if not him, woul d have t o personall y guarantee 

21 the LC to a bank; correct? 

22 A Potentially. Yes. 

23 Q Okay. S0 he would be personally obligated. or if he 

24 has someone he �c�o�u�~�d� bring in to be per sonall y obligated, but 
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Lynita Nelson wouldn' t be subject to the same personal 

2 guarantee; that's what he was communicating t o you, correct? 

3 A That's what he was communicating. 

4 Q Did that sound reasonable to you when you heard 

5 those words from him? 

6 A Well, I was disappointed. And it wasn' t my position 

7 to judge their relati onship, quite honestly. I understood 

8 what he was saying from a business standpoint. I was hopeful 

9 that he could get it resolved so that this wouldn't be an 

10 impediment to getting this done. 

I I Q And so is he. 

12 (LAUGHTER. ) 

13 A And and that's what it was. 

14 Q All right. Next, are there land issues 

15 environmental issues in the round - - ground that surround the 

16 Silver Slipper Casino? 

17 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE CLERK.) 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. JIMMERSON: 216 C-6 , please. Do you have that? 

A Well , there are wetl ands. But when you say --

MS. POLS ELL I , No . Jim --
MR. J I MMERSON, I'm sorry, what? 

MS. POLSELLI: She doesn't have it. 

MR. JIMMERSON·: Oh, she doesn't? 

MR. DICKERSON: I t' 5 a new exhibit . 
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1 MR. JIMMERSON: Thought you said she did. 

2 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON RECEIVES A DOCUMENT FROM MS. 

3 POLSELLI . ) 

4 MR. JIMMERSON ,: Does Bob have one? 

5 MS. POLSELLI : No. 

6 MR. DICKERSON,: NO. , 
7 

, 
(WHEREUPON, MR . JIMMERSON HANDS MR. DI CKERSON A 

8 DOCUMENT. ) 

9 MR. JIMMERSON': But you've heard of it. , 

10 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE CLERK.) 

11 MR . J IMMERSON: Could you mark this as Exhibit 216 C-6, 

12 please. 

l3 '(BRIEF PAUSE.) 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Do you want him to answer your question 

15 as you're doing this, or --

16 MR. JIMMERSON: 

17 Q The answer is -- You were' in the middle of 

18 answering 

19 A There are wetlands --

20 Q I'll res,tate it. You 

21 A -- that surround our property 

22 Q Right. 

23 A But I am unaware of any environmental issues 

24 regarding those wetlands. 
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1 Q Okay. tet me ask you if you've seen this letter , , 
2 dated May 13th, 2Q09, a year- and-a-half ago, from Eric Nelson 

3 to yourself . 

4 (WHEREUPON, �~�R�.� �J�I�~�E�R�S�O�N� HANDS THE WITNESS A �D�O�C�~�E�N�T�.�I� 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q And did :Mr. Nelson send this to, and did you receive , , , 
7 this on or about r1ay 13th of 2009? 

8 A 1'm sure I did. Yes. 

9 (PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 216 C- 6 I S IDENTIFI ED.) 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: Move for submission, Your Honor. 

1 1 MR. �D�I�C�K�E�R�S�O�~�:� Your Honor, it's -- would be hearsay. 

12 MR. JIMMERSON: How is it --

13 MR. DICKERSON: It's written 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: hearsay? 

15 MR. DICKERSON: it's --

16 MR. JIMMERSON: Mr. Nelson is here, and he'S on the 

17 witness, and i t's :written to him. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: Well, because this is - - Mr. Nelson --

19 THE COURT: He didn' t wr i te 

20 MR. DICKERSON: can't offer a statement of Mr. Nelson. 

21 MR. JIMMERSON: Of course he can. It's a letter in the 

22 ordinary course of business. , 

23 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

24 Q Did you ' maintain t his letter in the ordinary course 
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of your business? 

2 MR . DICKERSON: No. It's not what he maintains in the 

3 ordinary course -- 'I t 's a letter that I mean, first of all, 

4 I haven't seen thi s, Jim, so I -- let me read it. Bu t 

5 THE CCURT: Yeah. 

6 MR. DICKERSON; the point is, this is a letter written 

7 by Eric Nelson. YOll can't have -- I could offer this if I 

8 wanted against a party. But you can't offer it -- the party 

9 can't offer it for t heir benef it under the hearsay rule. 

\0 MR. JIMMERSON: This isn't hear -- t h i s is an exception 

11' to the hear say rule. They're conducting business. They are 

12 partners together. I t's like any other --

13 MR. DICKERSON: Does he have anything 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: letter he writes. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: to do with Harbour 

16 THE COURT: �Y�~�a�h�.� well, I'm not sure if be --
, 

17 MR. DICKERSON; Bay Harbour, LLC? 

18 MR. JIMMERSON: Under your interpretation -- under your 

19 interpretation , no, letter wr itten by Mr. Nelson to Mr. Alanis 

20 could be -- be introduced i nto .evidence. , 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. DICKERSON, By you. 

MR, JIMMERSON': That·, s r i diculous. 

MR. DICKERSON, You're just dead wrong. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Oh, geez. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

, 
I 

MR. DICKERSON'; I mean - -

MR. JIMMERSON: You know, who -- who between 

MR. DICKERSON': what -- why don't you lay 

MR. JIMMERSON, been lecturing evidence --

MR. DICKERSON, a -foundation? 

MR. JIMMERSON: f or the last twenty year s? 

MR. DICKERSON': What -- what association does 

us has --

Mr . Al anis 

8 have with Bay Harbour, LLC? 

9 THE COURT, (Indiscernible. ) 

10 MR. JIMMERSON: He knows about it. He �- �~� that's owned by 

11 Mr. Nelson's trust. 

12 MR. DICKERSON: What does �i�~� have to do wi t h Si l ver 

13 Slipper? 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: I'll tell you. Does Si lver Slipper 

15 have 

16 MR. DICKERSON: I have not seen --

17 MR. JIMMERSON: an arrangement with property owned --

18 MR . DICKERSON': this, Judge. I have --

19 THE COURT: Why don't you - -

20 MR. DICKERSON; -- not seen thi s 

21 THE COURT: give him a chance 

22 MR. JIMMERSON: by Mr. Nelson's t r ust? 

MR. DI CKERSON'; I have never seen thi s exhibi t, 

24 THE COURT: Okay, Why don' t you g i ve him a chance to 
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I review it and give. him a chance (indiscernible) . He hasn't 

2 
, 

seen it before. And I think it was j ust provided to him 

3 today. 

4 (BRIEF PAUSE. ) 

5 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 
, 

6 Q And as we're pausing for a moment, how long has 

7 there been a hotel site -- a development been on the books or 

8 desired to occur by owners of Silver Slipper Casino Ventures, 

9 LLC? 

10 A There �w�a�~� a plan that we evolved before this 

11 economic recession' set in, to do potentially a condominium 

12 hotel on the property. 

13 Q That was: a three-hundred room hotel? 

14 A That's correct. 

15 Q Okay. 

16 A And back then, given the world as it was, there was 

17 some hope on our �p�~�r�t� that we could - - that we could get that 

18 project done. Those hopes were dashed by, you know, the 

19 economic recession. So the current plan for the hundred and 

20 f i f ty room hotel has evolved over. the pas t year. 

2 1 Q I forgot i to ask you another question. Did you ever 

22 receive or apply for -- I'll start again. Did you ever apply 

23 for Missi ssippi Gaming Control approval for the purchase of 

24 the three hundred thousand dollars of DDJ - - DDJ debt? 
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A I ' m confident that we complied \."/ith whatever 

2 requirement, because our counsel was involved in t he 

3 transaction, our �M�~�s�s�i�s�s�i�p�p�i� counsel. 

4 Q All right. I'm not -- Thank you for that. But I 

5 would ask you to answer my question. Did you ever make an 

6 application to the Mississippi Gaming Control Board for 

7 approval of your purchase of the DDJ debt? 

8 A I I don't recall. I would simply say to you that 

9 I believe that if �~�- if approval was required, we obtained it. 

10 Q And on �-�~� on -- would Gaming Control approval and , 

11 Gaming Commission �~�p�p �r �o�v�a�l� of Mississippi be required for 

12 someone putting up- an LLC (sic) of fifteen million dollars? 

13 A No. well , depends on what the terms of that are. 

14 Q And what you mean by that, if the expected payment 

15 on the LC might be a percentage of gaming revenue, there may 

16 be a keener look or scrutiny by the Gaming Control officials 

17 in . Mi ssissippi, �c�o�~�r�e�c�t�?� 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q That's what you were saying, it depends on the terms 

20 of the loan? 

21 A Ri ght. But i n terms of the -- the original loan of 

22 forty-three mi l l i on dollars, there was an exception so that 

23 t he lenders and that did not were not required to and did 

24 not have to apply for a license under that. 

, 
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1 Q I understand. Was there seven acres of land that 

2 Mr. Nelson's trust' arranged to help the access issues to the 

3 the Silver �S�l�i�p�~�e�r� Casino Ventures site? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Okay. Would you tell the Judge briefly what that 

6 transaction involved? 

7 A At the time of developing the casino we had a -- the 

8 road leading in, such a tight site that we had to take about a 

9 quarter acre of wetlands in order to really make the road wide 

10 enough to get trucks through and the like. When you take 

11 wetlands in any situation it is a highly controversial and 

12 and difficult �p�r�o�c�~�s�s� with the Corp of Engineers. We were 

13 able to get the Corp of Engineers to approve that with several 

14 conditions; one of which was that we do certain work on the 

15 site and -- and restore the wetl ands around the area that we 

16 were impacting; and that we take additional acreage and 

17 dedicate it to newiwetlands on a multiple basis in terms of 

18 the acreage that we were actually taking out of wetlands. 

19 Q And did that work to establish the additional pad 

20 and site for the Silver Slipper Casino impact land owned by 

21 Eri c Nelson's trust and/or the --

22 A Well --

23 Q Lynita Nelson Trust? 

24 A wel l , when the situation arose we all discussed 

. 
D-09- 411537-0 NELSON 11/ 17/10 �P�~�R�T�I�~�L� TRANSCRIPT 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT - FAMILY DI VI SION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES 
601 N. Pecos Road. Ltl s �V�e�g �~ �s�,� NnvlIdll !l9101 (7021 455-4977 108 



------------------------------------" . _._,---_., --,--_._-_._-_.'--_. 

that they were going t o expire, he' s trying to find --

2 Q �p�r�o�j�e�c�t�~�.� 

3 A -- �w�h�a�t�~�v�e�r� good projects will use them. 

4 Q I understand. So an --

5 A You allude td other financing, and that is 
, 

6 Mississi ppi Reven4e bonds 

7 Q Revenue:bonds. , 

8 A - - which ar e taxable �a�~�d� typically bear an interest 

9 rate of maybe �a�b�o�~�t� a percent higher than t he Go Zone bonds 

10 which are tax-free. 

11 Q So you $0 from tax- free to taxable, but you --

12 A But --

13 Q -- and you go from a half a percent t o one-and- a-

14 half percent? 

15 A Well , not currently. Because t hey -- these , 
, 

16 Mississippi �R�e�v�e�n�~�e� bonds, whi ch do not have a sunset 

17 provision on them; in o t her words they're available into next 

18 year, trade �e�s�s�e�n�~�i�a�l�l�y �.� at LIBOR -- I think it'S six- month 

19 LIB OR wi t h no spr¢ad. So given today' s market, with short-

20 term i nterest rates so low and and next to nothing, these 

21 
, 

bonds actually accrue interest at the same rate as the Go Zone 

22 bonds 

23 Q LIBOR being 

24 A -- of r?ughly a half a percent. 
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I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Q 

A 

Q 

, 
LIBOR being a half a percent to one right now. 

It 's -- iit's less than a half a percent actually. , 
That's great. 

MS. NELSON, :Yeah. 
I 

Q Okay. 
I 
That's wonderful. Now, Eri c Nelson is 
I 

6 certainly one person who might, through his contacts, be able 

7 to bring somebody to the table to help out the company, 

8 correct? 

9 A Yes. 

10 Q Paul �A�l�~�n�i�s� would be another one who could acquire 

11 amongst his friends and business associates and business 

12 acquaintances to i nquire of people who might be in terested, 

13 correct? 

14 A 

15 Q 

Yes. 

Loren Ostrow is certainly in the same position. And , , 
16 your investment banker crowd, Libra, Mr. Ravich, he certainly , 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

, 
would be another 

, 
source of people; correc t ? , 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

So all 6f you together have not produced a single 
, , 

person t o put up a letter of cred i t , correct? , 

A correct! , 
I 

Q Not �w�i�t�~�s�t�a�n�d�i �n�g� subst antial efforts on your part, I 

23 believe, and �o�t�h�e�~�s� to do so? 

24 A That i s ; correct. 
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Q So would you tell me why you t hink no one has come 

2 forward to advance let's say a fifteen million dollar LC to 

3 allow either Go Zone funding or - - or State bond funding to 

4 occur? 

5 A It 's been an i ncredibly tough credit market 

6 general ly over this past twelve months. And it -- it hasn't 

7 -- it's not easy to find any f i nancing out there, much less 

8 one in the sticks ?f Mississippi, 

9 Q What is your forecast in the future? In other 

10 words, you can't see the future, we can ' t see the f uture; is 

It it likely or unlikely that you wi l l receive a letter of credit 

12 from someone in the calendar year of 2011? 

13 A I think it 's less probable - - it's less than fifty-

14 fifty, but I t hink t he chances have improved from what they 

15 have been over the past year. 

16 Q Yeah, but ten-ninety to forty-sixty is still a tough 

17 market, fair statement? 

18 A Yes. But one of the· -- but we 've also gone from 

19 what was nine- paint-two mi ll ion dollars of EBITDAM in 2009, to 

20 what we project will be eleven- four, eleven-five this year. 

21 Q Percentage. 

22 A So we're we're i n a much healthier state than we 

23 were a year ago. 

24 Q I certainly hope so. And my congratulations to you 
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1 if that's the case:. I certainly hope it turns out to be �t�h�~�t� 

2 way. 

3 A few more questions. What is the company's 

4 priorities going forward; is it to sell, is it to obtain a 

5 letter of credit? I presume the number one priority would be 

6 dealing with DDJ, correct? 

7 A That is 90rrect. 

8 Q So what 90 you believe will be the outcome of your 

9 negotiations with DDJ, since you are on a month-to-month basis 

10 with your lender to whom you owe fifty-seven million dollars 

11 plus? 

12 A Well, we: have -- have ongoing discussions with DDJ, 

13 I've been to Boston to meet with them. We have made great 

14 efforts to try to get them to extend for a longer period of 

15 time, and give us time to create more value in this property. 

16 They have worked with us to date. They haven't noticed a 

17 default. I think that's because they -- they believe that , 

18 they are, as the trade calls it, money good on their debt, 

19 because the performance of the property has improved. 

20 So we're working -- we've worked with them. But I'm 

21 not terribly sanguine or confident about the chances of us 

22 getting DDJ to �a�g�r�~�e� to that. I think if we could get the 

23 letter of credit �- �~� they had agreed originally to extend the 

24 maturity of the loan through 2012, to give us a year to build 
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1 
, 

the hotel and a �y�~�a�r� to stabilize the hotel. If -- if someone 

2 were to come forward today and help us with that letter of 

3 credit, on a negotiated basis, then I think certainly the 

4 Alanis- Ostrow part of the equation would vote for t hat, and 

5 would go back to QDJ and press them to honor their verbal 

6 commitment previously to extend for two years and try to 

7 negotiate the best interest rate we could during that term and 

8 get the hotel �b�u�i�~�t� and stabilized. 

9 Until recently -- until maybe the last thirty to 

10 sixty days it seemed impossible to refinance this property. 

11 But recently the �~�r�k�e�t�s� seem t o be openi ng up a bit. And 

12 frankly , on this trip I ' ve had discussi ons wi t h major l enders 

13 about the possibil ity of refinancing. That would be our fi r st 

14 preference, would ,be to take DDJ out. We might need 

15 additional equity i f that were the case, or if we could get a 

16 group that is more entrepreneurial and -- and isn't regulated, 

17 we could get a �b�a�~�k� loan for a part of what it would take to 

18 get DDJ out and then bring in a new investor whom we would 

19 give a higher rate of interest and probably some eq -- a 

20 decent piece of equity to take out the balance and give us the 

21 letter of c redit. That woul d be - - that's my ideal solution, 

22 and we and �t �h �a�~� woul d be our first choice. I bel ieve that 

23 Ravi ch wants t o �s�~�l�l�,� and he probably - - that' s h is first 

24 choi ce, but he's a minority. 
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I Q I -- I gather -- and I may be misinterpreting this, 

2 if I am, I do not mean to be unfair. But r · gather by your 

3 body language and t he -- and t he answers you ' r e giving �m�~� that 

4 t he existing owners are not particularly incl i ned to invest 

5 more money in this proj ect; that is to say Nelson , Alanis and 

6 Ostrow and Ravich are not particularly incl ined t o make 

7 f ur ther capital contributions t o help this property alongi 

8 fair statement? 

9 A Fair statement. Certainly not with the default 

)0 outstanding. 

II Q Okay. What i s your intent -- what is your and 

12 Loren's i ntent , if you know - - certainly you should know your 

13 intent -- regarding your desire or intent to exercise the 

14 impasse provisions of the operating agreement, Exhibi t SQ? 

15 A If f orced by our lender because we have no other 

16 alternatives, if we're unable to find any viable -- other 

17 alternatives such as refinancing or someone who woul d come and 

18 bring a letter of credit to get the hotel done, then it is our 

19 preference to sell the property and move on. 

20 Q And of course one of the t hings t hat there has been 

21 some disagreement upon between yourself and Mr. Nelson i s why 

22 wouldn' t you, before you try t o eject a partner, or eject 

23 yourself by a partner, the impasse provision, why wouldn' t you 

24 seek a cram down through the help of " t he bankruptcy court and 
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make DDJ more responsive than t hey have been to your needs and 

2 the owners' needs? 

3 A Well, two r easons. One. I don' t think we ' re 

4 bankrupt. We're producing enough cash flow to pay them on a 

5 current basis. And based upon the current EBITDA that we --

6 we will achieve during this year, at any reasonable multiple 

7 based l.,lpon compara1ti ve transactions t hat are taking place in 

8 the ,gaming industry today, this property is worth at least 

9 sixty- eight million dollars. And so it has equity value of 

10 eleven million dol,lars in excess of their -- their debt. So 

II our concern is t ha,t un we're in that un fo rtunate situati on 
, 

12 where -- and it sounds ironic to say unf ortunate -- but we ' re 

13 doing well enough that we can pay t hem. As I sai d before, I 

14 think they feel - their money is good. As opposed to some other , 
15 companies i n the gaming industry who are so underwater in 

16 their debt that they ' ve been able to, through a bankruptcy 

17 proceeding 

18 Q Cram down the debt. 

19 A -- cram 90wn. And where their debt is publ ic also 

20 and where it's traged, so that t hey have the ability to buy it 

21 back at a -- Our debt is not public and it's not t raded. So 

22 we -- we - - we're �~ �a�k �i �n�g� enough money to pay t hem, but 

23 unfortunately not �~�n�o�u�g�h� money for all o f us to make a nice 

24 profit out of this . 
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Q Have you retained bankruptcy counselor consulted 

2 bankruptcy counsel? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Who is that? What is the name of that firm, please? 

5 A We 
, 

we contacted our Balch and Bi ngham bankruptcy 
, 

6 counsel that is our counsel in Mississippi; we consulted wit h 

7 their bankr uptcy counsel , I t hink out of Alabama. And we 've 

8 -- and I've consulted with an i ndividual by the name of Jeremy 

9 Richards (phonetic), who i s a long ti me friend of mine, who is 

10 with one of the largest bankruptcy firms i n Los Angeles. 

II Q Okay. Do you know whether or not Mr . Nel son has 

12 consulted with �b�a�~�k�r�u�p�t�c�y� counsel 

13 A He's indicated --
, 

14 Q on behalf of - -

15 A to me that he has. 

16 Q Did he �~�d�e�n �t�i�f�y� who he spoke wi t h? 

17 A I thought he mentioned Silver, Joel Silver 

18 (phonetic). 

19 

20 

21 

Q 

A 

would it be Mr . Jeff Sil ver (phonetic) -­
i 

Jeff. 

MR. NELSON: lAnd Jerry --

22 Q -- or Jerry Gordon (phonetic) o f Gordon & Silver Law 

23 Fir m? 

24 A That sounds correct . 
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Q All right. Now, we underst and what you told us to 

2 be your and Mr. Ostrow's ownership in the company. And you 

3 i ndi -- you pointed out that there's a small amount owned by 

4 you directly. What entity owns the balance of your interest 

5 in Silver Slipper Casino Ventures, is it Silver Sli pper 

6 Gaming? 

7 A Some. 

8 Q Okay. And what --

9 A My chil j -- Well, I - - I can go back t o this exhibi t 

10 if you' d l i ke and --

I I Q Please. : 

12 A - - go thr ough it. 

\3 (WHEREUPON, THE WITNESS REVIEWS A DOCUMENT.) 

14 Q Are there child r en's trusts invol ved in what you 

15 have? 

16 A I have four chi ldren, and each one o f them has an 

17 interest i n this . 

18 Q Two you would like to keep and two you would like to 

19 disown? 

20 (LAUGHTER.) 

21 A NO , I like them all . 

22 MR. J I MMERSON: I want to make sur e we publish that part 

23 of the dep -- testimony, Your Honor. 

24 (LAUGHTER. ) 
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2 

3 

4 

, 
(BRIEF PAUSE,! WHILE THE WITNESS REVIEWS A DOCUMENT.) 

THE WITNESS; I Let me see if I can find the page. 
I 

(BRIEF PAUSE .') 

THE WITNESS: ' So it's hard for me to translate these 

5 immediately into p:ercentages. I mean --, 
6 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

7 Q I don't need the percentages. 
, 
, 

8 MR. �D�I�C�K�E�R�S�O�~�;� I believe I have an 

9 Q I �d�i�d�n�/�t�~� ask that. 
I 

10 MR. DICKERSON: -- exhibit that may help. Exhibit T2 may , , 
11 may assist him.: 

12 
. , , 

MR. JIMMERSON: Can you -- can I ask you for that, Ms. 

13 Clerk? 

14 MR. DICKERSON: Here's Exhibit T2 right here. 
, 

15 (WHEREUPON, MR. DICKERSON HANDS MR . JIMMERSON A 

16 DOCUMENT. ) 

17 MR. JIMMERSON: Has thi s been -- is this in the book yet? 

18 MR. �D�I�C�K�E�R�S�O�~�:� Yes. 

19 (WHEREUPON, 0R. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS AND 

20 HANDS HIM A DOCUME;NT.) 
, , 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 
, 
, 
: 

22 Q Let me $how you what's been identified as Exhibit 

23 T2. 

24 A Okay. 

, 
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Q Maybe that will help, 

2 (BRIEF PAUSE WHILE THE WITNESS REVIEWS A DOCUMENT.) 

3 A well, that's what I was looking at in t his same 

4 document . But it doesn' t --

5 MR. JIMMERSON: So there you go (i ndiscernible). 

6 THE WITNESS: You sti l l have to do some math here. But 

7 suffi ce it to say that of the Class A shares 

8 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

9 Q Can you identify what T2 is? 

10 A T2 is a equity schedule as of November 12th, 2009. 

II MR. DICKERSON: And look at the second page. 

12 MR . JIMMERSON: And I bel ieve, Your Honor , that it has 

13 been admitted. 

14 (BRIEF PAUSE WHIL E THE WITNESS REVIEWS THE DOCUMENT. ) 

15 BY MR . JIMMERSON, 

16 Q Would you like my reading gl asses? 

17 (LAUGHTER. ) 

18 A No. I -- I know. This is a little difficult but 

19 I --

20 Q That's all right. 

21 A -- I think I can see it. 

22 (BRIEF PAUSE.) 

23 A Wel l, my i nterest is held indivi dually through my 

24 four children's �t �~�u�s �t�s� and through Silver Slipper Gaming. 
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1 Q And then I presume that on behalf of the trust you 

2 are the trustee, or you're capable of voting your kids' 

3 interest? 

4 A Actual ly , Mr. Ostrow is the trustee. 

5 Q Mr. Ostr ow. Al l right. Now, understanding what 

6 your percentages are, do you own, or any of your entiti es of 

7 which you have an interest own, any of the debt? 

8 A I own around three hundred and thirty-three thousand 

9 dollars of the debt. 

10 Q And when did you - -

11 A pri ncipal amount. 

12 Q -- acquire that debt? 

13 A Several years ago. Maybe three year s ago. 

14 Q Three years ago, 2007 approximately? 

15 A In that time frame. 

16 Q All right. And have you acquired any debt more 

17 recent to that? 

18 A NO. 

19 Q Are you aware of any acquisition by anyone else 

20 associated with you, like Mr. Ostrow or Mr. Ravich acquiring 

21 I any debt? 

22 A I'm not aware of that. 

23 Q Are you aware of any transaction involving a s ix 

24 mi l lion dollar acquisition of DDJ jet - - DDJ debt on this 
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Q -- that there is some challenges in the Cure lease 

2 relative to what is ultimately going to be owed t o him if you 

3 exercise the right; do you know anything about t hat? 

4 MR . NELSON: The net after you pay it off, the net 

5 carryover. You've got to pay him two percent of the net for 

6 life . 

7 THE WITNESS: Dh. Oh. There is a provision in the lease 

8 that even after you exercis,e the option to purchase it, that 

9 the landlord. or Cure Land Company , retai ns for a period of 

10 years, I believe it's ten years, a two percent interest in the 

II net profi ts genera'ted from t he facili ty. But it' 5 of lesser 

12 value t han one might thi nk from -- fr om that statement, 

13 because it's an unusual provision that says you deduct 

14 principal -- interest and principal . So, i n effect, i f 

15 s omeone structures a transaction i n a manner where they put 

16 debt on it and it doesn't have any restriction upon it being 

17 inside debt or outside debt, you can p r etty much make net 

18 income zero. So it's 

19 Q That sounds l i ke a 

20 A -- it's a nuisance provision. 

21 Q I was going to say, it sounds like a potential 

22 lawsui t because he might claim --

23 A 

24 Q 

NO. He's acknowl edged 

-- that you're - -
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I A that i--

2 Q you I r,e overspending in order to reduce his two 

3 percent. 

4 A It's not' over-spending. It I S a question of have you 

5 really made principal payments and do you owe him --

6 Q Right. 

7 A -- that. He's acknowledged to me that he 

8 understands that it is after principal and interest both, and 

9 so it has limited value. And we've had discussions where he 

10 would give that 'up for potentially a half a million dollars. 

II 

12 

13 

Q Now, it' !s my understanding that since your 

deposition July 2 

through September 

you've , 
, 
'30th. , , 

had at least one quarter's results 

And you've talked about you're doing 

14 a little better this year in 2010. Could you tell us, you 
I 

15 know, what you 're !doing in 2010, please? 

16 A Well, I "think it's significantly improved 
, 

17 performance. 

18 Q Okay. What are the numbers, please? 

19 A Well, I can tell you that --

20 Q We have them --

21 A Octob'er 

22 Q through July 31, so what have they been then - -

23 since then? 

24 A We've exceeded budget every month since then. I 
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think we 've exceeded budget every month of the year since 

2 January. In the last -- since -- in August I think our cash 

3 flow was i n excess of a million ; I thi nk in September it was 

4 in the mid-nine hundreds; and in October comparativ ely --

5 because the last quarter of last - - of last year, 2009, was an 

6 extremely difficult and poor performing quarter for us. So , 

7 last October, in 2009, we did about five hundred and sixty 
, 

8 thousand of EBITDA; and this year we did one million one 

9 hundred and sixty thousand. , 
\0 Q That's a significant increase for one month. 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q You ' ll have a slowdown for November, December; fair 

13 statement? 

14 A We're we're on track to do budget -- at least do 

15 budget in 
I November;. And that EBITDA budget number is in the , 

16 mid- nine hundreds. 

17 Q And �w�h�a�~� -- that was my next question. What is the 

18 budget number, is nine hundred thousand for EBITDA? 

19 A For November. 

20 Q For �N�o�v�~�m�b�e �r�.� And that's the EBITDA , earnings 

21 before interest, taxes and amortization. Does that include or 

22 not incl ude consiqeration of payment of management fees? 

23 A 

24 Q 

That would be EBITDAM. 

EBITDAM' i 
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A Let ' s talk about EBITDAM. 

2 Q Al l right. 

3 A And -- and all of those numbers I've given you, 

4 those are EBITDAM . . 

5 Q Okay. 

6 MR. DICKERSON-: I ' m sorry, I mi ssed that last comment. 

7 THE ' WI TNESS: ,In all of the numbers 

8 MR. NELSON: Bef ore interest payments. 

9 THE WITNESS: that I have given you previously with 

10 regard to the monthly performance, those are EBITDAM numbers. 

11 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

12 Q And if I' understand, when you use the word EBITDA 

13 that is before �i �n�t�~�r�e�s�t� payments, is that right? 

14 A That is corr ect. 

15 Q And is �- �~� and if you include management -- if it's 

16 EBITOA it's wi thout management, if it's EBITDAM it's with --

17 with incl udi ng management. 

18 A EBITDA would exclude would - - would deduct 

19 management fees. So EBITDA would be about six t y thousand 

20 dollars l ess .than EBITDAM. 

21 Q Okay. S:o now, okay, just tell me, a monthl y cost 

22 for the current loan at the seven percent with f i ve percent 

23 accruing, per month as opposed t o. per quarter, i s what,. 

24 please? 

0- 09-411537- 0 NELSON 11117110 PARTlhL TRANSCR1PT 
EIGHTH JUDI CIAL DISTRICT COURT • FAM IL Y DIVISION - TRANSCRI PT VI OEO SERVI CES 

60 l N . �~�e�c�D�s� Road, Ll!I s Vega6, Nevada 69101 (102) �4 �5�5�·�~�9�7�7� 62 



A On a cash basis or --

2 Q Yes, on a 

3 A on an accrual 

4 Q cash basis. 

5 A basis? 

6 Q No, on a cash basis. 

7 A Three hundred and fifty thousand dollars per month. 

8 Q And on accrual basis is what? 

9 A Uh --

10 Q With the other five percent. 

11 A An additional two hundred -- two hundred and fifty 

12 thousand. 

13 Q All right. So l et's call it t hree fifty and six 

14 hundred. Okay. So if you have an EBITDAM of nine hundred 

15 thousand, and you have to pay either three f i fty or six 

16 hundred, because it's before interest deduction --

17 A 

18 Q 

19 you 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 doing? 

23 A 

24 Q 

Yes. 

-- then -are you making any money in 2010 or are 

Yes. 

breaking even, are you losing, what are you 

We're making money. 

Okay. Now, has there been any effort to, you know, 
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catch up on the at l east two missing two defaulted payments 

2 with the landlord -- I mean, wi th DDJ? 

3 A Yes. 

4 Q Sorry, the lender. Now, as you're making an extra 

5 couple hundred thousand do you save that for operations or are 

6 you trying to retire or catch up on the mortgage obligation? 

7 A There were 

8 Q What's your management 

9 -- �t�h�e�r�e �~� were two payments earlier this year that 

JO were not made, and: we caught those up; i n the l ast quarter we 

A 

II have caught those up. So that for the year we have made all 

12 of the seven percent interest payments required under the -­
, 

13 Q Okay. 

14 A -- f orbearance agreement. 

IS Q All right . And while accruing the five percent that 

16 you haven' t paid? 

17 A That is correct. 

18 Q And t hen how -- I maybe missed it. I thought you 

19 said you missed two _payments in 2009. Was I wrong or right? 

20 A well, I think t hat we missed an entire payment of 

21 the twelve percent. Then this year after we were unsuccessful 

22 in selling the property last year, we were back in -- we've 

23 been back in negotiations practically this entire year with 

24 the lender. And so for a period of time this year we wit hheld 
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payments agai n , wi .th t he possibility t hat a bankruptcy might 

2 be eminent. And as a -- because we've been able to build up 

3 cash and we have enough cash now to be able in a worst case to 

4 fight through a bankr uptcy proceeding, and because it's 

5 expensive to have interest keep accrui ng -- interest on 

6 interest.-- and as a measure of good faith we made those 

7 payments this year 

8 Q Okay. 

9 A -- the seven percent. 

10 Q And as I understand now, the -- the arrangement, if 

11 you wi ll, with DDJ, at least as Mr. Nelson understands it, is 

12 essentially a month-to-month deal. Is that a fair statement, 

13 fair �c�h�a�r�a�c�t�e�r�i�z�a�~�i�o�n�?� 

14 A Yes. 

15 Q Okay. Now, you have put this property for sale, as 

16 I understand it now, for maybe two years' time. I mean, I 

17 I don't know when Penn· Colonial or f irst started talking 

18 about it. When did you first put the property up for sale, at 

19 l east let it known that it would be available f or sale? 

20 A I n the -- before the maturity of the loan we began 

21 discussions with the lender. And at some point last year, 

22 first quarter thereabouts, we prepared materials and put the 

23 property up f or sale basically in the first part of last 

24 Q First quarter --
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1 A year. 

2 Q of 20097 

3 A First quarter, second quarter. 

4 Q Fair enough. And you had at least one serious offer 

5 or ODe serious negotiation. Am I saying t he company right, 

6 Penn Colonial? 

7 A Penn National Bank. 

8 Q Penn National. Thank you. And they own gaming 

9 enterprises in Mississippi, I believe, is that right? 

10 A They're the direct competing property with us. 

11 Q Okay. And that is known as Holl ywood? 

12 A It is . 

13 Q All right. And so when we talk about competing 

14 property, you know, the Mirage is across the street from, you 

15 know, the Treasure Island or something. I mean, what -- where 

16 is the Hol lywood in comparison to Silver Slipper? 

17 A Less than ten miles away. 

18 Q Okay. So it's not next door like we have it here? 

19 It's drivable, but close by? 

20 A We're all by ourselves there. 

21 Q Al l by yourselves. Okay. In the boondocks, I see. 

22 All right. And what was the result -- what was the offer by 

23 Penn National, please? 

24 A It --
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I Q 

i 
I 

I know it had -- I know it had a lot of hair on it, 

2 but what was the �~�u�m�b�e�r�?� 

3 A In the range of sixty- two million dollars. 

4 Q Okay. And it was rejected by all of you? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Okay. �~�d� was there a vote to reject? In other 

7 words, are there minutes that say that Silver Slipper 
i 

8 Ventures, Inc. haq a hundred percent of its owners vote no to 

9 the offer? 
, 

IO A I would doubt it. I -- I'm not aware of specific 

11 minutes 

12 Q 
. , 

All �r�~�g�h�t�.� 

13 A -- to �t�~�a�t� effect. 

14 Q But anyway, a fair statement -- and I ' ve read your 

15 testimony and your: deposition, the reason for it was that at , 

16 least the Alanis and -- and Ostrow people and everyone 

17 wouldn't get t heii capital accounts back? 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. DICKERSON: Objection 
I 

A Everyone --

MR. DICKERSON: form of the question. 

Q 

A 

EverYOn¢ would not get their capital back? 

Let me say this, everyone objected to the , , 
23 transaction and felt it was inadequate. 

24 Q Okay. 
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1 A And so there was no disagreement about rejecting it. 

2 Q And it was inadequate because you would not -- you, 

3 meaning the people who own a piece of the Silver Slipper 

4 Casino Ventures, would not have received back at least their 

5 capital accounts; cor rect? 

6 A Essentially. I mean, after you l ook at 

7 transactional expenses and --

B Q All right . 

9 A - - potentially balancing current assets and 

10 liabilities and the l i ke, there would be very few proceeds 

11 lef t after payment of debt. 

12 Q Now, was the sixty-two million dollars· inclusive or 

13 not inclusive of buying Mike Cure's lease out? 

14 A It would've been subject to Mike Cure'S lease. They 

15 WOUld've taken it and assumed the lease. 

16 Q Okay. So that when we subtract t h irteen-peint-fiv e 

17 million dollars', even excludi ng the two percent, the of fer 

18 the purchase offer is, what, forty-seven, forty - eight --

19 A NO. No. No. No. 

20 Q -- mi l l i on dollars? 

21 A They would pay sixty- two and assume the lease. 

22 Q And assume the lease. Okay. And if we were to 

23 assume the lease, . that would be seventy-five million dol lars 

24 t hey were agreeing to pay if they wanted to buy it? 
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, 

1 A Ultimately. , 
, 

2 Q UltimatJly . Right. Okay, And -- But ultimately 

3 that would end on December 31, because it goes up another two 

4 million dollars to fifteen 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Then it woul d become 

five on July- 1. 

fifteen more fifteen-and-a-half more. 

Okay. 
; 

Good. Now, the -- because of the failure of , 

sixty- two mi llion Ito return , your capital account and others, 

10 can you just tell :The Court what are the respective capital 

11 accounts, by rougq approximation as you understand them today? 

12 Start with yourself and Mr . Ostrow. 

13 A It's easier to explain this to you kind of in 

14 reference to thosE1 pages I alluded to before, attached to the 

15 operating �a�g�r�e�e�m�e�~�t �.� We have classes of stock. 
, 

16 Q Okay. 

17 A And so there is what is con - - called in the 

18 investment banking world, a waterfall. 

19 Q Which is a -- a priority of payment? 

20 A Correct. 

21 Q Not in pari passu? 
, 

22 A That is ;correct. , 
I 

23 Q All �r�i�g�~�t�.� But it just to get t o -- I want to 

24 jump to the end line. Is there eleven million dollars in 
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1 capital accounts? :What is the total amount of capital 

2 accounts? 

3 A That is correct. 

4 Q Thank yo\l. Eleven million dollars for all investors 

5 who own any part of casino -- of Silver Slipper Casino 

6 Ventures? 

7 A Eleven million, I think, and a l it tle bit more than 

8 that. But that includes certain accrued preferred returns 

9 that are associated with some of those --

10 Q 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

14 Q 

Which is also 
" 

, 

classes of stock. 

part of the waterfall, right? , 
Correct. 

Okay. So now it was eleven million in capital, so 

IS the Judge understands. But there is - - there has to be a 

16 method or a sequence to receive those dollars, correct? 

17 A Correct .; 

18 Q Okay. So now tell The Court what the waterfall is, 

19 please? 

a 

20 A The l ast cash monies put in of three million dollars 

21 come back first. And I believe Dynasty, which is Eric's 

22 entity, put a �m�i�l�~�i�o�n� three of that three million; the Alanis-

23 Ostrow group of investors put a million four, and Libra put 
, , 

24 three hundred thousand. 
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Q Okay. 

2 A Those are rough -- those are approximate numbers. 

3 Q Yes. That's my understanding as wel l . 

4 A And then' the next class of stock was, I believe, a 

5 million seven f i fty which was put in when we acquired that 

6 barge that you have referred to previously, 

7 Q The President. 

8 A And I believe t hat "Libra put in a million of that, 

9 and I believe �D�y�n�a�~�t�y� put in none, and we would 've put in the 

10 balance, Alanis-Ostrow investors. 

11 Q Okay. 

12 A And when t he project was init i al l y funded there was 

13 a million-and-a-half dollars put i n. And I beli eve that the 

14 Alanis-Ostrow �i�n�v�e�~�t�o�r�s� put in a mil l ion plus of that, and 

15 Libra put in maybei a half a millio n. And then Dynasty has a 

16 four million and fi f ty thousand dollar capital account, which , 
17 was - - which is a part of a five million dol lar capital 

I 

18 account for Dynasty's deemed equity interest in t he property 

19 as of day one, for : the river boat, the monies .that had been 

20 put in, sweat equity, whatever. That was a negotiated amount 

21 that is last in �p�r�~�o�r�i�t�y�.� 

22 Q Got it . Okay. It 's been communicated to us, so if 

23 I mi sunderstand I want you to correct me, that the group, 

24 minus Eric, have voted t o sell the property at sixty-eight 
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million dollars, if you can get sixty-eight million dollars; 

2 is that true? 

3 A The board of managers has voted three-to-two, with 

4 Loren Ostrow, Jess Ravich and myself voting yes; and Eri c and 

5 Gene McCarlie, who is one of the other managers on Eric's 

6 side, voting no. That is a vote at the board of managers 

7 level. 

8 A 

9 Q 

10 A 

11 Q 

12 A 

13 Q 

14 A 

15 Q 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

This is a --, 

When when did that -­
I 
I 

major: de 

occur? 

I 
Pardon me? 

When did, that occur? 

About forty-five days ago, maybe. 

Okay. So maybe September time period? 

Roughly then. 

End of September, first of October? 

Yes. 

Okay. Go ahead, sir. 

That is �~�h�a�t� is called a major decision. 

As defined by the operating agreement. 
I , 

That is correct. 

Go �a�h�e�a�d�~� sir. 
, 
, . 

And it �r�e�q�u�~�r�e�s� ultimately the vote of the members, 
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1 and it requires a vote of seventy percent of the members to go 

2 t hrough. And we have not yet called for that vote of the 

3 members. 

4 Q Okay. Now, if -- under the current ownership is 

5 there any way that you can achieve seventy percent of the 

6 members if Mr. Nelson's interests vote no? 

7 A No. 

8 Q And then under the agreement there are consequences 

9 for having disagreement over major decisions, major being 

10 capital, and capital the defined term under the operating 

11 agreement, correct? 

12 A A buy/ sell procedure sets in. 

13 Q All right. And what is your understanding of the 

14 mechanics of the buy/sell agreement 

15 A The mechanics --

16 Q buy/sell procedure? 

17 A the mechanics are that those parties who vot e in 

18 favor of a major decision have the right to declare an i mpasse 

19 under the terms of the agreement, and essentially then require 

20 the dissenting members to name a value; at which point those 

21 who approved t he major matter have t he right to either buy or 

22 sell at that price. 

23 Q Okay. �~�d� to follow - - put i t in con -- in context 

24 of this asset and the Nelsons and yourself and the other 
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i 
I , 

1 owners, in the end of September, first of October, a major 

2 decision was made relative to the agreement by a majority o f 

3 the managers, three to two, to place the property up for sale 

4 and to sell it if ' they can receive sixty-eight million dollars 
, 

5 wit hout - - without seeking any further dollars; correct? 

6 A No. It was a price of not less than sixty-eight 

7 million dollars. But the intent was to place the property for 

8 sale without a �p�r�~�c�e� on it. 

9 Q I under$tand. But it "s been for sale since the 

10 first quarter of 2009? 

11 A NO, it hasn't. We t ook it off the market 

12 completely--

\3 Q 

14 A 

I see. I 

I 
-- back! in August of 2009. We di scontinued any 

15 sales efforts and determined that -- that's why we were 

16 preparing again for a potential bankruptcy,' because we felt 

17 that the performance of the property in 2009 was an aberration 

18 and that we were �~�e�l�l�i�n�g� out at the bottom of the market. We 

19 needed more time from our l ender to turn this around. 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

And you might 

So 
, 

use :a foreclosure price - - I I m sorry. 
, 

so w'e 

The banks --

0-09-411537-0 , NELSON 11 / 17110 PARTI AL TRANSCRIPT 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT • FAMlLY DIVISION - TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES 
601 N.: Pecos ROlld, U,S Veqas, Nevllda 89101 (702) 455-4977 74 



A -- so we took the property off the market, and it 

2 has not - - and it's not on the market presently. 

3 Q Okay. But t here's been an agreement - - a vote three 

4 t o two to put it on the market and to sell i t for at least 

5 sixty- eight million dollars? 

6 A That is correct. 

7 Q Okay. Now, one way to interpret that is what you 

8 said, i s that certai nly you would be pleased to receive a 

9 seventy million dollar offer or a seventy-five million dol lar 

10 offer. 

11 A Absolutely. , 
12 Q But you1would agree to sell at sixty-eight million 

13 dollars? I , 
I 

14 A Correct 1 , 

IS Q And may i r ask, it seemed common sensical (sic) to 

16 

17 

me, but I don't kAow it to be true. May I ask, did this 

number, 
I , 

sixty-eight million dollars, di d you run that number 
I 

18 by DW, your 1 end$r? 

19 (BRIEF PAUSE,) 

20 A I ' m sure we discussed it wi ,th them, but they didn't 

21 have any input i nto that number. 

22 Q And -- and so you're saying they didn't have any 

23 input? They didn't give you t heir opinion if that's t he right 

24 number, too low a number, too high a number? 
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A The number was set by our investment -- by -- by 

2 Lib r a, by their expert advice to us as investment bankers" 

3 that they felt that based upon comparative sales and other , 
4 information best available to them, that that was a price that 

! 

5 they f el t we coul d achieve 

6 Q Al l right. Fair enough. 

7 A - - at least that pri ce --

8 Q Fair enough. , 

9 A -- if not better. 

10 Q And by vir t ue of the waterfall provisi ons withi n the 

11 operating agreement, that we've covered very superficially but 

12 then we tried t o highlight them together, at sixty-eight 

13 million dollars Mr. Nelson will receive how much money or 

14 his interest, Dynasty, will recei ve how much money? 
, 

15 A A mi ll ion five hundred fifty thousand. 

16 Q Okay. And the balance of monies will be received by 

17 the o ther owners? 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 Ostrow? 

21 A 

22 Q 

Uh --

YOur selt -- essentially Libra and y ourself and Loren 

! 

Yes. 

Okay. And how much money would that be at a sixty-

23 eight mil li on dol,lar figure? How much money would you receive 

24 back while Mr. Nel son ' s trust receives one- point - five-five 

, 
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million? 

2 A Two plus: million. 

3 Q And the numbers above sixty-eight million dollars, 

4 lets say seventy million dollars, who would get the next two 

· 5 million dollars if : that was the price achieved? 

6 A Well, �a�t �~� the sixty-eight mi l l i on doll ar price, not 

7 all of the -- about seven hundred thousand of the preferred 

8 return is not paid. So that would go primarily to Ravich and 

9 

10 

II 

some to Dynasty 

Q Okay. 

I 
and , some to the Alanis-Ostrow investors. 

A Then the balance aft er that seven hundred thousand 

12 dollars would go - .... at least based upon what Loren and I 

· 13 believe is the case, eighty- five percent to Dynas ty and 

14 fifteen percent to us --

I S Q And - -

16 A to Alanis-Ostrow. 
I 

17 Q do yoh believe that Mr. Nelson has a different 

18 view of that eighty- five fifteen belief? 

19 A Well, he' s expressed the opinion to me t hat -- that 

20 this eighty-five �f �~�f�t�e�e�n� spli t of the four million and fifty 
• 

21 thousand dol l ar, what we call B's and G's class of 

22 Q Classes of membership interest. Yes. 

23 A -- that it -- that it's his r ecollection that the 

24 that t he three �m�i�l�~�i�o�n� four fifty should come back to him 
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, 
1 first and our six :hundred should come at the end. It's our 

2 position that the agreement states clearly that it's pro rata, 

3 that it's, you know --

4 o 
5 A 

6 o 
7 A 

B o 

In pari passu 

pari passu. 

a percentage. I see. , 
Right. 

So that',s the disagreement as to how you would 

9 �i�~�t�e�r�p�r�e�t� t he document; first three-paint-four going to Eric, 

10 six hundred to YOUi or whether four million goes eighty-five 

II fifteen? 

12 A ' That is correct. 

13 o All �r�i�g�~�t�.� And j ust for my own understanding, if 
, 

14 you received only lsixty-eight million dollars, leaving seven 

IS hundred thousand but there, so to speak - ­, 
16 A Yes. 

17 o - - of preferred return --

lB A Yes. 

19 o -- do those individuals. yourself and Mr. Ravich, 

20 lose that money? 

21 A Yes. I 
I , 

22 0 Okay. Nobody owes you that money? 
I 

23 A No. 

24 0 You just have lost that i nvestment? 
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1 A That's correct. 

2 Q Okay. Al l right. And can you �i�d�~ �n �t�i�f�y� who was the 

3 enti ty or person �~�i�t �h �i�n� Libra , or Libra consul ted with, who 

4 gave you the figure of sixty-ei ght million dol l ars? 

5 A Jess Ravich. 

6 Q Mr. Ravich. But I thought you told me he had 

7 indi cated he _J he had discussed - - are they mortgage 

8 bankers, Mr. �R�a�v�i�~�h�?� 

9 A 

10 Q 

11 A 

12 Q 

13 A 

They're investment bre --

Invest ment 

- - theY',re investment bankers. 
; 

Okay. They are. Okay. , 

And theY're ver y i nvolved in t he casino busi ness of 

14 companies of this --

15 Q You - - you have --
, 

16 A typel o f s t ocks. 
I 

17 Q you at l east have confi dence in their 

18 representation or work? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q Okay. Thank you. , So then after t he seven hundred 
, 

21 thousand is �h�a�n�d�l�~�d �.� sixty-eight-million-point - seven, t hen 

22 there is ei t her a hundred -- a hundred percent of t hree-point 

23 -- the next three-point-four goes to Eric, or eighty- five 

24 percent of the �n�e�~�t� four millio n goes to Eric and fifteen 

, 
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, , 
percent to Ostrow.and Alanis? 

2 A That is :correct? 
, 

3 Q correct: Have -- after Penn National did you 

4 receive any other -- have you received any further offers to 

5 acquire Silver Slipper Casino Ventures, LLC? 

6 A I -- I think that there was ' - - I don' t know if we , 
, 

7 actually r eceived:it in writing; t here were i ndications that , 
, 

8 Churchill Downs had an interest, but -- but I don't recall 

9 that we ever received a formal written offer. 

10 Q Right. And so there' s only been one offer over the 

11 last couple of years, as far as you' re aware, in terms of a 

12 formal offer, this I'll pay thi s under the follow ing twenty-

13 seven conditions?: 

14 A That ' s my recol l ection. 

15 Q All right. Fair enough , sir . What efforts do you 

16 intend, as t he mapager of the company, to undertake to sell 

17 the property now, i going forward? 
, 

18 A well, it's not my fi r st preference to s ell the 

19 property. I would prefer t o ref inance the p r operty and try to 

20 hold it. And we have worked very hard this year towards 

21 developing a hotel which we think would significan tly enhance 

22 the value of the property. And we've moved forward to the 

23 point where we have plans that we could pull a permi t on 

24 v ir tual ly tomorrow, for the construction of a hundred and 
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1 fifty room hotel, �~ �s�e�v�e�n� hundred seat showroom, and two levels 

2 of parking to support that, at a cost of roughly fifte-en 

i 
3 million dollars. 

4 Q And the idea is like any of the mega-resorts here in 
I 

5 Las vegas, you want a captive audience who would, you know, 

6 generally 

7 A Our greatest 

8 Q move itowards your casino as opposed to - -

9 A our greatest defi ciency and 

10 Q �g�o�i�n�~� ten miles away. 

II A I'm sorry to interrupt you. 

12 Q That's just fine. I apologize as well, sir. 

13 A Our greatest deficiency is that we have no hotel 

14 rooms. If you were to ask our customers, which we have, what 

15 is their single �b�~�g�g�e�s�t� complaint of the Si l ver Sl i pper, you 

16 know, ninety-five plus percent woul d tell you, we have no 

17 hotel. 

18 Q Okay. Now, what efforts did you make in the past 

19 four years to finq someone to take out the land loan, or to 

20 l oan you money to not be subject to a twenty-two year eviction 

21 notice? 

22 A We haven't -- we haven't per se sought a purchaser 

23 for the l and. We :would just be substituting one landlord for 

24 another landlord. Our focus during the last year has been 
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1 more on trying to get a letter of credit , which was is 

2 necessary for us to fund these Go Zone bonds, which we had 

3 approved for our pkoject. 

4 Q And I'm just -- I understand that. So f or The 

5 Court's edificatiop, i n two sentences, Go Zone is the State's 

6 entitlement to Federal funds post-Katrina to allow for 

7 development of non;-gaming enterprises to build up Mississippi 

8 and other damaged states; is t hat right? 

9 A That is correct. 

10 Q And at I ,east through this year they were going to 

11 be, I believe, i nterest free, but I'm not quite certain of 

12 that. Is that r ight? 
, 

13 A Not quit'e, but just about. 

14 .Q Okay. 

15 A It's -- ;it's a - - there's an interest rate, but the 

16 based on the way interest rates - - shor t-ter m i nterest 

17 rates are today, that interest rate is next to nothing. It 

18 is 

19 Q Two, three percent? 

20 A - - probqbl y less than a half a percent. 

21 Q 
; 

Oh, that's qui te -- that's - - All right. And -then 

22 January 1 there is a higher rate, the Go Zone, that you are 

23 not -- those bonds won't be avai lable, but there is other , 
I 

24 favorable financing avail able under the State; is that r i gh t? 
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I A The Go Zone bonds whi ch we have -- had allocated f or 

2 our project but which we've been unabl e to get a letter of 

3 c redit for. that �p�~�o�g�r�a�m� expires in forty-five days. 

4 Q Oh , it does. Okay. 

5 A And t he Federal government wil l take back the unused 

6 Go Zone bonds that' were allocated to Mississippi 

7 Q Well, 'Haley won I t like that --

8 A Alabama, Louisiana. 
I 

9 Q I cad tell you that. 

10 A So that ' .5 one of the reasons why Haley Barbour 

11 agr eed earli er t his year to all ow us, contrary to his previous 

12 po l icy , t o use these Go Zone bonds f or non-casino related 

13 ameni t ies 

14 Q Even �t �h�~ �u�g�h� they're going t o feed i nto a casino, 

15 which was his original 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 A 

21 Q 

Correct " , 
-- objection. Now he's --

Because 'under 

softened on that. 

the legislation t hey canno t be used for casino. 

Right. 

22 A But ther could be used fo r a ho tel next t o a casino. 

23 Q 

24 A 

Next door . Sure. 

But it had been his policy not to do that . Seeing 
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�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�- �-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�-�~�-�-�-�-�- �- �-�-�-�-�-�- �- �-�-�-

2 

A That is correct. 

Q And that's occurred here in the last twelve months, 
I 
I 

3 is t hat right? 

4 

5 

6 pay 

A 

Q 

It could've been longer than twelve months ago. , 
Okay. �~�d� what you've done is essentially agreed to 

, 
six- paint- seven million dollars to , DDJ to have them, what, 

7 extinguish their twenty milli on dollar demand? How does that , 
8 work? What is th$ transaction? 

9 A The �t�r�a�B�s�a�c�t�i�o�~� was that the mi nimum price on the 

10 puts would be eliminated. And-­, 
• 

II Q No �n �i �n�e�~�e�e�n� or twenty million dollar demand? 

12 A �C�o�r�r�e�c �t �~� 

13 Q Okay. 

14 A And in �~ �x�c �h�a�n�g�e� for that we would add six-and-a- half , , 
15 million dollars to the principal amount of the loan. 

I 

16 Q 

17 terms of 

• 
• All right. And so that has become another factor in 
I 

understanding what debt is owed against the property, 
I 

18 is that right? 

19 A That's the first reason why the forty-three has 
· 

20 increased subsequently. 

21 Q Okay. 
I 
So, I mean, I want to be, you know, as , 
· 22 accurate as I can: for The Court. 

23 A Right. 

24 Q 
, 

So now you have forty-three mill i on plus seven 
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mi ll ion is fifty million , correct? 

2 A Um- hmm (in the affi r mative). 

3 Q Okay. So now how does it get from fifty million to 

4 f if ty-seven mill i on as of July 31 of t his year? 

5 A Unpai d i nterest and some element o f def aul t interest 

6 which is also unpaid. 

7 Q Okay. Now, what were -- what is the terms of the 

8 promissory note for the f ort y - three million and/ or the forty-

9 t hree milli on plus the six- paint- seven mi llion . in terms of a 

10 monthly obl igat ion 

II A Thirteen percent 

12 Q or any ob --

13 A is the coupon. 

14 Q Thi rteen percent is the coupon. All r i ght . So i s 

15 i t thi rteen percent of forty - t hree or t hi rteen percent of 

16 fifty? 

17 A Thirteen percent of the current pri ncipal balance. 

18 Q All right. 

19 A So 

20 Q So 

21 A But �w�h�e�~� we added the six-and-a- half mil li on t o the 

22 principal balance, I think we negotiated that the forty-three, 

23 at least f or some period of t i me. would bear interest at 

24 twelve; and the s i x - and- a-half would bear i nterest at seven; 
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1 so that it would so that we weren't being penalized by 

2 interest on the sIx-and-a-half. 

3 Q Now, �w�h�~�n� did Silver Slipper first stop making its 

4 in ter est payments ror principal payments to DDJ? 

5 A We've never made any principal payments. 

6 Q Okay. 

7 A And we 

8 Q Was no 

9 A 
, 

-- stopped making -- we -- I would think at some 

10 point in 2009 �w�h�e�~� the loan matured, we -- we missed some 

11 payments to them. 

12 Q Well,'! 
, ,-- I -- I didn't ask you the right 

13 foundation questiQn. 

14 A Okay. 

15 Q I apologize. What were the terms of the loan, 

16 besides a nineteen million dollar put and warrants of nineteen 
I 

17 

18 

, 

or warrants of 'nineteen percent 

Nineteen! percent. A 

Is it nineteen percent? 

19 Q Right. In other words, was it an interest only loan 

I 
20 for three years? 'I'm listening to you and that's what I'm 

21 gathering. 

22 A Well, it was five years. But because of the delays 
I 

23 we had in 'getting the project built because o f Katrina, then 

24 it matured sooner than we had hoped or anticipated, because it 
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matured r oughly 

, 
I 

atter 
I 

t hree years of operati ons. 

2 Q Okay. So Katrina occurred in 2005 is my 

3 recollection? 

4 It did. A 

5 Q All right. So with t hat del ay, operations commenced 
I , 

6 in 2006; the five 'year term ends in 2009? 

7 A Yes. 

8 Q Okay. 

9 A That'S my recoll ection. 

10 Q So in 2009 the loan comes due, i t 's all due and 

11 payable? 

\2 A Yes. 

\3 Q And that woul d be f orty- three mi lli on? 

\4 A Yes. , . 

15 Q Okay. Plus whatever missed payments. So at that 

16 time and the loan - - what month of the year - - what season , 

l 7 of the year did the l oan come due? 

18 A I think ,i t matured on February 28th. 
I 

19 Q Okay. So February 28th o f 2009, that's nearly two 

20 years ago, it camj due. And so what happened to no t have a 

21 foreclosure or a bankruptcy? Which y ou probabl y would've seen 

22 if they were start i ng to foreclose on you. So what did you do 

23 at that point ? Is' that where you negotiated �~�h�e� 

24 (indiscernible) seven mill ion? 
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A That's why I think this was negotiated before that 

2 time. But I don't recall the precise timi ng of the --

3 Q Okay. 

4 A negotiation of the --

5 Q So what --

6 A six-and-a-half 

7 Q arrangements were made then --

8 A well--

9 Q at t hat point? 

10 A at that point we had discussions wit h the l ender. 

II And we were obviously considering the possibi l ity of going 

12 into a Chapter proceeding to avoid their forecl osing on the 

13 property. And I think we withheld a payment at that point to 

14 try to buil d up cash in t he event that we might go into a 

15 Chapter proceeding. that we woul d have· funds to wage that 

16 battle. 

17 Q 

J8 month? 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

And -- and the payment is, what, about a million a 

A millio n a quarter. 

Yeah. 

Well, no, excuse me. It's--

I 'm trying to figure t hirteen percent of --

At thir --

fifty mi ll ion or forty-three mi l l i on. 
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A six-lnd-a-half million dollars, a million and a 

2 half a quarter --' 
I 

3 Q A million and a half. 

4 A -- a �m�i�~�l�i�o�n� six a quarter. 

5 Q A million six a quarter? Or 

6 A Yes. Roughly six 

7 Q - - so �d�~�v�i�d�e� by three, it would be six hundred 
, 

8 thousand a month, five hundred thousand 

9 A 
. ! . Flove to·Sl.X --

10 Q dollars a month? , 
! 

II A hundred thousand a month. 

12 Q Again, I'm just trying to --

13 A Yes. 

14 Q 

15 A The �a�n�s�~�e�r� is yes. 
I 

16 Q All right. So, again, by saving five hundred 

17 thousand dol lars, !now you have --

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Actually a million and a half --

I 
legal: fees and· , 

if we did -­
! 

other stuff --

they �~�e�r�e� quarterly payments. 

Quarterly payments. I didn't understand that, I 

thought they were monthly. Okay. So not making a payment 

, 
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1 means missing �t�h�r�~�e� months, not one month? 

2 A That �i�s �~ �c�o�r�r�e�c�t�.� , 

3 Q Okay. So as long as The Court understands that. , , 
4 it's a million five miss or a million eight miss, in that 

5 range, for a quarter? 

6 A Correct 1 

7 Q And therefore when you don't pay that, if you're 

8 saving your moneY'i you've got a million fiv e or a million 

9 eight to, you know, fight the bankruptcy, pay the lawyers, 
I 

10 what ever the case may be? 
, 

II A Correct.' 

12 Q All right . Now, as I understand it limited if any 

13 payments have been made since , , February of 2009 until today. 

14 But I don't know that, so I'm asking you. What payments 
I 

So 

15 towards the loan have been made since February 20th of 2009 to 

16 I the present date? , 

17 A I �b�e�l�i�e�~�e� that during 2009 it's -- one other 

18 quarterly payment ,might have been missed. But at some point 

19 -- it might have �~�e�e�n� that first quarter payment where we were 
, 

20 still negotiating with them and we were not paying. But at 

21 some point in that, after the maturity, we reached an 

22 agreement f or a fo;rbearance and we agreed to put the property 

23 up for sale, and t :he lender gave us time to do that. And I 

24 think at that point we started paying at about a seven percent 
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pay rate. And had I what -- the term was called pik, p- i-k, 

2 which means accrued �i�n�t�e�r�e�~ �t� essentially, of the fiv e percent 

3 on the remaining principal balance, which continued to result 

4 in the build up of that the principal amount of that note. 

5 Q Okay. In the note, I believe, there was a pretty 

6 strong default interest rate, is that true; like fifteen to 

7 nineteen percent? 

8 A I bel ieve that it was two or three percent above the 

9 coupon rate. So I believe the default interest rate was 

10 fifteen percent. 

II Q Fifteen percent. 

12 A Two percent above. 

13 Q Now, did that negotiation you just referenced in 

14 your next to last answer solve the fifteen percent interest 

15 rate, or does it still accrue at fifteen percent since you're 

16 in' default? 

17 A wel l , it would -- as long as we complied with the 

18 terms of the forbearance, it would. If indeed -- the lender 

19 could assert that if we didn't comply wit h the terms of the 

20 f orbearance, I t hink that they -- if we were in a bankruptcy, 

21 could assert that they were owed default in terest stil l. 

22 Q Okay. And now let's just talk about 2010, a mor e 

23 recent time. 

24 A Yes. 
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--_._--- ... - --------------------------

1 Q We're in essentially three quarters. I mean, I 

2 don't know, do you pay at the end of the quarter or at the 

3 first of the quarter? Is it due - -

4 A Oh, we pay 

5 Q January 1 , or is it due --

6 A at the end of the quarter. 

7 Q Okay. So you would have March 31, June 30th and 
! 
I 

8 August 31, right?: 
I 

9 A Yes. 

, 
10 Q Okay. So have you made those three payments to DDJ? , 

11 A Yes, we:have. 

12 Q Okay. And to the forbearance agreement? 

.13 A Yes. 

14 Q Okay. Is that a lesser quarterly sum than our 

15 mi l l i on five to million eight? 
I 

It's at seven percent pay rate. 
I 

16 A Yes. 
, 

17 Q Okay. 

18 A It's still at a seven percent pay rate. 

19 Q Got it. 

20 A With a five percent accrual. 

21 Q Okay. That answered my next question. So you are 

22 accruing five percent? 

23 A Right. 
! 

24 Q So theyjre essentially getting twelve percent under 

, 
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1 this deal, adding 

I 

If ' d . 1ve percent; an you're able to pay a , 

2 lesser amount of money to try to get through this difficult 

3 time; right? 

4 A That is correct. , 
5 Q All right. Okay. Now, as we sit here today, 

6 whether it be August 31 or September 30th, what is the amount 

7 due and owing -- tpe total amount due and owing to DDJ for the 

8 Silver Slipper Casino Venture, LLC? 

9 A As shown on that statement, it's roughly fifty - seven 

10 million dol lars. 

11 Q 
, 

Now, would we -- I'm just asking -- if somebody were 

12 to come in and -- and buy this property, is it a fair 

13 statement that �s�o�m�~�b�o�d�y� would have to look hard about taking 
, 

14 out Mike i Cure at spme point between now and 2028? 

15 A of course. 

16 Q Okay. So somebody --
I 

Okay - - might look in taking 

17 this over at 
, 

a total -- I understand they may look for a 

18 reduction from DDJ, but we'd be adding thirteen- and- a- half to 

19 fifteen-and-a- half million to the fifty-seven million, as a 

20 practical matter; �~�o�r�r�e�c�t�?� 

21 A 

22 flow. 

23 Q 

Yes . And addi ng the ground rent back into the cash 

Right. 
, , 
?o if you payoff the -- that two -- if you 

24 payoff the thirteen-and- a-half mil l ion dollar land then you 
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1 would be adding this eight or nine hundred thousand dollars a 

2 month to your cash flow? 

3 A Well, we'd be adding about a million one a year to 

4 the cash fl ow. 

5 Q I ' m sorry. I -- I misspoke. So then it's a milli on 

6 one a year? 

7 A Right. Right. 

8 Q Okay. I think always in terms of monthly. I'm 

9 sorry. So it's a hundred and twenty --

10 A Not a problem. 

II Q -- a hundred and twenty thousand month. something 

12 like that. Okay. 

13 A About that's Yeah. Roughly, I think you - - I 

14 t hink you might have said it before; about ninety t housand a 

15 month. 

16 Q Okay. And then -- and then what you would do --

17 That's true, twelve into one-point-one --

18 A Right. 

19 Q -- would be ninety. Right . Then obv i ously a buyer 

20 might want to go to DDJ and say, will you lower t his fifty-

21 seven million to fifty-five million if I could write you a 

22 check, or I can have another l ender write you a check to take 

23 you out. And t hat's the kind of thing that might occur, 

24 correct? 
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A Yes. 

2 Q Okay. But for purposes of Mrs. Nelson and Mr. 
i 

3 Nelson and their uhhappy divorce trial to look at this, after 
, 
I 

4 January 1 of 2011 �~�-�- which is, you know, a month-and-a-half 

5 from now -- it's fifteen five plus fifty-seven, or seventy --

6 about seventy-two million dollars is what's owed to take the 

7 property -- to acquire the property and assume the obligations 

8 owed to DDJ? 

9 

10 

II 

12 

A 

Q 

A 

Yes. But --

seventy-two million dollars. 

-- the only thing I would clarify or -- or want to 
I 

make clear is 
, 

thatl when we went -- when we tried to sell the 

13 property last year, and if we were to sell the property 

14 currently, we would approach it from the standpoint -- and we 

15 did when we made an attempt to sell it last year -- where the 

16 �-�~� a buyer would assume the lease. So we were not figuring 

17 that -- Now, a buyer might take that into cal -- into account 

18 in their overall evaluation. 

19 Q Their of 'fer. Right. , 
i 

20 A But we �w�~�r�e� not presenting it from the standpoint 

21 that they were going to immediately exercise the ground lease 

22 and own the land. 

23 Q But as you've indicated, . they're going to have to 

24 face that Rubicon at some point between now and 2028? 
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1 A Yeah. i - - the way we look at it is that it 

2 probably dilutes the value of the property by a few million , 

3 dol lars. Because, if we could sell the property at a six 

4 multiple, for instance, and we were paying a million one, or 

5 now wi th revenues'higher this year maybe we ' re paying a 

6 mi lli on two, then: the -- at a six multiple that would be a 

7 seven, seven-and-a-half million dollar value. So there would 

8 be a six million dollar six million plus dilution in the 

9 value if -- if a purchaser were looking at it saying, I'm 

10 picking up a million two of cash flow t hat I want to buy at 

II six times, but I have to pay thirteen-and-a-half eventually to 

12 get it back. 

13 Q Right. 'So it's a six mi lli on dollar loss there as 

14 you 

15 A Six million dollar 

16 Q diminution. 

17 A -- reduqtion i n the value potentially. 

18 Q Can you Itell me to your best understanding what is 

19 the current payment quarterly to DDJ? 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

I 
Roughly a million dol lars. A 

Q Thank you. Okay. Now, I want to --

(WHEREUPON, �~�.� JIMMERSON CONVERSES WITH THE PLAINTIFF.) 

. Q Mr . Nelson whispers to me that t here is 

MR. NELSON: I guess 1 could've spoke. Sorry. 
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�-�- �-�-�-�-�-�-�.�-�-�- �-�~�,� .. �~�~�.�" �,� . ''' , .. , ... , 

or not they could manage it for less money and therefore 

2 perhaps offer a higher price because they might be able to 

3 save money in different areas ; isn't that the idea? 

4 A Stated precisely. 

5 Q Okay. Thank you , sir. And we show, as you've 

6 indicated. the EBITDA for t he month dropped a hundred and 

7 forty thousand dollars, and was roughly the same, f orty 

8 thousand dollars for the year end, right? 

9 A That is correct. 

10 Q Okay. And then you have management fees that you' ve 

II referenced, sixty thousand -- f i fty-nine six seventeen. Now, 

12 how did you arrive at that? And what I mean by that is are 

13 you taking two percent of three-paint-four mi l lion for the 

14 month? How did you arri ve at fifty-nine t housand? I couldn't 

15 figur e out what two percent was being multiplied agai nst to 

16 get fifty-nine thousand six seventeen. 

17 A I believe it would be the four-point- two million 

18 minus the s ix hundred and forty-four thousand one-oh-seven 

19 promotional a l lowances. 

20 Q Three-paint -f ive mil l ion - -

21 A And minus the --

22 Q and change? 

23 A six-oh-eight eight f orty-two of direct costs and 

24 gaming, which I I assume t hat most of that i s taxes. 
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1 Q Well, okay. _That' 5 roughly one-paint-two or one-

2 point three. 

3 A Right. 

4 Q Four-paint-two minus one-paint-three is two-point-

5 nine, ti mes two percent is fifty -nine thousand and change. 

6 A Right. 

7 Q Thank you. All right. And we see for the year the 

8 fees would've -- would've been paid -- had they been paid, but 

9 at least are due and owing of two hundred and ninety-six 

10 thousand nine hundred and five dollars, ending May 31 of 2010. 

1 1 A Correct .: 

12 Q All right. How much money, if any, does Silver 

13 Slipper Casino Ventures, LLC owe your Silver Slipper Gaming 

14 Management Company as of the current date? Just t he month of 

15 October? 

16 A Quite honestly I'm not certain. It -- it -- they 

17 they owe us some qeferred fees of two hundred and, I think, 

18 sixteen thousand. But I don't think those are management 

19 fees. So I could .cer tainly find out for you. But they --

20 they've paid most of the deferred fees, if not all of the 

21 deferred fees. 

22 Q Would agree with me that it would be inappropriate 

23 for Silver Slipper Casino Ventures, LLC to pay Silver Slipper 

24 Gaming management fees while not paying Mr. Nel son management 
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1 fees? I 
I , 

2 A I would iagree that it would be inappropri ate i f it's 

3 beyond the amount of the calculation of our other agreement. 

4 Q All right. Thank you, sir. 

5 (WHEREUPON, MR, J I MMERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS AND GOES , 

6 UP TO DISPLAY BOARD.) 
I 

7 Q Now, onJ of the things that came about in looking at 

8 Silver Slipper was that I seemed to be an alarming increase 

9 in the debt on the property, occasioned by the defaults that 

10 have occurred and the provisions under the Deed of Trust that 

11 all ow for some �v�e�~�y� excessive monies. 

12 I'm trY1ng to find this for you . 
I , 

13 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON LOOKS THROUGH LARGE DISPLAY 

14 BOARDS AND PULLS ONE OUT.) 

15 MR. JIMMERSON: Bob, do you want to corne around so you 

16 can see this, show the witness this? 
i 

17 MS. POLSELLI: I It's the same (indiscernible). 

I 
MR. JIMMERSON: What 's that? Okay. 18 

19 BY MR. JIMMERSON: ; 

20 Q Now, Mr. Nelson -- I mean , Mr. Nelson - - Mr. Alanis, 

21 when this was or iginally developed -- And we're just tal king 
, 

22 about a few years lago. When was the p r oject compl eted and 
, 

23 opened up for �b�u�s�~�n�e�s�s�?� 

24 A November 9th, 2006. 
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Q Okay. So it's a four-year pr oject? All right. The 

2 ori g 

3 A Four years of operati ons. 

4 Q -- the original -- Right. Agreed. The debt on the 

5 date of opening, the first Deed of Trust or the bond on the 

6 property was what? 

7 A �F�o�r�t�y�-�t�~�r�e�e� million doll ars. 

8 Q And if I understand correctly, that was subject to a , 
I , 

9 �t �h �i�r�t�e�e �n�- �p�o�i�n�t�-�f �i �~�e� million doll ar option to acquire the land, 

I 
10 or otherwise you were obl i ged to pay a lease t hat expired i n 

I 

\l 2028; is 

12 A 

13 reflect 

14 Q 

, , 
t hat riglit? , 

I 

That's correct. And these financi al statements 
I 
I 

that ongoing payment of gr ound rent. , , 
Okay. And what i s the monthly ongoi ng payment of 

15 ground rent pai d �~�o� Michael Cure, who we have identified as 

16 the landlord? 

17 A Yes. Cure Land Company, which i s a company -- I 

18 don't know if Micqael Cure owns al l of it. But that -- our 

19 technical landlord is Cure Land Company. And they receive a 

20 percentage of t he ·gross revenues -- g r oss gaming revenues from 

21 the casino under the terms of the ground lease. 

22 Q And what is that percentage? 

23 A It's roughly two p ercent , but it 's not exactly that 

24 because it ' s -- there's a graduated kind of rate. 
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Q Okay. So it could be higher than two percent? 

2 A I think that there's a provi -- there's -- some of 

3 it could be two-and-a-half and then it goes to two. 

4 Q Figuring -- Well, gross revenues for 2009 were what, 

5 please, thirty- six million? 

6 A In gaming revenue? 

7 Q Yes, in gaming revenue. 

8 A I thought they were a bit higher than that. 

9 Q I'm not suggesting a number. I don't know that. 

10 I ' m not trying to fool you. There's some things I do know. 

II A Okay. 

12 Q I don't know that. 

13 A I would've thought the gaming revenues for 2009 were 

14 around forty-eight million dollars --

15 Q Okay. 

16 A -- t hereabouts. 

17 Q Al l right. Forty- eight million dollars. So a two 

18 percent number would be nine hundred and sixty thousand 

19 dollars in rent for the year 

20 A Correct. I think it's 

21 Q to -- to Cure --

22 A somewhat higher than that because of a base rent 

23 built in. I think we paid 

24 Q So that two 
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A around 
I 

2 Q might: go to a higher percentage depending upon 

3 revenues achieving a certain level, is that the idea? 

4 A There's a certain minimum rent and then it sets in. 

5 If you had the lease I could do it for you. But I -- I 

6 would've thought tpat the ground rent paid last year was 

7 probably in the ne,ighborhood of a million to a mi l lion one. 
I 

8 Q Okay. N?w, I presume that -- you know, you' re --
, 

9 you're, you know, �~� businessman, been in gaming for now many 

10 years. I would presume that the thought about developing this 

11 site was some expectation or some belief that somewhere along 

12 the line there would be an exercise of the option to buy the 

13 property; correct? 

14 A Clearly. 

15 Q Because you wouldn't build hotel -- I mean, you , 

16 

17 t::: 
wouldn't build a under a lease that expired in just 

opening day of 2006? twenty-two years 
, 

18 A That is �~�o�r�r�e�c�t�.� 

19 Q Okay. Ahd as we've looked at the lease terms, at 

20 l east as I understand them, ending 12/31 of 2010 the thirteen-

21 point- five million dollar option pri ce goes away and increases 

22 to fifteen-paint-five million dollars; is that right? 

23 A 

24 Q 

Correct. 

And how many years, or how much t i me, it may not 

, 
0 -09- 411537,0 NELSON 11/17/10 PARTr .... L TRANSCRIP'l' 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL ?ISTRICT COURT FAMILY DIVISION TRANSCRIPT VIDEO SERVICES 
601 N. pecos Road. LaS vegas, Nevada 89101 (702) 455-4977 39 



2 

even be year s, is the fifteen-peint-five exerci sable for? 

A At l east four. I think it's four. It could be 
I 

3 five. But it's at least four. 

4 Q Okay. Now, let's l ook at the operations. We talked 

5 about the assets �~�h�i�c�h� you ' ve already gone t hrough and t he 

6 l iabilities. where does the payment of DDJ's obl i gati on --

7 what lin e item do ,we find here f or that on the balance sheet? 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

! 
A well, �o�~� the balance sheet it's not going to show 

the payment of the interest, i t 's going t o show the 

I outstandi ng bal ance as of t hat date of t he credi t facility, 

which in the case'of July 31st, 2010 was fifty-seven million 

seven thousand and six 
• 

six hundred and sixty- three dollars. 

• 
Q And y ou : find that number by l ooking wher e? 

A Down r i ght below your finger. 

Q Right there? Ri ght here, right? , 
A Right 

I 
there. 

Q Okay. 
, 

A Right there. 
• 

Q Where it says secured credit faci li ty not one, 

20 fifty-seven . milliqn seven t housand, right? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Okay. Thank you. And how did the forty-three 

23 mil 110n of 2006 jump up fourteen milli on dol lars to fifty ­
i , 

24 seven mill ion dol l ars by 2010, July 30? 
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A well, let me go through the steps. The first 

2 biggest element of it was that for whatever reason - - looking 

3 back on i t i n hindsight we probably never -- none of us 

4 should've ever gone along with it , but maybe we d i dn't have 

5 any choice. We agreed at t he -- at the funding of this -- and 

6 this was the only lender we had, so we didn' t have the ability 

7 to play them off against anyone else -- to give this lender 

8 nineteen percent warrants in the company. That wasn't the 

9 problem. The problem was we agreed to a mini mum put price of 

10 nineteen to twenty million dollars upon the occurrence of 

11 certain events, so t hat they could essentially put the 

12 warran ts t o us and we would have to pay them a minimum of in 

13 excess of nineteen million dollars. 

14 Q Let me just stop y ou right there, if I can. I just 

15 want to have a good record. Tell me in general terms tell 

16 The Court in general ter ms the ownersh i p in terms of how it 

17 works. NOW, Mr. Alanis and Mr. Ostrow own about forty - three 

18 percent? 

19 A Roughly, yes. 

20 Q And there is another entity o f whi ch you relate to 

21 and that's Li bra? 

22 A 

23 Q 

24 A 

Well, when you say relate to, t hey're - -

I mean, you --

-- they' re not related to us, they' re completel y 
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independent. 

2 Q Right. !But they went in with you on this 

3 transaction? 

4 A They brought us into it. 
, 

5 Q They brought you into it. Okay. And they have 

6 about eleven percent? 

7 A 

8 Q 

Correct .; , , 
Okay. So when we talk about the Alanis, you know, 

9 entities or the AI'anis side of the equation, it's roughly 

10 fifty - f our percent:, is that right? , 

11 A No.!' disagree wi th that. Because I think Libra's 
I , 

12 totally independent of us. They make their decisi ons totally 

13 completel y separat'e. And they - - Li bra -- Libra is not 

14 controlled by us a:nd certainly doesn't you know, we have no 

15 voting agreement, we have no agreement to act in concerti and 
I 

16 there are lots of 't i mes we don't. 

17 Q Okay. Op any t ransaction involving the financing of 

18 this property has ILibra ever voted against your interest and 

19 voted -- have they ever -- have they ever had a disagreement , 

20 with you with regard to any minutes that show that Libra voted 

21 no when Alanis and: Ostrow voted yes? 

22 A well , I would say it differently. I -- there has , 

23 never been any disagr eement that I'm aware of until the last 
I , 

24 coupl e months, where any of the partners voted no to any 
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decisions. They've al ways been by the -- wi th the concurrence 

2 of all of the partners. 

3 Q Now, if ' -- if you own fifty - four percent, you 

4 meaning Alanis -and Libra --

5 A Yes. 

6 Q - - own fifty-four percent -- I'm not trying to put 

7 words in your mouth -- what does Mr. Nelson or his group 

8 through Dynasty own? 

9 A The balance. 

10 Q The bal ance of forty-six percent? 

II A Roughl y . 

12 Q Okay. I thought it was closer to f orty- two percent, 

13 no? 

14 A wel l , management -- the, management has a roughly 

15 t hree, four, five percent interest. 

16 Q Okay, So it might be forty - two, three or four, and 

17 fifty-fo ur? 

18 A On- site management. Yes . 

19 Q Right, ;And on-site management would be empl oyees --

20 key employees of your -- of your property? 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 A 

24 Q 

Correct, 

And not , incl uding yoursel f or Mr. Ostrow? 

That is correct, 

All right. Who is the principal -- who would you 
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identify as the principal decision maker in Libra? 

2 A Jess Ravich. 

3 Q Jess Ravich. Okay. And I see the Ravich Trust is 

4 one of the signatories to our Exhibit SQ. Okay. 

5 Now -- and you understand that Dynasty is owned by 

6 several entities or persons on what I call the Eric Nelson 

7 Trust side; fair statement? 

8 A I know that Eric Nelson is involved i n the ownership 

9 of Dynasty. I do not have any direct knowledge of the owner 

10 per se ownership structure of --

II Q And I didn't 

12 A Dynasty. 

13 Q I'm not -- I'm not asking you whether or not a 

14 brother owns two percent or another group. I 'm just saying 

15 t hat -- but you know he does no t own personally all forty-two 

16 percent of the interest? 

17 A TO be h9nest with you, I don' t know that per se. 

18 Q All right. Fair enough. Now, this nineteen percent 

19 was this -- this guarantee of a minimum of nineteen or 

20 twenty million dollars to DDJ, that was the -- the offer or 

21 the demand by DDJ to close the transaction in 2006? 

22 A Yes. 

23 Q And did you vote f or it? 

24 A Yes. 
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Q And .did Mr. Ravich vote for it? , 
I 

2 A Yes. 
, 

3 Q lind did Mr. Ostrow vote for it? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Okay. Did Mr. Nelson vote for it? 

6 A Yes, my reCOllection, yes. 

7 Q All righ't . lind this resulted i n a requirement to 

8 pay twenty million dol lars if and when there was a sale, was 

9 that the idea? 

10 A Essentially. But there could've been other triggers 

JJ on t hat put, when we paid them off, for instance. I f we -- we 
I 

12 refinanced and we paid them off, I think they could trigger 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

the put at that point as well . 

Q So as you indi cate it's a -- it's a poor l oan, 
i 

because however you want to calculate it, points or whatever 

the case may be, �i�~� was a very expensi ve loan; fair statement? 

A 
, 

In hindsight. We were all maybe drinking the Kool ­
i 

18 Ai d and think;ing this was going to be --

19 Q Yeah. 
; 

20 A - - more Valuable than it was before Katrina. 

21 Q NOw, as I understand it - - and you're the expert on 

22 let me �a�~�k� you . , this, but As I understand it you've now , 
23 negotiated something a little differen t with DDJ, is that 

24 right? 

, 
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• • 
1 the government is just going to spend it on some type of other 

2 program anyways. 

3 So I'd rather you guys invested in the economy than 

4 give it to the government to invest in the economy. So I 

5 think we get a better bang. So I do appreciate that. 

6 What I'll do is if we have dates -- return dates set 

7 for November 15th. What I'll do is I'll have my law clerk 

8 contact both counsels maybe next week some time, see how you 

9 guys are doing. 

10 If there's anything the Court can do, I'll be glad 

11 to bring everybody in and work together on settlement, things, 

12 whatever you guys want to do well before then. If there's any 

13 issues you need a rulings you think on some legal issue that 

14 might help you get to where you're going and where I'm 

15 leaning, I'll be glad to help you on that. 

16 I think the last couple of days have been real 

17 beneficial. I think we narrowed down some issues and seen 

18 what some of the questions are and I think the taxes is a real 

19 big issue on the carryover and that's a big issue on that as 

20 far as the tax consequences and that may impact what the 

21 distribution of property will be as well. 

22 So if there's any particular issues I think if you 

23 can talk to Mr. Alanis and if you can talk to the -- the 

24 church and the other (indiscernible), if you get those, that 
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• • 
1 may sell some of the (indiscernible) to get that information 

2 that you guys need to do to -- to see what you think and then 

3 I'll make myself available. 

4 I'll have my law clerk call you next week and see 

5 what looks good for you guys, because you guys are planning on 

6 meeting; is that what my understanding is? 

7 MR. DICKERSON: Yes. 

8 THE COURT: So so sometime later in the week so 

9 you got to talk to see --

10 MR. DICKERSON: Yeah, we're meeting 11:00 o'clock 

11 Monday? 

12 THE COURT: Yeah. 

13 MR. JIMMERSON: 11:00 o'clock. 

14 THE COURT: Yeah. And I'll have my law clerk call 

15 you sometime in the middle of week to see if you think it 

16 would beneficial on any issues you have and if it's come 

17 in, bring everybody in, we'll bring in everybody in again as 

18 -- as often as possible. 

19 MR. JIMMERSON: You're going to hate this, but if we 

20 filed -- try this to the limit we won't be done on the third 

21 day of November. 

22 THE COURT: Yeah, I had a couple of other ones that 

23 on that just --

24 MR. DICKERSON: And just so that -- for my 
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• • 
1 clarification -- my understanding were the 15th, 16th, 17th? 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: That's right. 

3 THE COURT: Yeah, 15th, 16th and 17th and I've --

4 MR. DICKERSON: Now 

5 THE COURT: been trying to see if I can get some 

6 other days if we needed on that, but I was hoping that 

7 MR. DICKERSON: Now my calendar in my office which I 

8 think is in (indiscernible) also indicates the following week 

9 we have time, Judge. 

10 THE COURT: We have the 22nd, 23rd and 24th. We're 

11 trying to keep those six days 

12 MR. DICKERSON: And unfortunately I leave town on 

13 the -- Tuesday the 23rd. I'm leaving town for the holidays. 

14 THE COURT: So the 22nd might work for you or no? 

15 Is that a good day or 

16 MR. DICKERSON: The 22nd will -- is that a Monday? 

17 THE COURT: Yeah. 

18 MR. DICKERSON: Monday will work, but the 23rd and 

19 24th I'm out of town. 

20 THE COURT: Also--

21 MR. JIMMERSON: But there is a dedicated 

22 (indiscernible) would stay until (indiscernible). 

23 MR. DICKERSON: Well, had I not already made the 

24 reservations and my --
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1 THE COURT: I'm hoping maybe we can get it 

2 MR. DICKERSON: -- kids going with me --

3 THE COURT: Hopefully -- hopefully maybe we'll get 

4 it resolved before then, but if not, we'll just need what we 

5 need to do. The problem is it's really put me in an allotment 

6 because of my juvenile courts. I got my case is whether I 

7 have this or not. I still have to get them in, because I got 

8 several time frames. I can't kick those. So I just squeeze 

9 those in. 

10 So we just kind of got our hats full. But we'll --

11 we'll get through it. The family's entitled to. We'll get 

12 through it. 

13 MR. DICKERSON: And also for our purposes and our --

14 our settlement discussions, obviously as you can see what we 

15 are going to want is we're going to want the Court's 

16 continuing jurisdiction over this case to supervise sales and 

17 what have you. 

18 Will Your Honor be inclined to hold onto the case 

19 for that purpose? 

20 THE COURT: Yeah, I have another case that -- that 

21 I've been keeping. I know I regret it. And I'll regret this 

22 one too, but no, I will maintain the jurisdiction so in the 

23 fairness of the parties on this so you don't have to go 

24 through another judge to go through all this stuff again. 

D.()9.411537·D NELSON 1012012010 TRANSCRIPT 

VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION. LLC 

11115 North La Canada, Suite 275, Oro Valley, Arizona 85737 (520) 861'()711 

406 



• • 
1 MR. DICKERSON: Great. Thank you. 

2 THE COURT: Of course after you get my decision 

3 maybe we'll go through -- we wanted to go to a different 

4 judge, but that's all. 

5 Thanks everyone for your time and your -- I do 

6 appreciate--

7 MR. DICKERSON: You too as well. 

8 THE COURT: It's getting better, but the -- the 

9 order of the court might do appreciate that, the first couple 

10 of tents and we still get some tent sections, but I do 

11 appreciate that. I think we're getting there with everybody 

12 being respectful to each other and I do appreciate it on 

13 behalf of the Court and for the parties. 

14 MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you, Judge. 

15 MR. DICKERSON: Thank you. 

16 MS. NELSON: Thank you, Your Honor. 

17 * * * * * * 

18 ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and 

19 correctly transcribe the digital proceedings in the above-

20 entitled case to the best of my ability. 

21 

22 

23 

24 
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I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

LAS VEGAS, NEVADA WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 17, 2010 

PRO C E E DIN G S 
1 , 

(THE PROCEEDlNG BEGAN AT 09,26,43.) 
i 

(THE REQUESTED EXCERPT BEGAN AT 13,16,02.) 

THE COURT: This is the time set in the continuation of 

Eric and Lynita 

continuing from 

Nilson, Case 

tHis morning. 

Number D411537. This is 

We're ready to proceed at this 

8 time. 

9 will you swear in the witness? 

10 THE CLERK: Elease raise your right hand. Do you do , , 
11 solemnly swear �t�h�~� testimony you're about to give in this 

12 action shall be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but ' the 

13 truth, so help �y�o�~� God? 
, 

14 THE WITNESS: ! Yes, I do. 

15 THE CLERK: iou may be seated. 

16 PAUL ALANIS 

17 having been called as a witness by the Plaintiff, and having 
, 
1 

18 been first duly �s�~�o�r�n�,� testified as follows on: 

19 DIRECT EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

21 Q Mr. Alariis, good afternoon. My name is Jim 
i 

22 Jimmerson, and I �~�a�v�e� the privilege of representing Mr. Nelson 

23 in t his unhappy divorce case. 

24 A Yes. 

, 
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Q You 've been asked to appear here. And apparently 

2 you've appeared voluntarily, is that right, sir? 

3 A That is correct. 

4 Q You ask - - you were asked by Mr. Dickerson to 

5 appear, is that right? 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q How did it come to be that you came to the court 

8 yesterday and now again today? 

9 A Uh --

\0 Q What communications occurred? 

II A A few weeks ago Mr. Dickerson contacted me about the 

12 possibility of having my deposition taken a second time with a 

13 videographer, and wanted to · know what my availability was. I 

14 had given a previous deposition a few months ago. I told him 

15 that I was going to be i n Las Vegas during this -- these two 

16 days for the gaming conference that's being conducted at the 

17 convention center. And he said that that happened to coincide 

18 with your hearing ,dates, and that maybe it would be easier and 

19 more efficient for everyone if I could take a coupl e hours out 

20 of my schedule while I was here in Las vegas and appear in 

21 court, rather than go through the -- the expense and 

22 inconvenience of trying to arrange my deposition again. 

23 Q And you had your deposition taken in this case on 

24 July 2 of 2010? 
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I A I believe -- if t hat's the date you're gi v i ng me, 

2 that sounds right. 

3 Q All right . And have you had -- given a deposition 

4 in any other piece of litigat i on duri ng the course of your 

5 adult life ? 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

9 Q 

Yes. 

On how many occasions? 

Pr obably four or fiv e. 

How many t i mes have you appeared i n - - as a wi tness 
I 

10 or as a party i n a lawsuit? 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

MR. DICKERSON: Objecti on 
I 

A In a prdCeeding li ke , 

I 
MR. DI CKERSON: the form of the question 

I 
A -- in a l -- i n a courtroom? 

Q Yes, sir, in a courtroom. 

MR . DI CKERSON: Objecti on , form of t he questi on. I t's 

17 act ually compound. I mean, if he wants to start as a wi tness 

18 then--

19 BY MR. J IMMERSON: 

20 Q HoW many times have you appear ed as a witness in a 

21 courtroom? 

22 A I'm ,not sure I have. I f I have, maybe once, but 

23 certai n l y not frequently. 

24 Q And have you been i nvolved in l i t igati on where 
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you've either been a party plaintiff or a party defendant? 

2 A Yes. 

3 Q Okay. �~�d� how --

4 A Through -- through entities. 

5 Q Okay. On how many occasions have you been a party 

6 in litigation, through enti ties or directly? 

7 A Well, �i�~�/�s� -- it's hard to quantify that. Being in 

8 the casino business we have sli p and fall cases and all kinds 

9 of cases like that that I never even see. So I'm sure there 

10 are dozens and dozens. But in cases of any material 

rI consequence in teliffis of entities I was involved with, a 

12 couple. 

13 Q Okay. And you are an attorney by training I 

14 understand, i s that right? 

. 15 A That is ·correct . 

16 Q And what law school did you graduate from? 

17 A Harvard 'Law School. 

18 Q And you went -- practiced after Harvard for eleven 

19 years? 

20 A I did. 

21 Q And thert you ceased the, I cal l it the daily 

22 practice of law, and went into business; is that right? 

23 A That is correct. 

24 Q What business did you commence aft er eleven years of 
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1 law? 

2 A Into the real estate development acquisition 

3 management business. 

4 Q Okay. �~�d� then you got involved with a Mississippi 

5 casino owned by Jack Binion? 

6 A In approximately 1992 I met Jack Binion. And he was 

7 at that point contemplating developing casinos in Mississippi 

8 and Louisiana. �M�~� background blended well with his in terms 

9 of my experience. At that poi nt I had been a real estate 

10 developer for a number of years, building Embassy Suites 

11 around the United States, and other similar projects. So Jack 

12 was one of the �g�r�~�a�t� operators, I felt , in the business. And 

13 I had a lot of development experience and finance experience 

14 and the like. And so I started out as a consultant for -- for 

15 Jack. And after? number o f months became a full time 

16 employee and ultimately the president of an entity called 

17 Horseshoe Gaming. 

18 Q And HorSeshoe Gaming was the entity that he used in 

19 Mississippi, correct? 

20 A That is , correct. 

21 Q All right. And that was his initial casino, was the 

22 Horseshoe in Mississippi, correct? 

23 A 

24 Q 

His initial casino outside of Nevada. 

Outside' of Nevada, that's what I meant. After he 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IO 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

sold out I moved lout of Nevada t o Mississippi. 

I 
And �y�o�u�~� position -- ultimately your highest 

at the HJrseshoe Gaming was what, sir? position 

I 
A President. 

Q !}Ill d Okay. then that arrangement ended. And when 

did that end? 

I 
A I was with 

I 
Jack about six-and-a-half. seven years. 

And in 1999 I became the president at that point and -- of a , 
! 

company called Hollywood park, which was a company , 
. i 

headquartered �~�n� �~�0�5� Angeles that owned the Hollywood Park 

Racetrack and waS !in the ,process of moving into the casino 
I 

business They had acquired Boomtown Casinos in a public . I 
merger, and were in the process of closing the acquisition of 

I , 
casino Magic. An9 I came over as the president and shortly 

I 
thereafter becamei the CEO of Pinnacle Entertainment. 

Q 

A. 

I 

And what do you 

Excuse leo 
I 

Of Horseshoe -- I'm sorry - - of, pardon 
, 
I me, Hollywood ParK, which later changed its name to Pinnacle 

19 Entertainment. 

20 

21 

22 

23 and 

24 

Q 

A 

How do you spell Pinnacle? 
I 

p- i - n- n+a-c- l-e. 
I 

Q Does �t�h�~�t� have any 

. 1 . I 
rel ationship with Pinnacle Gaming 

�D�a�n�~�e� Lee's eompany? 
I 

A Daniel Lee was my successor as CEO. 
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1 Q That'S what I meant. So it is the same entity. And 

2 then as we know Mr. Lee is no longer associated with that 

3 company, correct? 

4 A Correct .: 

5 Q As a result of Missouri infractions, correct? 

6 A As a result of a little altercation in --
7 Q Right. 

8 A -- Missouri. 

9 Q Okay. So -then after the Hol lywood Park work you 

10 resigned or were you terminated? 

11 A I resi gned. 

12 Q Okay. . And then you did -- you did -- took some time 

13 off, I as I unQerstand, i s that correct? 

14 A Yes ', 

15 Q Okay. And then did there come a t i me when you 

16 became involved i n the Silver Slipper development i n 

17 Mississippi? 

18 A Yes. 

19 Q Which is in part -- one of the assets owned by Mr. 

20 Nelson's trust, do you understand that? 

21 A Yes. 

22 Q Okay. And -- 50 what how di d you get involved in 

23 the Silver �S�l�i�p�p�e�~� project? 

24 A A long time friend of mine by the name of Jess 
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Ravich (phonetic herein), who ran an investment banking firm 

2 called Libra Investments (phonetic herein), came t o me and 

3 said that he had been working on a transaction in Mississippi 

4 involving Eric Nel son. It was a proposed development near the 

5 Louisiana border {n Hancock County, Mississippi. And he 

6 wanted to know if I would get i nvolved in i t. They were 

7 having some difficulty getting the financing, and he felt that 

8 my involvement with my partner would help in terms of both 

9 development experience, operational experience, and help raise 

10 the money needed, the debt needed t o get the project going. 

II Q And in Mississippi what community was this project 

12 to be developed in? 

L3 A wel l, it's in Hancock County and it is in the small 

14 town o f wavel and, Mississippi. 

15 Q Okay. �~�d� initially Mr. Nelson had purchased a 

16 river boat from the Hilton Corporation, correct? 

17 A That is cor rect. 

18 Q And t hat was going t o be the -- the centerpiece of a 

19 gaming operation to be developed, cor·rect? 

20 A That is correct. 

21 Q And later on you replaced that river boat with, 

22 something t hat you bought fr om another company, is that right? 

23 A That is correct. 

24 Q That river boat being called, I believe, The 
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---------- - ----------- ---------------------' .. _-_ .. _ .. __ . 

1 President, is that right? , 

2 A That is !correct. 

3 Q All rigI1t. 

4 A It wasn';t a r i ver boat, it was a barge. 

5 Q Okay. A barge. Okay. But it fit within the 
! , 

6 Mississippi definition of a waterfloat c raf t 
: 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II You 

12 than 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

and I 

many 

I 
Exactly: , 

- - to �a�~�l�o�w� gaming, i s that it? 

Exactly.' , 

I've seen the great boats of which there's no water. 

coul d cieate more water by going to the restroom 
I , 

o f the �~�a�t�e�r�s� you'll see there. Okay. 

13 Mississippi, unl ike Louisiana, doesn't require , A 

I 
14 actually I 

15 Q 

16 A 

17 boats . 

18 Q 

19 A 

20 Q 

A �f�l�o�a�t�~�n�g� barge. 
I 
I -- you know a nineteenth century replica river 
I ' 

Its barges are sufficient 
i 

All �r�i�g�~�t�.� 

-- wi th :no engines. 

Okay. $0 t here is now a company that owns an asset 

21 in Waveland, Miss+ssippi, the Silver Slipper casino; correct? 
I 

22 A That· s 
, . 

correct. That entity is Silver Sl ipper 
I 

23 Casino Ventur e, Lie. , 

24 Q And it has an operating agreement. correct? 
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1 A It does 

2 MR . �J�I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� May I approach the witness, Your Honor? 

3 THE COURT: Sure. 

4 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE WI TNESS AND 

5 HANDS HIM A DOCUMENT.) 

6 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

7 Q Let 
, 

me show you Exhibit SQ, and ask you if you can 
I , 

8 identify that thick document. 
I , 

9 (BRIEF PAUSE iWHILE THE WITNESS REVIEWS THE DOCUMENT.) 
I 

10 A Yes, I can identify this. , 
, 

11 Q Is this -the operating agreement about which you just 

12 spoke? 

13 A Yes. 

14 MR . JIMMERSON: Madam Clerk, can you confirm �w�h�e�t�h�e�~� or 

15 not this is in evidence or not? 
I 

16 THE CLERK: Which exhibit? 
i 

17 MR. �J �I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� SQ. And if it's not, I 'l l move for its 
i 

18 admission at this ! time. 
, 

19 THE CLERK: It has been.admitted. 

20 MR. JIMMERSON: Thank you so much. 

21 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

22 Q The operating entity known as Silver Slipper Casino 

23 Venture, LLC is owned by whom, please? Tell me all of the 

24 �p�~�r�t�n�e�r�s� . 
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1 MR. DICKERSON: Excuse me one second, Jim. 

2 MR. JIMMERSON: You bet. 

3 MR. DICKERSON: My exhibit book doesn't include Q. 

4 (WHEREUPON, MR . JIMMERSON HANDS MR. DICKERSON A 

5 DOCUMENT. ) 

6 MR. J IMMERSON: It should. 

7 MR. DICKERSON: No. It - -

8 MR. JIMMERSON: (Indiscernible. ) 

9 MR . DICKERSON: -- i t just goes to P. 

IO MS. POLSELLI: I have an extra copy. 

I I MR. JIMMERSON: Let me have this one and I'll get it. 

12 We admitted it during Eric's testimony in the 

I3 first- -

14 MS. POLSELLI: It was admitted" 

15 MR. �J�I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� -- two days, 

16 MS. POLSELLI: -- August 30th. 

17 MR. JIMMERSON, August 30th. 

18 MR. DICKERSON, Oh, was it really? 

19 MS. PQLSELLI, It was. 

20 MR. DICKERSON' sorry. 

21 (WHEREUPON, MS, POLS ELL I HANDS MR. DICKERSON A DOCUMENT. ) 

22 MR. DICKERSON: Probably just had no objection to 

23 whatever you guys ;wanted. 

24 THE WITNESS: On pages Al through AiD attached to the 
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agreement, set forth the specific entities or individuals that 

2 own t hi s Si l ver Sl i pper Casino Venture. There are vari ous 

3 classes of stock.. : And t here are a whole list of i nvestor s. 

4 If you want me t o ,go t hrough them, I can do t hat. 

5 BY MR . 

6 Q 

JIMMERSON: . 

well, f Jrst, 
I , 

on my document did you have a Bate 

7 Stamp number on �t�~�e� bottom right hand corner of the exhibi t? 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

I3 

14 

15 

. 
I 

A I -- I have EN0037Bl. 

, 
Q Okay. �~�h�a�t� helps me. Thank you. 

I 
(BRIEF PAUSEJ) , 

I 

Q Al l right. So this -- beginning at EN003781 is a , 
I 

li sting of the meffibers of entities who in turn woul d have an 

i nterest in the cqmpany, is that right? 

. I 
A That 1S Icorrect. 

I 
Q I mean, ifor example, �~�s� a practi cal matter, does , 

16 Paul Alanis own a!direct i nterest in the Sil ver Slipper, or do 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

you do so t hrOughlyour own LLC or your own operating entity, 

. I 
or hold1ng company for example? 

A 

Q 

A 

shares. 

i 
I have i-
Look at :number 4 , A2. 

Yes. 

I have 

, 

I ihave a 

i rl.di r ect 
! 

direct i nterest in these Class A 

interest through, I t hink, Silver 

23 Sl i pper Gaming. And my children's trusts have i nterest. 

24 Q Okay. ind you just ment ioned a new entity that I 
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, 
I want The Court tO ibe aware of, it's call ed Silver Slipper 

2 Gaming. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

IO 

I I 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A 

Q 

is? 

A 

And it is 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

different 

A 

Would yqu tell The Court what Silver Slipper Gaming 
I 
I 

It 's an entity owned by Loren Ostrow and myself. 

I the �m�a�n�~�g�e�r� of the Silver Sl ipper Casino Ventur e 
I 

All right . 
I 
I 

- - and Ehe project. 
I , 

And who lare the owners, just t he two of you? 

That is lcorrect. 

All right And is i t fifty - fifty, or is there a I . 
arrangef('lent? , 

I 
It 's two-thirds to me, and one-third t o Mr. Ostrow. ! . 

Q All rignt. 
I 

And is there a contract of management 
• 

between Silver Slipper 

I 
Gaming Venture, LLC, the entity that 

owns the assets �t�~�e�r �e �,� and Silver Sl ipper Gaming? 

Q 

I 
Yes. I 

I 
All rigat. 

I 
And essentially what are the key terms 

o f that �m�a�n�a�g�e�m�e�n�~� agreement as it relates to payment to your 
I 

company or to anY6ne else? 
! 

revenues, 

, 
I t �e�s�s�e�~�t�i�a�l�l�y� provi des for two percent of the gross 

I , 
with a definition of gross gaming -- of gross gaming 

• 

revenues in that I management 
I 

agreement, to be pai d as a 

, 
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1 management fee. And I believe there are certain incentive 

2 fees , none of which have been paid. 

3 Q Okay. And is there a divisi on of those fees eighty 

4 percent to the entity and twenty percent to Mr. Nelson? 

5 A Yes. 

6 Q Okay. And we have schedules introduced in prior 

7 testi mony by Mr. Nelson as to what have been some historical 

8 payments of management fees. We're focusing mostly on what's 

9 been paid to him, but obviously we have a total recap for the 

10 last couple years at least. 

11 A Yes. 

12 Q But in your deposition of Jul y 2 , y ou ted -- you 

13 tol d us under oath that Mr. Nelson' s management fees were paid 

14 current. We have;some evidence that that's not an accurate 

15 piec e of testimony. So can I ask y ou what is y our 

16 understanding of the status of management fees payable to Mr. 

17 Nel son? 

18 A If -- if I said -- if I used the word current --

19 Q You did, 

20 A -- then -- Okay. Then--

21 MR. DICKERSON: Can you show him? Because I don' t 

22 believe that' s accurate. 

23 BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

24 Q Go ahead. You can answer, sir. 
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MR. DICKERSON; Well, then I -- I move to strike the 

2 question. The question is assuming facts not in evidence. 

3 

4 

MR. JIMMERSON; Well --

THE COURT: Do you recall what you said at t he 
I , 

5 deposition? 

6 THE WITNESS; Certainl y. I can try to explain exactly --

7 THE COURT: Do you want to be 

8 THE WITNESS: - - what the --

9 THE COURT: ., - well, do you need to look at it to refresh 

10 your memory, or �a�~�e� you comfortable? 

II THE WITNESS: No. I'm comfortable answering. 

12 THE COURT: Okay. You can --

13 . (BRIEF PAUSE WHILE MR. JIMMERSON IS SPEAKING WITH PEOPLE 

14 AT HIS COUNSEL TABLE AND THEY REVIEW DOCUMENTS.) , 
15 BY MR. JIMMERSON, i 

16 Q Okay. I'd like to call your attention to your , 

17 deposition--

18 MR. JIMMERSON: May I publish the deposition of Mr. 

19 Alanis taken July 2 of 2010, Your Honor? . 
I 

20 MR. �D�I�C�K�E�R�S�O�~�:� No objection, Your Honor. 

21 
; 

MR. �J�I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�;� May I approach t he witness, Your Honor? 

22 THE COURT: �~ �u �r�e�.� 

23 (WHEREUPON, MR. J IMM ERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS AND 

24 HANDS HI M A DOCUMENT.) 

, 
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BY MR. JIMMERSON: 

2 Q The question on page forty-two, and I want you to 
i 

3 read it to yourself. You were asked in the beginning it gives 

4 you �s�o�m�~� context, .what was received and what is i t for; Well, 

5 it 's twenty percent of the fees that are received, And it was 

6 strictly a �n�e�g�o�t�i�~�t�e�d� amount at the very beginning of the 

7 d 1 . . . I. ea I �E�r�~�c�,� 1n �g�l�~�l�n�g� up the Eric, i n giving up the 

8 potential of managing, of turning it over to essentially' 

9 negotiated with us that he would keep t wenty percent of the 

10 fees, So there is fa total management fee, He gets twenty 

11 percent and you �g�~�t� -- you -- and your gr oup get eighty; 

12 answer, t hat is, Correct; question, What is the total 

13 management fee, how is t hat calculated; answer, Calculated at 

14 of the gross revenues , two percent after deduction of 
! 

15 promotional allowances and taxes; Has the casino been paying 

16 that management fee; answer, Most of the time; Is it still 

17 

18 

19 

20 

paying it today; answer, Yes Excuse me -- answer, Currently 

it is paying it, I 
Yjes, Right now it is paying it. 

Have I read that correctly? 

Yes. The -- the question here was has the casino 

21 been paying that management fee. And the answer is yes. 

22 Q Okay. 

, 
I 10 then why is Mr. Nelson not receiving that 
, 

23 money if the casino is paying t hat fee? 

24 He is receiving some of that money. But we have an 

0-09-411537:-0 NELSON 11/11/10 PART!").. TRANSCRIPT , 
EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRIC'l' COURT FAMILY DIVISION 'I'RANSCRIPl' VIDEO SERVICES 

601 N , �~�e�c�:�o�s� Road, LaS Vegas, Nevada 89101 (702) 455-4977 19 
I 



1 addi tional agreement between oursel ves and Mr. Nelson which 

2 provides for a cal culation of the division of t he fees in a 

3 different manner than under this management agreement that was 

4 consented to by our lenders. 

5 Q So then how is the casino paying the management fee? 

6 How is that an accurate piece of testimony, Mr. Alanis? 

7 A The -- the casino has been paying the management 

8 fee. There are some deferred management fees. 

9 Q Meaning fees not paid but deferred? 

10 A Correct.' But -- but for the most part the casino "is 

II paying the management fees on an ongoing basis. Those fees 

12 f or the most part have been paid to Mr. Nelson as to his 

13 twenty percent share. There is a percentage that has not been 

14 paid to him as it relates to his twenty percent share, that 

1.5 equates to the amount that is an offset under that other 

16 agreement. 

17 Q Now, the amount that Mr. Nelson calculates at least 

18 through I think September or October is about a hundred and 

19 thirty-two thousand dollars. Do you have any knowledge to 

20 know if that's an 'accurate understanding by him? 

21 A r don't know t he precise amount. I think it was in 

22 excess of a hundred. 

23 Q And you wrote an email tohimthatsaid.no. we 

24 won't have to pay the hundred and thirty- two thousand, �~�n� fact 
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YOU're going to owe us money; right? 

2 A I don't recall that specific email. But I -- we may 

3 have had correspondence about this issue, of course, 
I , 

4 Q Who writes the checks to Mr. Nelson for the 
I 

5 management fees �w�~�e�n� they are paid? 

6 A We have an accountant who writes those. 

7 Q Who is that person? 

8 A His name is Andrew. , , 

9 Q Does he !run the number or the -- does he seek 

10 approval from you 'or Mr . Ostrow before they're paid? 

I I A General ly speaking he seeks approval from Mr. 

12 Ostrow. 

\3 Q Okay. �~�o� when was the last t i me that you know that 
I 

14" a check was writt¢n to Mr. Nelson f or management fees? 

15 A I don't ;know precisely. I would've thought in the 

16 last month or two. 

17 Q Okay. So Mayor June wouldn't be consistent with 

18 your 

19 

unde'rstandind? , 
I 

A I would':ve thought that there would've been a 

20 payment to him since then, but I cannot tell you f or certain 

21 that's the case. 

22 Q All r i gqt. May I ask you this question, do you take 

23 
I 

money -- do you take your eighty per cent i n pari passu, at t he 
i , 

24 same ti me, that Mr. . Nelson would earn his twenty percent? 
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A Generally speaking. , 
I 

2 Q Okay. �~�o� have you r ecei ved management fees for t he 

3 month of October of 2010? 

4 A October,' no. 
, 

5 Q �S�e�P�t�e�m�b�~�r� of 2010? 
, 

6 A I belieJ.e so. 

7 Q Okay. How much did your company receive -- or -- or 

8 your eighty percent, what does that equate to f or September of 

9 this year? 

10 

II 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A It would've been probably somewhere between forty 

and fifty thousand dollars. 

Q And under t hat understanding approximatel y eight to 
i 
I ten thousand dollqrs would've been due and owing to Mr. 

Nelson? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

! 

Yes. 

(Indiscernible) 
I 
I 

Subject! to what I've said before. 

Okay. And that's fin e. Let's go to that. What is 

19 the subject to agreement you're tal king about, sir? 

20 A 

, 

I t's anjagreement that calculates the management 
I 

21 f ees in a differeht manner between the partners, as opposed to , 

22 an -- t his agreement whi ch was subject to the approval of our 

23 lenders. 

24 Q So you �~�a�v�e� a different agreement that you made, 
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that you didn't ask for lender approval of, and that agreement 

2 says what? 

3 A Well, let me explain the background. At the 

4 beginning of this venture the management fees were being paid 

5 before the deduct ion of s tate taxes. And at some point, maybe 

6 a year into the operation of it, the lenders objected to that 

7 saying that the -- that in their judgment the agreement 

8 provided for fees to be paid after t he deduction o f gaming 

9 taxes. That was not our understanding and had not been our 

10 agreement. But the lenders insisted that fees be paid on that 

11 basis. And obviously the lenders don't want money going out 

12 of an entity befote they get paid back. 

13 So we �u�~�t�i�m�a�t �e �l�y� acquiesced to that v i s - a- v i s the 

14 lenders, but not as i t related to the 

IS Q Yourselves? 

16 A - - individual partners. 

17 Q Right. 

18 A And so we entered i nto an agreement that indicated 

19 that the managemen t fees would continue to be calculated based 

20 upon the -- an analysis o f gross gaming revenues 'before the 

21 deduction of gaming taxes. 

22 Q Understood. So between the gentlemen, t he partners, 

23 the management fees are based on the gross, not deducting 

24 gaming fees; but the lender was insisting upon the other, so 
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------- - -----------------------------_._---_ ..... __ .. ----, 

you're �e�s�s�e�n�t�i�a�l�l�~� keeping a second tab that would speak to, 
I 

2 amongst yourselves', owed management fees by the casino to the , 
3 respective managers? 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

A Correct. 

Q All right. And on a three million dollar per month 

gross revenue figJre as a hypothetical, that would generate, 
I ' 

just so The Court [understands, at two percent, a sixty 
, 

thousand dollar a ,month management feei correct? 

A Yes. 

Q All right . Now, we've seen some of the financials 

of the company. �~�o�w�,� let me show you one. 
I 
I 

MR. JIMMERSON; SK, please. 
I 

13 (WHEREUPON, MR. J IMMERSON APPROACHES THE CLERK AND 

14 RECEIVES A DOCUMENT.) 

15 MR. DICKERSON: No copy for me? 

16 (WHEREUPON, �~�R �.� JIMMERSON HANDS THE WITNESS A DOCUMENT.) 
, 

17 BY MR. JIMMERSON, I 
18 Q Let me s:how you what's been --

19 

20 It· s 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MS. POLSELLI:' It' 5 in the book as evidence f Bob. 

Q -- let me show you --

MS. PQL$ELLI:I - - it' 5 --

Q -- what ' :5 been marked, and I believe been --

MS . POLSELLI, book one, tab BK. 
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Q alrea'dy admitted into evidence as SK. And I can 

2 ask you 

3 A That' 5 _ 1-

4 Q -- can identify that document, s i r? 

5 A Yes. �T�~�i�5� is a balance sheet of the company. And 
I 

6 BK it 's not a �s�e�c �~ �r�i�t�y� it's not a securi t ies filing SK . 

7 I LAUGHTER. ) 

8 MS. POLSELLI :: No. It I 5 Exhibi t . 

9 A It's Exhibit SK , right? 

10 THE COURT: Yeah. 
I 

II A Okay. 

12 Q Wel l , I ' ve got news f or you, you missed a lot of 

13 disclosures �t �h�e�r�e �~� Mr. Alanis . , 
14 A Yeah, I know. Exactly. 

15 I LAUG HTER. ) 

16 Q Do you �~�e�c�o�g�n�i�z�e� that as being an overall statement 

17 let me have one pl ease - - of of the operations of the 

18 company? 

19 A Yes. 

20 Q All right. 

21 MR. �J �I�M�M�E �R�S�O�~ �:� And, Bob , I have another copy 

22 (indiscernible) . 

23 MR. �D�I�C�K�E�R�S�O�~�:� I ' ve go t it right here. I ' ve got it. 
, 

24 BY MR. I JIMMERSON: , 
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Q And this is what I call the balance sheet -- or you 

2 call the balance sheet of Silver Slipper Casino Ventures, LLC, 

3 for 2009 and 2010, measured on July 31 of each date: correct? 

4 A Yes. 

5 Q Al l right. And do you believe these numbers to be 

6 accurate? 

7 A Yes . 

8 Q Okay. So if we look at the comparison of operations 

9 and I presume t .his is on a year basis, in other words June 

10 30th of 2008 through July 31 of 2009, August 1 of 2009 through 

t l July 31 of 2010; would you agree? 

12 A No. I mean, this is a balance sheet as of a 

13 specific date. This isn't a --

14 Q Oh. As of a specific date. 

15 A -- financial statement. 

16 Q Okay. So it's not a -- it's -- but what I'm trying 

17 to understand is, doesn't it measure a year's worth of 

18 revenues, a year's; worth of expenses? 

19 MR. DICKERSON: No. 

20 A No. This is the wrong -- there's probably 

21 another 

22 Q Income statement? 

23 A -- income statement. 

24 Q Yeah. Okay. So looking at the balance sheet of the 
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1 company as of the ' two times then, July 31 of 2009 and July 31 

2 of 2010, we see �t�~�a�t� the company's assets depreciated by 

3 roughly five-paint-two million dollars; fair statement? From , . 

4 sixty-five million eight hundred and ninety-six thousand 

5 sixty-five nine, to sixty million five ninety-three. 

6 A 

7 Q 

8 A 

That's correct. , , 
Okay. 

That -- that involves accumul -- it's really a 

9 f uncti on of the aCcumulated depreciation. 

I 
10 Q Okay. So there's a f air amount of depreciation. , 

II But for purposes o f your balance sheet- the assets of the 

12 company dropped five million dol l ars and change --

13 A That is Icorrect. 
I 

14 Q -- �f�i�v�e�~�p�o �i �n�t�-�t�w�o� million dollars --

15 A That i s correct. 

16 Q -- dOWTI l tO sixty mil l ion five ninety-th ree. And 

, 
17 then you look at the liabi l ities. We see that t he li abilities 

18 doubl ed. Liabil i ties of -- let me see --

19 A The liabilities went up by three mill i on. 

I 
20 Q Three million dollars. And the retained earnings 

! 

21 went f rom a negat1ve seven-point-two mil l ion dollars -- two 

22 nine million dollars, to a negati ve fifteen- paint-four million 

23 dol l ars; correct? I 
I 

24 A That is correct. 
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Q Okay. And the total members' equity went from a 

2 positive two-point:-four million dollars 

3 

4 

MR. J I MMERSON': Does The Court have a copy o ,E this? 
! 

(WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE BENCH. ) 

5 THE COURT: No. I don't have one. You guys got the -- I 

6 think you got the .correct --

7 MR . JIMMERSON: I'm sorry. My fault. Thank you . 

8 (WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON HANDS THE COURT A DOCUMENT.) , 
, . 

9 MR. JIMMERSON: Look at the last sheet. 

10 BY MR. JIMMERSON, 

II Q The total members' equity dropped fr om a positive 

12 two-paint- four million dollars to a negative fiv e-paint-seven 

13 

14 

15 

j 

million dollars, �~�s� that right? 
I , 

A That i s icorrect. 

Q 50 t hat' s a swing of eight millio n dollars. eight-

16 point-one million dollars, correct? 

17 A Yes. 

18 Q Okay. So in those twelve months it's fair to state 

19 that Si lver 5li PpJr had a poor year; fair statement? 

20 A well, yes and no . Because this is a f inancial 

21 statement that takes into account depreciation, which is a 

22 which is an accounting entry and a tax entry. It doesn't 

23 
, , 

necessarily �r�e�f�l �e�~ �t� the true value of the enterprise. 
I 

24 
I . 

Q I understand. But i t'S what your company represents , 
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to the banks and to people l ike Mr. Nelson and his wif e, 

2 correct? 

3 MR. DICKERSON.: Object to t he f orm of t he question. 

4 A It's - - all I can say is i t's a balance sheet 

5 prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

6 princ i p l es. 

7 Q well, what's i ts purpose f or preparing it? 

8 A To demonstrate what the assets and liabilities are 

9 of the company. 

10 Q Okay. 

II A But I th'ink t he income statement is a better 

12 indication of whether the company had a good or bad year. 

I3 Q Okay. Then let's look at, if we could Let me 

14 just help you. Is that a single page document? 

15 A Yes, it is . 

16 Q All right. 

17 (WHEREUPON, MR. J IMM ERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS AND 

18 HANDS HIM A DOCUMENT. ) 

19 

20 

21 page? 

22 

23 

24 

Q I think - - Let me show you SK. 

MR. JIMMERSON: Madam Clerk, do you have 8K as only one 

THE CLERK: (Indiscernibl e. ) 

MS. POLSELLI: (Indiscernibl e.) 

MR. JIMMERSON: So you don't - -
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

I 
(WHEREUPON, MR. JIMMERSON APPROACHES THE CLERK .) 

I , 
MR. JIMMERSON: Ours was stapled and had several pages. 

. I 
But when you handed it to me you only gave me one page. 

I 
THE CLERK: (Indiscernible.) 

I , 
MR. JIMMERSON: Then I -- then I pr obably - -

I 
IWHEREUPON, MR. J I MMERSON APPROACHES THE WITNESS.) 

I Let me see what you have here. 

THE WITNESS: It was just the accounting s t atement. 

9 That's just the (i ndiscernibl e). 
. I 

10 

11 

12 

I3 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

, 
MR. J IMM ERSON: Then I -- I , 

I 

THE WITNESS: i I don' t have anything (indiscerni bl e ) . 

I 
MR. J I MMERSON: This is (indiscernible). 

I 

THE WITNESS: I Okay. 
; , 

MR. �J �I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� 

have t hat? 
I 
I 

MR. 
I 

�D�I�C�K�E�R�S�O�~�:� , 

Bob, it's a series of documents. 

Yes. Right here. 

MR. J I MMERSO* : I 'm going to go right here. Okay ? 
i , 

BY MR. JIMMERSON, I 
I 

Do you 

Q Okay. 8K is several pages. And I wanted to go t o , 
I 

t he income �s�t�a�t�e�m�~�n�t�.� And by my review of this document, t hat , 
I 

would be Bates Stamp Number EN002746. 

MR. DICKERsot, 46? 

MR. �J�I�M�M�E�R�S�O�~�:� I'm sorry, not 46. , 
I 

THE WITNESS; ' 47 . 

, 
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MS. POLSELLI:, 47 . 

2 MR. �J �I�M�M�E�R�S�O �~�:� 47 . Thank you. 

3 BY MR . JIMMERSON, 

4 Q Now, do -you recognize thi s as a income statement of 

5 Silver Slipper Casino Venture, LLC for mont hs ended May 31 of 

6 2009 and 20107 

7 

8 

A 

Q 

Yes. 

All right. And would you tell The Court the results , 
9 of the i ncome �s�t�a�~�e�m�e�n�t� -- what t he income statement reveals 

10 relative to the operations of Silver Slipper Casino yenture, 

11 LLC for the year that went fr om May 31 of 2009 ending May 31 

12 of 2010? 

13 A well , we j udge our perf ormance very much upon a 

14 f i gure called t he :EBITDAM and -- or EBITDA. And i t is 

15 essentially the same or very close t o the same from 2009 to 

16 2010. EBITDAM is down about forty -one thousand, or less than 

17 one percent for 2010; EBITDA is actuall y down by one thousand 

18 dollars on four-point-six million. So essentially the same 

19 from 

20 Q Okay. 

21 A -- 2009 to 2010 on the �y �e�~ �r� to date. 

22 Q All �r�i�g�~�t�.� Now, the net revenue has dropped four 

23 hundred thousand ¢oI1ars. That' s a fair s tatement, isn't it? 
, , 

24 I n the year �b�e�t�w�e�~�n� 
I 
I , 
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, 

I A Net revenue is because promotional allowances went 

2 up significantly in 2010. 

3 Q Okay. So 

4 A Yes. The answer is 

5 Q the number i s 

6 A it went down by --

7 Q it went down four hundred thousand dollars? 

8 A went :down by two hundred and forty - f our - - four 

9 hundred -- two hundred and for ty- two t housand dol lars. 

10 Q And for promotional allowance -- I have some 

11 familiarit y with this l ine of business --

12 A Righ t;. 

13 Q -- it wquld be giveaways, the marketing that allows 

14 people to have camps and t hat kind of thing, correct? 

15 A Correct. 

16 Q All right . Therefore, it's not r evenue being 

17 received through credit cards, checks o r cash? 

18 A That's correct. 
, 

19 Q All �r�i�g�~�t �.� 

20 A It's an expense. 

21 Q Right. Then you have direct costs, gaming, food and 

22 beverage and other. And those costs remain roughly t he same, 

23 gained by twenty-f ive thousand, twenty-six thousand dollars; 

24 correct? 

NELSON 11/17/10 PARTIAL TRANSCRI PI' 

EIGHTH �J�U�D�I�C �I �A�~� DI STRICT COURT - FAMI LY DI VISION - �T�~ �~ �S�C�R�I�P�T� VIOEO SERVICES 
601 N. Pecos Road, Llis Vagas, Nevada 89101 (702) 455-4971 32 



1 A Yes. 

2 Q All rignt. And the gross profit therefore dropped 

3 
, 

by three hundred and -- four hundred thousand dollars, four 

4 hundred fifty �t�h�o�~�s�a�n�d� dollars - - three-peint-four compared to 

5 the earlier three-paint-ni ne for that month, and then 

6 seventeen- one from six -- eighteen-six. For -- for the year 

7 it's a drop of �o�n�~�-�p�o�i�n�t�-�f�i�v�e� million dollars in gross profit . 

8 For the month it was a drop for four hundred thousand dol l ars. , 

9 A Yeah. That's before the operating expenses. 

10 Q Yes, sir, that's right. And then you have operating 

11 expenses that you've related here. And EBITDAM is a defined 

12 term in the accounting world, correct? 

13 A That is icorrect. 
I 

14 Q Earnings before i nterest, taxes, depreciation -- is 

15 that amortization? 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 A 

19 Q 

It is. 

And, M would be management fees? 

correct! 

i 
Okay. And EBITDA without an M is without including , 

20 management f ees? 

21 A Correct. 

22 Q All right . And the thought of whether you include M 
, , 

23 of EBITDA or not is a buyer who might look at the property can , 
24 can ascertain �~�h�a�t� t he management fees may be and whether 
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